
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 2, 2017 • Page 1 of 4 

MEETING OF THE 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 

THURSDAY, MARCH 2, 2017 

4:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for Thursday,
March 2, 2017.

2. Receive an update on right-of-way negotiations and acquisitions for the Santa Fe Plaza Project.

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property –
The City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or
value of real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a
detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party.

3. Receive an update on right-of-way negotiations and acquisitions for the expansion of Old
Howard Road and Moores Mill Road, also known as the Research Parkway project.

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property –
The City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or
value of real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a
detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party.

4. Receive an update on right-of-way negotiations and acquisitions for the MLK Festival Fields and
Santa Fe Market Trail project.

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property –
The City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or
value of real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a
detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 2, 2017 • Page 2 of 4 

5:00 P.M. 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER
1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting. 
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to three 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  

III. REPORTS

3. Receive the Temple Economic Development Corporation Annual Report.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 

4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate
resolutions and ordinances for each of the following:

Minutes

(A) February 16, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting

Contracts, Leases, & Bids

(B) 2017-8553-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property
necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival
grounds and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase, in an amount not to
exceed $15,500.

(C) 2017-8554-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property
necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival
grounds in an amount not to exceed $6,026.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 2, 2017 • Page 3 of 4 

(D) 2017-8555-R: Consider adopting a resolution amending an agreement with Kasberg,
Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $97,950 for professional services
required to design an extension of South First Street at Loop 363.

(E) 2017-8556-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $391,906
for preliminary design of Phase 6 of the Outer Loop (connection to I35).

(F) 2017-8557-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP of Temple, in an amount not to exceed
$94,900 for professional services required for the preparation of the 2030 Reinvestment
Zone Master Plan.

(G) 2017-8558-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of a Texas
Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Non-Primary Entitlement Grant, in the
total amount of $166,667 (City match of $16,667), in fiscal year 2017 for improvements
at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.

(H) 2017-8559-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of the Texas
Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance Grant, in
the amount of $100,000 (City match of $50,000) for fiscal year 2017 for improvements at
the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.

Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 

(I) 2017-4831: SECOND AND FINAL READING: Consider adopting an ordinance amending
Ordinance No. 2014-4686 to change the name of the franchised company from Serenity
EMS, LLC d/b/a Ameristat Ambulance to Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a Texas Star
Ambulance.

Misc. 

(J) 2017-8560-R: A-FY-17-05: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the release of the
15' wide public utility easements located in Las Colinas Subdivision along the east
boundaries of Lots 9, 10 and 11, Block 1, and Lots 13 and 14, Block 3, to allow the
reconfiguration of utility easements for a pending replat.

(K) 2017-8561-R: Consider adopting a resolution accepting the TMED South Strategic
Master Plan.

(L) 2017-8562-R: Consider adopting a resolution declaring the candidates for the May 6,
2017, District 2 and District 3 City Councilmember as unopposed and elected to office;
thereby canceling the election as ordered.

(M) 2017-8563-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal
year 2016-2017.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 2, 2017 • Page 4 of 4 

V. REGULAR AGENDA

ORDINANCES – FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING 

5. 2017-4832: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Consider adopting an ordinance amending 
Ordinance Number 2016-4796 which amended the Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 2,  Article II, 
“Code of Ethics,” to change the effective date of the ordinance to October 1, 2017.

6. 2017-4833: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-03: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from the Neighborhood Services zoning district to the 
Planned Development-Neighborhood Services zoning district on 7.35 +/- acres, 1-lot, 1-
block non-residential subdivision, proposed for a mini-storage facility, situated in the 
Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692, Bell County, City of Temple, Texas, located at 5785 
South 31st Street.

7. 2017-4834: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-12: Consider adopting an 
ordinance amending the existing Planned Development district (Ordinance 2008-4263), 
decreasing the Planned Development-General Retail portion from 12.2 +/- acres to 5.48 +/-
acres and increasing the Planned Development Single Family Two portion from 38.5 +/- acres 
to 45.20 +/- acres for a total 50.7± acres located at 276 West FM 93, the northeast corner of FM 
93 and South 5th Street, out of the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract No. 14.

8. 2017-4835: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-14: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Office-One zoning district to General Retail zoning district 
on a 2.770 +/- acres and Office-One to Planned Development-General Retail on a 2.142 +/-
acres, portion of a 4.912 +/- tract of land, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, 
Bell County, Texas, located at 6490 West Adams Avenue. 

RESOLUTIONS 

9. 2017-8564-R: Consider adopting a resolution approving a request from Central Texas Christian
School for a 1,000 foot spacing requirement between the school and a place of business which
sells alcoholic beverages, pursuant to Code of Ordinances, Chapter 4, Section 4-2.

10. 2017-8565-R: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code §
2206.053 finding that one property situated in the M.A. Young Survey, Abstract #937, J.B. Daniel
Survey, Abstract #259, and the Henry Millard Survey, Abstract #552, Bell County, Texas, is
necessary for the proposed expansion of Old Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to
Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-
35 and authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn the property.

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
11:00 AM, on Friday, February 24, 2017. 

_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(A) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   
  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 
  

(A) February 16, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
February 16, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 

  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(B) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2  
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property 
necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds and 
authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase, in an amount not to exceed $15,500.  
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The development of the Santa Fe Market Trail project is in conjunction with the 
recently developed Downtown Master Plan. The Santa Fe Market Trail project will extend from the 
future Santa Fe Plaza east to Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive. 
 
In February 2016, Council entered into a services agreement with Stateside Right of Way Services, 
LLC (“Stateside”) for land acquisition and relocation services for approximately 20 tracts of land.  As 
the design phase of this project progressed, the Parks & Recreation Department and the Project 
Committee for the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board requested that six additional parcels be acquired 
for use in the project. Council entered into a second services agreement for these six parcels in 
December 2016.   
 
Appraisals have been performed on all of the parcels and the City has made offers to the owners. One 
property owner has accepted the City’s offer. Stateside has been actively negotiating with the remaining 
owners. 
 
Staff is seeking authorization to complete the purchase of the following property and pay necessary 
closing costs, in an amount not to exceed $15,500. The property to be acquired is 202 South Martin 
Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #27146). 
 
 
 

 



03/02/17 
Item #4(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available for the purchase of 202 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, 
which is necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival 
grounds, in an amount not to exceed $15,500 in account 795-9500-531-6566, project #101262. 

  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  
 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8553-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE PROPERTY 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROPOSED SANTA FE 
MARKET TRAIL/MLK FIELDS FESTIVAL GROUNDS; AUTHORIZING 
CLOSING COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PURCHASE IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $15,500; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the development of the Santa Fe Market Trail project is in conjunction with the 
recently developed Downtown Master Plan and will extend from the future Santa Fe Plaza east 
to Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive; 
 
 Whereas, in February 2016, Council entered into a services agreement with Stateside 
Right of Way Services, LLC (“Stateside”) for land acquisition and relocation services for 
approximately 20 tracts of land - as the design phase progressed, the Parks & Recreation 
Department and the Project Committee for the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board requested 6 
additional parcels be acquired for use in the project; 
 

Whereas, appraisals have been performed on all of the parcels and the City has made 
offers to the owners - one property owner has accepted the City’s offer and Stateside has been 
actively negotiating with the remaining owners; 
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of the property located at 
202 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, Temple, Texas, and authorize the payment of any 
necessary closing costs, in an amount not to exceed $15,500; 
 
 Whereas, funding for the purchase of this property is available in Account No. 795-9500-
531-6566, Project No. 101262; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of the property located at 202 South 
Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, Temple, Texas, and authorizes the payment of any necessary 
closing costs in an amount not to exceed $15,500, which is necessary for the construction of the 
proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds.  



2 
 

 
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
03/02/17 

Item #4(C) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1  
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property 
necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds in an 
amount not to exceed $6,026.  
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is currently in the design phase for the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail and 
MLK Fields festival grounds. The design originally encompassed 25 properties, including six previously 
acquired by the City. Stateside Right-of-Way Services was selected in February 2016 to assist with the 
remaining acquisitions.  
 
The City has acquired, or has reached an agreement to acquire, nineteen of the needed properties.  
Council has authorized the use of eminent domain for two of the properties. One of the properties was 
dropped from the scope of the project, but was added back in and Stateside has reinstated negotiations 
with that property owner.     
 
Staff is seeking authorization to complete the purchase of one property in an amount not to exceed 
$6,026. The property to be acquired is located at 402 South 6th Street (Bell CAD ID #62337).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding is available for the purchase of 402 South 6th Street, which is necessary 
for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds, in an amount 
not to exceed $6,026 in account 795-9500-531-6566, project #101262. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
 

  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8554-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE PROPERTY 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROPOSED SANTA FE 
MARKET TRAIL/MLK FIELDS FESTIVAL GROUNDS IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $6,026; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the design phase for the proposed Santa Fe Market 
Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds which originally encompassed 25 properties, including six 
properties previously acquired by the City - Stateside Right-of-Way Services was selected in 
February 2016 to assist with these acquisitions; 
 

Whereas, the City has acquired, or has reached an agreement to acquire, nineteen of the 
needed properties and has authorized the use of eminent domain for two of the properties - one of 
the properties was dropped from the scope of the project, but was added back in and Stateside 
has reinstated negotiations with that property owner;     
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of the property located at 
402 South 6th Street, Temple, Texas, in an amount not to exceed $6,026; 
 
 Whereas, funding for the purchase of this property is available in Account No. 795-9500-
531-6566, Project No. 101262; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of the property located at 402 S. 6th 
Street, Temple, Texas, in an amount not to exceed $6,026, which is necessary for the 
construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds.  
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution amending an agreement with Kasberg, Patrick 
& Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $97,950 for professional services required to design an 
extension of South First Street at Loop 363. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item discussion. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Temple Medical Education District (TMED) is a strategic area of redevelopment. 
The intersection of South First Street with Loop 363 will be an entrance to this district and its corridor 
connecting State right-of-way to downtown. Improvements to define this gateway intersection are under 
construction. The planned extension of South First Street from this intersection is required to support 
growth and development. This scope addition will be designed in accordance with the RZ’s Master Plan 
and incorporate the TMED standards recently constructed north of the intersection. 
 
The following tasks and costs are recommended for amendment to KPA’s professional services 
contract for the Spur 290 @ Loop 363 project: 
 
  Route & Design Studies    $   3,250 
  Surveying      $ 13,800 
  Civil Design      $ 64,500 
  Landscape Design     $   6,800 
  Misc. Design & Coordination   $   9,600 
 
     TOTAL   $ 97,950  
 
Design will be completed within 45 calendar days. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funds are available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, TMED Projects, 
Account # 795-9500-531-6872, for Project #101627 for this professional services agreement in the 
amount of $97,950. 
 
 
 
 
 



03/02/17 
Item #4(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Funding for this agreement is currently available from remaining funds for the Loop 363 Frontage Road 
(UPRR to 5th).  TxDOT is currently under contract with JD Abrams to construct these improvements.  
The proposed extension of South First Street will be constructed under TxDOT’s construction contract 
with JD Abrams. The extension of South First Street at Loop 363 project is currently estimated at 
$1,320,000 for design and construction. A Financing Plan amendment will be presented to the 
Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board on March 22, 2017 to fully fund this project and to replenish the funding 
of the Loop 363 Frontage Road (UPRR to 5th) project.  The Financing Plan amendment will be 
presented to Council for first reading on April 6, 2017. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Resolution 
  























1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8555-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $97,950, FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES REQUIRED TO DESIGN AN EXTENSION OF SOUTH FIRST 
STREET AT LOOP 363; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Temple Medical Education District (TMED) is a strategic area of 
redevelopment and the entrance to this district and its corridor connecting State right-of-way to 
downtown is located at South First Street and Loop 363; 
 
 Whereas, improvements to define this gateway intersection are under construction and an 
extension of South First Street from this intersection is required to support growth and 
development; 
 
 Whereas, this scope addition will be designed in accordance with the Reinvestment 
Zone’s Master Plan and incorporate the TMED standards recently constructed north of the 
intersection; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this contract amendment is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 
1 Financing Plan, TMED Projects, Account No. 795-9500-531-6872, Project No. 101627; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute an amendment to the professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in the amount of $97,950, for professional services 
required to design an extension of South First Street at Loop 363. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(E) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $391,906 for preliminary design of 
Phase 6 of the Outer Loop (connection to I35). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Outer Loop south of FM 2305 is a critical north-south arterial that will connect 
the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35. Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been constructed 
and ROW is being acquired for the next phase (3B) to extend to Tarver Road and Jupiter Drive. Phase 
6 will provide a critical intersection with the interstate highway.  
 
The following tasks and costs are recommended for authorization: 
 
  Route & Design Studies    $   62,100 
  Surveying      $   41,200 
  Metes & Bounds     $   21,600 
  Road Design      $   71,896 
  Drainage      $   28,000 
  Signage      $   12,060 
  Utility Design      $   18,425 
  Structural Design     $   72,450 
  Environmental     $   30,750 
  Geotech      $   18,600 
  Misc. Design      $     7,750 
  Management & Coordination   $     7,075 
 
     TOTAL           $   391,906  
 
Design will be completed within 270 calendar days. 
 

 
 
 



03/02/17 
Item #4(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funds are available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 320, in 
the amount of $2,500,000 for the full design and ROW acquisition of Phase 6 of the Outer Loop to be 
funded with the 2017 TIRZ bond issue.  The bonds will not be issued until May 2017. To expedite the 
preliminary design of this project, we are proposing to fund this agreement with cash currently available.  
We will fund $400,000 of the Phase 6 of the Outer Loop with current revenues and fund $400,000 of 
the Santa Fe Plaza Project with bond proceeds that were originally funded with current revenues. 
 
Funding for this agreement is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, account 795-
9500-531-6657, project 101585 in the amount of $400,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Resolution 
  























 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8556-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $391,906 FOR PRELIMINARY DESIGN OF PHASE 6 OF 
THE OUTER LOOP; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Outer Loop south of FM 2305 is a critical north-south arterial that will 
connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35; 
 
  Whereas, Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been constructed and right of way is 
being acquired for the next phase (3B) to extend to Tarver Road and Jupiter Drive - Phase 6 will 
provide a critical intersection with I-35; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this agreement is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 
Financing Plan, Account No. 795-9500-531-6657, Project No. 101585; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick 
& Associates, LP, in the amount of $391,906 for preliminary design of Phase 6 of the Outer 
Loop. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



sh 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(F) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 4 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP of Temple, in an amount not to exceed $94,900 for professional 
services required for the preparation of the 2030 Reinvestment Zone Master Plan. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This project will consist of producing data, information and maps for the existing 
parks within the Reinvestment Zone as well as explore future expansion and development. The 
existing parks include the Airport Park, Corporate Campus Park, Industrial Park, Synergy Park, TMED 
Park and the Downtown Area as well as the properties at Crossroads Park. Development of three 
dimensional modeling is included in the scope of work utilizing previous project surface models and 
incorporation into Infraworks. Modeling will include roadways, surfaces, property lines, railways, water 
utilities, wastewater utilities and dry utilities as the information is available. Additionally the scope of 
work shall include development of expansion areas for the TRZ and proposed future projects. 
Expansion areas shall be illustrated with exhibits to include current property owners as available 
through BellCAD as well as project identification. Future projects identified with the 2030 Master Plan 
will be illustrated through Infraworks with exhibits and cost estimates. Other elements of the Master 
Plan shall include review and research for City certifications, review of development and 
redevelopment in TMED, research of potential public transportation within TMED, maintenance review 
with cost estimates and Gateways and investigations for opportunities with the IH35 corridor. The final 
product will be bound Master Plans illustrating all the elements of the project as well as flash drives 
with the developed Infraworks media. Coordination with the partners of the TRZ will also be included 
in the Master Plan.  

 

The proposed timeline for the completion of the project is three hundred and sixty five days from the 
notice to proceed. 



03/02/17 
Item #4(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
The scope of services for this project will include the following: 

Existing TRZ Park Modeling and Updates - This phase of the Master Plan will include 
development of a three dimensional model of the existing parks. The Parks that will be modeled 
are Airport Park, Corporate Campus Park,  Industrial  Park,  Synergy  Park,  TMED  Park  and  
the Downtown Area  as well as the properties  at Crossroads Park.  The following items will be 
included in the model: 

• Existing and proposed  roadway  infrastructure 
• Existing and proposed  rail infrastructure 
• Existing and proposed  water utilities 
• Existing and proposed  wastewater utilities 
• Existing and proposed  drainage utilities 
• Existing dry utilities to the best information available .Included  are  gas,  electric  and 

communication 
• Existing topography 
• Current property  lines and ownership based off of BellCAD information  

 
TRZ Future Projects and Expansion - This phase of the Master Plan will explore future 
expansion of the TRZ in relation to regional expansion and proposed infrastructure as well as 
constriction by the legalities restricting the TRZ. Future projects will be identified with a 
proposed integrated plan that will include financing. 

 
TMED Revitalization - This phase of the Master Plan will explore avenues and directives to 
revitalize the TMED area in conjunction with the projects that have been completed and are in 
progress. Items included in the Master Plan will be: 

• Rehabilitation of existing business and residential  infrastructure  within TMED 
• Development  of new infrastructure 
• Schools 
• Development of "Green" TMED Transportation  

 
Maintenance within the TRZ - This phase will define the infrastructure that has been 
developed within the TRZ and explore the maintenance requirements, scheduling and costs. 
The infrastructure to be explored shall include: 

• Roadways 
• Utilities 
• Drainage Facilities 
• Sidewalks and Trails 
• Signs 
• Landscaping 

 
City of Temple Designations and Certifications - This phase will study the requirements 
and benefits, for the purpose of recommending attainment of the same to the City Council, for 
the City of Temple to become certified and/or designated in areas of interest to include: 

 



03/02/17 
Item #4(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
• Certification or Designation as a "Walkable City" 
• Certification or Designation as a "Wireless City" 
• Certified or Designation as a "Green City" 

 
 
Interstate 14- This phase will review the current alignment and proposed construction for I-14 
in order to study implications of I-14 route alternatives on the Reinvestment Zone for the purpose 
of making recommendations to the City Council and will include: 

• Revised   exhibits   illustrating   the  proposed   alignment   of  I-14  with  proposed   
construction completion  dates 

• Connectivity  to I-14 with existing thoroughfares within Temple 
• Proposed connectivity to I-14 with associated costs 

 
 
Gateway Development - This phase will explore potential gateway developments for Temple 
for the purpose of making recommendations to the City Council and shall include: 

 
• Gateway at or near IH35 and the Leon River 
• Gateway into Downtown 
• Gateway for TMED South 
• Other Gateways for the TRZ or the TRZ Parks 

 
IH35 Corridor - This phase will explore enhancements and opportunities for the IH 35 corridor 
through Temple for the purpose of making recommendations to the City Council. 

 
Coordination with Stakeholders and Partners - As with the 2022 Master plan, we will 
coordinate with the Stakeholders and Partners of the TRZ which include, but are not limited to: 

• Baylor, Scott & White 
• The Veteran's Administration 
• Temple College 
• The Bioscience District 
• TxDOT 
• Downtown Development Groups 
• TEDC 
• Temple Chamber  of Commerce 

• Transform Temple Team 
• Temple Independent School District 
• Belton Independent  School District 
• Troy Independent  School District 
• Bell County 
• Elm Creek Water District



 

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(F) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 4 of 4 
Basic Services  

Existing TRZ Park Modeling $ 17,300 
TRZ Future Projects & Expansion $ 13,100 
TMED Revitalization $ 11,300 
Maintenance within the TRZ $ 10,300 
City of Temple Designations & 

 
$ 9,600 

I-14 $ 12,000 
Gateway Development $ 8,800 
IH 35 Corridor $ 5,000 
Coordination with Stakeholders & Partners   $ 7,500   

             Total Basic Services                                        $ 94,900 
 
 
The deliverables for the project shall be as follows:  

 
1. 70% review sets. Five sets of the 70% review sets shall be delivered to the Project Manager 

designated for the City of Temple for distribution to staff. The City of Temple shall notify 
KPA when comments are ready and they shall be incorporated into the design. 

 
2. 90% review sets. Five sets of the 90% sets shall be delivered to the Project Manager 

designated for the City of Temple for distribution to staff. The City of Temple shall notify 
KPA when comments are ready and they shall be incorporated into the design. 

 
3. Final sets. Five sets of the final sets shall be delivered to the Project Manager designated 

for the City of Temple for distribution to staff. The City of Temple shall notify KPA when 
comments are ready and they shall be incorporated into the design. Once these comments 
have been incorporated into the sets they shall be considered final and the project shall be 
complete. 

 
4. Final deliverables. After the project has been completed, KPA will deliver forty sets of final 

documents to the City of Temple for distribution. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, 
line 50, account 795-9500-531-2616, Professional Services, to fund the agreement in the amount of 
$94,900. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8557-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $94,900 FOR PREPARATION OF THE 
2030 REINVESTMENT ZONE MASTER PLAN; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the 2030 Reinvestment Zone Master Plan will consist of producing data, 
information and maps for existing parks within the Reinvestment Zone, as well as, exploring 
future expansion and development; 
 
 Whereas, the existing parks include the Airport Park, Corporate Campus Park, Industrial 
Park, Synergy Park, TMED Park and the Downtown Area as well as the properties at Crossroads 
Park; 
 
 Whereas, the scope of services for this Master Plan include: 
 

• Existing TRZ Park Modeling and Updates; 
• TRZ Future Projects and Expansion; 
• TMED Revitalization; 
• Maintenance within the TRZ; 
• City of Temple Designations and Certifications; 
• Interstate 14; 
• Gateway Development; 
• IH35 Corridor; 
• Coordination with Stakeholders and Partners; and 
• Basic Services;  

 
  Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP for professional services required for the preparation of the 
2030 Reinvestment Zone Master Plan in an amount not to exceed $94,900; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this agreement is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 
Financing and Project Plans, Line 50, Account No. 795-9500-531-2616; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick 
& Associates, LP, in the amount of $94,900 for professional services required for the preparation 
of the 2030 Reinvestment Zone Master Plan. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:    
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 
Jonathan Graham, City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of a Texas Department 
of Transportation, Aviation Division, Non-Primary Entitlement Grant, in the total amount of $166,667 
(City match of $16,667), in fiscal year 2017 for improvements at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas 
Regional Airport.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple developed a corporate aviation area for future development and 
growth.  In order to continue the growth, the Airport needs to construct a concrete apron to support an 
additional hangar in the corporate area. The estimated cost for construction of a concrete apron is 
$447,000.     

A resolution from the City accepting the Non-Primary Entitlement Grant funds in the amount of $150,000 
and assuring the City has funds to provide at least $297,000 of the total project costs with local funds 
and understands that any additional costs above $150,000 in federal funds cannot be increased. A 
Resolution must be submitted to TxDOT Aviation no later than March 3, 2017 for consideration and 
approval at the April 28, 2017 Texas Transportation Commission meeting.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: TxDOT will provide $150,000 to help assist with the apron improvements estimated 
at $447,000 through the NPE Grant Program.  A breakdown of the estimated project cost and funding 
is shown below:  
      

 

447,000$        Estimated project costs - Apron Improvements
(150,000)         NPE Grant Program

(16,667)           NPE Grant Match - Reinvestment Zone No. 1
280,333$        Remaining amount to be funded from Reinvestment Zone No. 1 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8558-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION, AVIATION DIVISION, NON-PRIMARY 
ENTITLEMENT GRANT IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $166,667 (CITY 
MATCH OF $16,667) FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017, FOR IMPROVEMENTS 
AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL 
AIRPORT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the City of Temple developed a Corporate Aviation Area for future 
development and growth and in order to continue the growth, the Airport needs to construct a 
concrete apron to support an additional hangar in the corporate area;     

Whereas, Texas Department of Transportation Aviation Division requires a Resolution 
from the City of Temple accepting the Non-Primary Entitlement Grant funds in the amount of 
$150,000 and assuring the following: 

1) the City has funds to provide at least $297,000 of the total project costs with
local funds;

2) the City understands that any additional costs above $150,000 in federal funds
cannot be increased; and

3) the City will provide a Resolution to TxDOT Aviation no later than March 3,
2017 for consideration and approval at the April 28, 2017 Texas
Transportation Commission meeting;

Whereas, Texas Department of Transportation will provide $150,000 to help assist with 
the concrete apron improvements in an estimated amount of $447,000, through the Non-Primary 
Entitlement Grant Program; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2: The City Council accepts a Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, 
Non-Primary Entitlement Grant, in the total amount of $166,667 (City match of $16,667), for fiscal 
year 2017 for improvements at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   

Part 3: The City Manager, or his designee, after approval as to form by the City 
Attorney, is authorized to execute any documents which may be necessary for the acceptance of 
this grant, and to accept any and all funds that may be received for this grant. 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(H) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:    
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 
Jonathan Graham, City Manager 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of the Texas Department 
of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance Grant, in the amount of $100,000 
(City match of $50,000) for fiscal year 2017 for improvements at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas 
Regional Airport.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple, as part of our Airport Grant Assurance, has participated in the 
yearly RAMP grant program through the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division for 
several years.  The RAMP grant is a pro-active, flexible grant program that allows the City to determine 
projects on an as needed basis upon execution of the grant.  Eligible items currently being considered, 
but subject to change in FY17 includes funding assistance improvements in the corporate aviation area 
to support future growth.             
 
TxDOT has approved Temple’s participation for inclusion in the FY17 RAMP Program at the maximum 
level of $100,000 (50-50 share). The City’s matching funds are included in the Reinvestment Zone No. 
1 Financing Plan in FY17.      
 
The Grant Agreement must be submitted to TxDOT Aviation eGrants program.         
 
FISCAL IMPACT: TxDOT will provide $50,000 to help assist with improvements in the corporate 
aviation hangar area to support future growth.  The expenditure of $100,000 (which includes the City’s 
$50,000 match) was approved in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 509, in account 
795-9500-531-6559, project 101586 for FY17. TxDOT Aviation will reimburse the City 50% of the total 
project cost not to exceed $50,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8559-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION, AVIATION DIVISION, ROUTINE AIRPORT 
MAINTENANCE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000 (CITY MATCH 
OF $50,000) FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017, FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT THE 
DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL AIRPORT; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple, as part of the Airport Grant Assurance, has participated in 
the yearly Routine Airport Maintenance Grant (RAMP) program through the Texas Department 
of Transportation, Aviation Division for several years; 
 
 Whereas, the RAMP grant is a pro-active, flexible grant program that allows the City to 
determine projects on an “as-needed” basis upon execution of the grant and eligible items 
currently being considered, but subject to change in fiscal year 2017, includes funding assistance 
improvements in the corporate aviation area to support future growth;      
 
 Whereas, the Texas Department of Transportation Aviation Division has approved 
Temple’s participation for inclusion in the fiscal year 2017 RAMP Program at the maximum 
level of $100,000 (50-50 share);      
 
 Whereas, Texas Department of Transportation will provide $50,000 to help assist with 
improvements in the corporate aviation hangar area to support future growth; 
 
 Whereas, the expenditure of $100,000 (which includes the City’s $50,000 match) was 
approved in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 509, in Account No. 795-9500-
531-6559, Project No. 101586 - TxDOT Aviation will reimburse the City 50% of the total 
project cost not to exceed $50,000; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council accepts a Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, 
Routine Airport Maintenance Grant, in the amount of $100,000 (City match of $50,000) for fiscal 
year 2017 for improvements at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   



2 
 

 
 
Part 3: The City Manager, or his designee, after approval as to form by the City 

Attorney, is authorized to execute any documents which may be necessary for the acceptance of 
this grant, and to accept any and all funds that may be received for this grant. 

 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Chief Mitch Randles, Fire Chief 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND AND FINAL READING: Consider adopting an ordinance amending 
Ordinance No. 2014-4686 to change the name of the franchised company from Serenity EMS, LLC 
d/b/a Ameristat Ambulance to Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a Texas Star Ambulance.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in second and final readings. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On November 6, 2014, the City Council passed Ordinance No. 2014-4686 which 
granted a franchise to Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a Ameristat Ambulance to operate and maintain a non-
emergency ambulance transfer service within the City. The term of the franchise is five years and will 
expire in 2019.  
 
In December 2016, the “Ameristat Ambulance” name was acquired by Acadian Ambulance. Serenity 
EMS, LLC will no longer be doing business as “Ameristat Ambulance.” Serenity will continue to operate 
an office in Temple for its “Medical Air” transports and would like to keep the franchise in place. 
However, Serenity EMS, LLC will be doing business as “Texas Star Ambulance.” Due to the name 
change, an amendment to the original franchise is needed.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The City would receive 3.5% of the company’s total amount billed for ambulance 
service fee and other income derived from the operation of the ambulance service within the City. 
During FY 2016, the City received $22,216.13 from Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a Ameristat Ambulance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Ordinance No. 2014-4686 
Ordinance 
  
  















 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4831 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4686 TO CHANGE THE 
NAME OF THE FRANCHISED COMPANY FROM SERENITY EMS, LLC 
D/B/A AMERISTAT AMBULANCE TO SERENITY EMS, LLC D/B/A 
TEXAS STAR AMBULANCE; PROVIDING A REPEALER; PROVIDING A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on November 6, 2014, Council passed Ordinance No. 2014-4686 which 
granted a franchise to Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a Ameristat Ambulance, to operate and maintain 
a non-emergency ambulance transfer service within the City - the term of the franchise is five 
years and will expire in 2019;  
 

Whereas, in December 2016, the “Ameristat Ambulance” name was acquired by 
Acadian Ambulance and Serenity EMS, LLC will no longer be doing business as “Ameristat 
Ambulance;”  

 
Whereas, Serenity will continue to operate an office in Temple for its “Medical Air” 

transports, and desires to keep the franchise in place and do business as “Texas Star 
Ambulance” - due to the name change, an amendment to the original franchise is necessary;  

 
Whereas, the City receives 3.5% of the company’s total amount billed for ambulance 

service fee and other income derived from the operation of the ambulance service within the 
City; and  

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

  
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council amends Ordinance No. 2014-4686, changing the name of the 
franchised company known as Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a Ameristat Ambulance to Serenity 
EMS, LLC d/b/a Texas Star Ambulance. 
 

Part 3: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 



 2 

 
 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance 
of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day of 

February, 2017. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
  

 

         
CITY COUNCIL ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 
 

03/02/17 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: A-FY-17-05: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the release of the 15' 
wide public utility easements located in Las Colinas Subdivision along the east boundaries of Lots 9, 
10 and 11, Block 1, and Lots 13 and 14, Block 3, to allow the reconfiguration of utility easements for a 
pending replat. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution to be effective upon future replat approval as 
presented in item description releasing an existing the 15' wide public utility easements located in Las 
Colinas Subdivision along the east boundaries of Lots 9, 10 and 11, Block 1, and Lots 13 and 14, Block 
3. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Mr. Mark Rendon, applicant and Las Colinas Subdivision developer, requests this 
release of an existing 15’ public utility easement within Las Colinas Subdivision, located between Lots 
9, 10 and 11, Block 1, and Lots 13 and 14, Block 3, to allow the reconfiguration of utility easements for 
a pending replat.  If approved the pending replat would allow the expansion of each of these residential 
lots without the hindrance of the existing subject utility easement bisecting rear yards. 
 
Utility Providers and Public Works/Engineering Departments were contacted regarding the proposed 
partial 15-foot wide utility easement release/abandonment.  There were no objections to the request.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A     
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
15’ Easement Exhibit 
Las Colinas Subdivision Exhibit 
Resolution 
  







 
 1 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8560-R 
(A-FY-17-05) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF AN EXISTING 15-FOOT 
WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED WITHIN LAS 
COLINAS SUBDIVISION ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARIES OF LOTS 9, 
10 AND 11, BLOCK 1, AND LOTS 13 AND 14, BLOCK 3, TO ALLOW 
THE RECONFIGURATION OF UTILITY EASEMENTS FOR A PENDING 
REPLAT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

__________________________________________________________________________  
 
Whereas, the applicant, Mark Rendon, and developer, Las Colinas Subdivision, 

submitted a request for the release of an existing 15-foot public utility easement located within 
Las Colinas Subdivision along the east boundaries of Lots 9, 10 and 11, Block 1, and Lots 13 
and 14, Block 3, to allow the reconfiguration of utility easements for a pending replat, more 
particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes; 
 

Whereas, if approved, the pending replat will allow the expansion of each of these 
residential lots without the hindrance of the existing subject utility easement bisecting rear yards; 
 

Whereas, Staff contacted all public and private utility service providers, including the 
Public Works Department, and confirmed that the easement may be released, as the 
providers’ responses indicated there are no existing public facilities or utilities in the 
easement and there are no objections to release the easement; and  
  

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this partial release. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City of Temple, Texas releases the existing 15-foot public utility 
easement located within Las Colinas Subdivision along the east boundaries of Lots 9, 10 and 
11, Block 1, and Lots 13 and 14, Block 3, to allow the reconfiguration of utility easements 
for a pending replat, and more particularly described in Exhibit A. 
 

Part 3:  The release of the existing 15-foot public utility easement shall become 
effective upon the approval of the pending replat. 
 

Part 4: Upon request, the City of Temple will provide a copy of this Resolution and 
any other evidence of release of the utility easement, which may be reasonably required. 

 
 
 
 



 
 2 

 
 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on the 2nd day of March, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of March, 2017, by 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
 

Return Recorded Document to: 
City Attorney’s Office 
2 North Main Street, Suite 308 
Temple, TX 76501 



 

sh 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution accepting the TMED South Strategic Master 
Plan. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  On May 7, 2015, the City Council authorized a professional services contact with 
Kasberg, Patrick and Associates, in partnership with TBG Partners, to develop a framework plan to 
help guide the City Council, Reinvestment Zone, property owners, future developers in the creation of 
an overall unified plan for the South TMED area. 
 
A three-day stakeholder charrette and workshop process was held in June 2015 which led to the 
development of a draft TMED South Strategic Master Plan that was presented to the City Council on 
February 16, 2016.  
 
The objective of this effort is to provide a framework plan to help guide city leaders, property owners, 
and future developers in the creation of an overall unified plan made up of a variety of urban districts. 
 
The TMED South Strategic Plan is designed to identify the best land use options and to provide a 
cohesive urban design strategy to unify these areas as well as give guidance regarding future capital 
improvement projects and potential development & redevelopment areas. 
 
The draft TMED South Strategic Master Plan provides analysis of the study of two areas identified in 
the Plan as 1) the Friars Creek Neighborhood and 2) the Southern Study area. The draft Plan also 
includes analysis on the regional impact of TMED including adjacent key assets and impacts such as 
Blackland Prairie Research Center, Temple College, Veterans Administration Hospital, Baylor Scott 
and White, 1st and 3rd Street Corridors, and Downtown Temple.  
 
The draft Plan identifies the TMED South district as having the highest potential in the city to serve the 
needs of young professionals and cultivate the “live, work, play, learn” atmosphere they often seek. 
 
 
 



 

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 
 
The Plan identifies key ideas for each study area including circulation, street framework, and open 
space plans as well as identifies seven key areas in the Southern study area: 1) TMED Gateway, 2) 
5th Street Entry, 3) Community Heart, 4) Residential North, 5) Canyon Creek Roadway, 6) Residential 
South, and 7) Southern Gateway with ideas and proposed projects associated with each area. 
 
The draft Plan encourages the City of Temple, Tax Reinvestment Zone Number One, and the Temple 
Economic Development Corporation to continue strategic partnerships with land owners/developers 
and the Blackland Texas Agrilife Research and Extension Center to create development opportunities 
that benefit all parties. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8561-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE TEMPLE MEDICAL EDUCATION DISTRICT 
SOUTH STRATEGIC MASTER PLAN; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on May 7, 2015, Council authorized a professional services contract with 
Kasberg, Patrick and Associates, in partnership with TBG Partners, to develop a framework plan 
to help guide the City Council, Reinvestment Zone, property owners, and future developers in 
the creation of an overall unified plan for the South Temple Medical Education District 
(“TMED”) area; 
 

Whereas, a three-day stakeholder charrette and workshop process was held in June 2015 
which led to the development of a draft TMED South Strategic Master Plan that was presented to 
Council on February 16, 2016 - the objective was to provide a framework plan to help guide city 
leaders, property owners, and future developers in the creation of an overall unified plan made 
up of a variety of urban districts; 
 
 Whereas, the TMED South Strategic Master Plan is designed to identify the best land use 
options and provide a cohesive urban design strategy to unify these areas as well as give 
guidance regarding future capital improvement projects and potential development & 
redevelopment areas; 
 

Whereas, the TMED South Strategic Master Plan provides analysis of the study of two 
areas identified in the Plan as 1) the Friars Creek Neighborhood and 2) the Southern Study area - 
the Plan also includes analysis on the regional impact of TMED including adjacent key assets 
and impacts such as Blackland Prairie Research Center, Temple College, Veterans 
Administration Hospital, Baylor Scott and White, 1st and 3rd Street Corridors, and Downtown 
Temple;  

 
Whereas, the Plan identifies the TMED South district as having the highest potential in 

the City to serve the needs of young professionals and cultivate the “live, work, play, learn” 
atmosphere they often seek as well as identifying key ideas for each study area including 
circulation, street framework, and open space plans. The Plan identifies seven key areas in the 
Southern study area: 1) TMED Gateway, 2) 5th Street Entry, 3) Community Heart, 4) 
Residential North, 5) Canyon Creek Roadway, 6) Residential South, and 7) Southern Gateway 
with ideas and proposed projects associated with each area; 
 

Whereas, the Plan encourages the City of Temple, Tax Reinvestment Zone Number One, 
and the Temple Economic Development Corporation to continue strategic partnerships with land 
owners/developers and the Blackland Texas Agrilife Research and Extension Center to create 
development opportunities that benefit all parties; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council accepts the Temple Medical Education District South Strategic 
Master Plan attached hereto as Exhibit A, and made a part hereof for all purposes as presented. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 

Item #4(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution declaring the candidates for the May 6, 2017, 
District 2 and District 3 City Councilmember as unopposed and elected to office; thereby canceling the 
election as ordered. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On February 2, 2017, the City Council ordered an Election for May 6, 2017, for both 
the District 2 Councilmember and the District 3 Councilmember.  
 
The Election Code permits the cancellation of an election under certain circumstances.   
 
In order to cancel an election in the City, the City Secretary must certify in writing to the City Council 
that only one candidate’s name is to appear on the ballot for the election in a particular district; that no 
write-in candidates have filed to be placed on the list of write-in candidates for this place; and that no 
proposition is to appear on the ballot.  These certifications have been made on the attached Certification 
of Unopposed Candidates regarding the District 2 and District 3 Councilmember election.   
 
Since there is only one candidate for these seats, Bryant Ward (District 2 candidate) and Susan Long 
(District 3 candidate) the Council can declare the unopposed candidates elected to office, thereby 
canceling the May 6, 2017 election as ordered.  The Order of Cancellation, also attached, will be posted 
on Election Day at the polling place.   The Certificate of Election will be presented to Ms. Long and Mr. 
Ward following the May 6th election date. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding in the amount of $14,800 is appropriated in account 110-1400-511-2517, 
as part of the City Secretary’s budget for the 2017 General Election.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Certificate of Unopposed Candidate 
Order of Cancellation 
Resolution 
 



 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8562-R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, DECLARING THE CANDIDATES FOR THE MAY 6, 2017, 
DISTRICT 2 AND DISTRICT 3 CITY COUNCILMEMBER ELECTION AS 
UNOPPOSED AND ELECTED TO OFFICE, THEREBY CANCELING THE 
ELECTION AS ORDERED; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, on February 2, 2017, the City Council ordered an Election for May 6, 

2017, for both the District 2 Councilmember and the District 3 Councilmember seats;  
 

Whereas, the Election Code permits the cancellation of an election under certain 
circumstances and in order to cancel an election in the City, the City Secretary must certify 
in writing to the City Council that only one candidate’s name is to appear on the ballot for 
the election in a particular district; that no write-in candidates have filed to be placed on the 
list of write-in candidates for this place; and that no proposition is to appear on the ballot; 

 
Whereas, these certifications have been made on Exhibit ‘A’ attached, entitled 

‘Certification of Unopposed Candidates’ regarding the District 2 and District 3 
Councilmember seats; 

 
Whereas, since there is only one candidate for these seats, Bryant Ward (District 2 

candidate) and Susan Long (District 2 candidate), the Council can declare the unopposed 
candidates elected to office, thereby canceling the May 6, 2017, election as ordered; 

 
Whereas, the ‘Order of Cancellation’, attached hereto as Exhibit ‘B,’ will be posted 

on Election Day at polling locations and the Certificate of Election will be presented to Ms. 
Long and Mr. Ward following the May 6th election date; 
 

Whereas, funding for the 2017 General Election was authorized in the City 
Secretary’s fiscal year 2017 budget and appropriated in Account No. 110-1400-511-2517; 
and 

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas has considered the matter 

and deems it in the public interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 



 2 

 
 
 
Part 2: The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas accepts the attached 

‘Certification of Unopposed Status’ of Candidates for District 2 and District 3 
Councilmembers for the May 6, 2017 General Election as submitted by the City Secretary. 
 

Part 3: It is officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and 
purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
       DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
      
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 

 

   
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

03/02/17 
Item #4(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2016-2017. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2016-2017 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The total amount of budget amendments is $330,297. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 
  



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

March 02, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-1800-525-6218 101622 Capital Equipment / Computer Hardware 35,000$         
110-0000-317-0000 Court Restricted Fees / Security Funds 35,000$         

To allocate funding for the purchase of a new security system for the Jamie Clements
Building.

361-3250-551-6978 101623 Capital- Bonds / Summit Fitness 34,198$         
361-1600-512-6979 101624 Capital- Bonds / Legal 25,251$         
361-3400-531-2588 100681 Capital- Bonds / Northwest Loop 363 Improvements 53,009$         
361-0000-315-1116 Reserved for Future Expenditures - Fund Balance 6,440$           

110-3300-519-2584 EDC - Matrix Component 61,517$         
110-3300-519-2584 EDC - O&M Funding Component 2,250$           
110-0000-352-1345 Designated Capital Projects - Unallocated 63,767$         

520-5800-535-2224 Capital < $5,000 / Communication Equipment 1,100$           
520-5800-535-2221 Capital < $5,000 / Computer Equipment 7,000$           
520-5800-535-6210 101625 Capital Equipment / Furniture & Fixtures 15,100$         
520-5800-535-2214 Capital < $5,000 / Buildings & Grounds 3,800$           
520-5000-535-6532 Capital- Special Projects / Contingency 27,000$         

To appropriate contingency funds for the office restructuring/buildout of Utility Business
Office.  

110-2350-540-2516 Other Services / Judgments & Damages 1,895$           
110-0000-461-0554 Insurance Claims / Insurance Claims 1,895$           

To appropriate the final insurance proceeds received from TML in the amount of $1,894.99.
Council authorized the appropriation of the original insurance proceeds from TML in the amount
of $17,699.97 on 09/15/2016.  Solid Waste truck (asset # 13276) hit a light pole at the 
Cinemark Theater in July 2015.

110-2032-521-2211 Capital < $5,000 / Instruments/Special Equipment 2,685$           
110-0000-317-0000 Court Restricted Fees / Technology Fee Funds 2,685$           

To appropriate Technology Restricted Funds to purchase three ticket writers from Barcodes, Inc.

561-5000-535-6532 Capital- Special Projects / Contingency Fund Balance 140,501$       
561-5400-535-6956 101199 Capital- Bonds / Pepper Creek Wastewater Line Extension 80,959$         
561-5200-535-6952 101200 Capital- Bonds / Water Line Replacement - 3rd Street/Irving to Nugent 9,098$           
561-5200-535-6862 100984 Capital- Bonds / Prairie View Road Improvements, Phase I 50,444$         

To move remaining project funding from completed projects back into contingency account
for future use.  

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 330,297$       330,297$       

To appropriate funding for drainage improvements for Summit Fitness Center. This BA
will also appropriate funding for the remodel of Legal's office suites.

Per the 2011 Funding and Operating Agreement between the City of Temple and the
Temple Economic Development Corporation (TEDC), the City shall contribute a portion of
its annual revenue from sales tax to TEDC. The City's contribution shall include a "Base
Contribution" which is comprised of two components: (1) an "Operating Expense
Component" and (2) an "Incentive Matrix Component". This budget adjustment increases
the appropriation for the FY 2017 "Operating Expense Component" by $2,249.38 and
increases the appropriation for the "Incentive Matrix Component" by $61,517.00 for a total
of $63,766.38. The result of this adjustment is due to the amount of economic
development incentives paid by TEDC and a change in the sales tax growth % estimate.
Funds are available in Designated Capital Projects - Unallocated.

1



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

March 02, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit Reconciliation

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 5,257$           
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -                    
Taken From Judgments & Damages -                    
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 5,257$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 560,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 560,000$       

Net Balance Council Contingency 565,257$       

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$                  
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -                    
Taken From Budget Sweep -                    
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                  

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$         
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Taken From Contingency (41,558)         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 8,442$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 112,500$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 112,500$       

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 120,942$       

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 28,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 28,300$         

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 28,300$         

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 24,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 24,300$         

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 24,300$         

2



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

March 02, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Carry forward from Prior Year 14,947           
Added to Contingency Sweep Account 22,397           
Taken From Contingency -                    

Net Balance Fed/State Grant Fund Contingency 37,344$         

3



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8563-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2016-2017 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on the 26th day of August, 2016, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2016-2017 fiscal year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2016-2017 City Budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and 
correct legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, 
Texas, and they are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution 
as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2:  The City Council approves amending the 2016-2017 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/02/17 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending Ordinance Number 2016-4796 which amended the Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 2,  
Article II, “Code of Ethics,” to change the effective date of the ordinance to October 1, 2017. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance on first reading as presented in item description and 
conduct a public hearing. Second reading will be scheduled for the March 16, 2017, City Council 
meeting.  

ITEM SUMMARY: Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article II is titled “Code of Ethics.” The previous 
code was adopted in the late 1970’s and applies to employees and “officers” of the City which includes 
Councilmembers and any “appointive member of a board, commission or committee set up by 
ordinance, Charter or state law.” The previous code included ten “standards of conduct” that employees 
and officers were required to follow. The Article also established certain penalties for violation of those 
standards. The penalties included “expulsion, reprimand, removal from office or discharge, whichever 
is applicable.”  

In 2015, the City Manager created an “Ethics Committee” which consisted of City Staff and citizens. 
The task of the Committee was to review the language in Chapter 2 and propose possible amendments. 
After the Committee finished its review and provided draft amendments, City Staff continued to research 
Ethics Codes in other cities and discuss the internal procedures for handling possible complaints for 
Ethics Code violations. In February, 2016, the City Council received a presentation on the proposed 
changes and possible ways to investigate and enforce violations.  

After further discussion at a Council workshop in May, 2016, Staff proposed extensive amendments to 
Chapter 2, Article II. The amendments were presented to Council at the July 21, 2016 meeting and 
were approved by Council at the August 4, 2016 meeting. The amendments replaced the previous 
language in Article II.  

The amendments adopted in August, 2016, made “city officials” and “employees” subject to the Ethics 
Code. “City officials” are defined as “a public official, either elected or appointed, that serves the City 
as a Councilmember or board member for any of the City boards or commissions.” “Board or 
Commission” refers to City boards and commissions that have quasi-judicial authority or responsibilities 
beyond those that are advisory in nature. Members of the following boards and commissions are subject 
to the Ethics Code: 



03/02/17 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

• Building & Standards Commission
• Building Board of Appeals
• Civil Service Commission
• Development Standards Review Board
• Planning & Zoning Commission
• Temple Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors
• Reinvestment Zone Number One Board of Directors; and
• Zoning Board of Adjustment

City employees include all City personnel, whether full-time or part-time, including those appointed to their 
positions by the City Council in accordance with the City Charter. Complaints against City employees 
would be addressed as set forth in the City of Temple Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual.  

The amendments included several standards of conduct, similar to those in the previous code, which 
would, among other things, require the disclosure of conflicts of interest, prohibit the sharing of confidential 
information, prohibit the unfair advancement of private interests, and prohibit outside employment which 
is incompatible with the city official’s duties. 

The amendments created an “Ethics Review Board” consisting of five members and two alternate 
members. The members of the Ethics Review Board were appointed by Council on September 15, 2016. 
The first meeting of the Ethics Review Board was held on November 21, 2016.  

The amendments also established a detailed complaint and review process. A complainant would be 
required to submit a written, sworn complaint to the City Secretary’s Office alleging a violation of the Ethics 
Code by a city official. The complaint must state the name of the city official or employee who is the subject 
of the complaint, specify the code provision alleged to have been violated, provide the date of the violation, 
and include a statement of the facts surrounding the allegation. Complaints must be made within 18 
months from the date of the alleged violation. Anonymous complaints would not be accepted. The 
amendments included a detailed process for reviewing, investigating, and ruling on complaints.  

The purpose of the proposed amendments was to promote confidence in the governance of the City and 
thereby enhance the City’s ability to function effectively by discouraging conduct which is incompatible 
with the best interests of the City. For these reasons, Staff recommended approval of the amendments to 
Chapter 2, Article II. 

Over the past several weeks, concerns with the amendments adopted in August, 2016, have been 
raised. They have asked Staff and Council to consider amendments to the Code of Ethics. To give Staff 
and Council time to draft and consider amendments, it is proposed that the effective date of Ordinance 
No. 2016-4796 be changed to October 1, 2017. Ordinance No. 2016-4796 replaced the previous 
language in Article II with the amended language discussed above. The ordinance became effective 
immediately. If Council amends the effective date to October 1, 2017, the previous language in Article II 
will become effective again and will stay in effect until October 1, 2017 or other amendments are 
adopted.  

The previous Code of Ethics and the amendments adopted in August, 2016 are attached to this agenda 
item.  



03/02/17 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Ordinance No. 2016-4796 
Previous Code of Ethics 
Ordinance 



























































“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

1 
 

 Chapter 2 
 

 ADMINISTRATION 
 

 ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 

 

Sec. 2-1. City seal. 

 

 The seal of the city shall be the coat of arms of the State of Texas in a circle with the 

words "City of Temple, State of Texas" engraved around the margin thereof. 

 

Sec. 2-2. Rental or sale of city property or materials. 

 

 It shall be unlawful for any officer or employee of the city to rent any equipment 

belonging to the city to any person, or to sell any materials belonging to the city, unless such 

rental or sale is previously authorized by the city manager. 

 

Sec. 2-3. Change orders. 

 

 Change orders involving a decrease or increase in cost of twenty-five thousand dollars 

($25,000.00) or less in contracts for the construction of public works or for the purchase of 

materials, equipment, and supplies shall be approved by the city manager or his designee for 

the City of Temple, Texas. 

 

Sec. 2-4. City Attorney--Qualifications. 

 

 The city attorney shall be a licensed lawyer and competent to discharge the duties 

required of him by the Charter and ordinances of the city. 

 

Sec. 2-5. Same--Duties. 

 

 It shall be the duty of the city attorney to serve the city council, to advise it as a council, 

and each of the councilmen respectively, from time to time, with respect to the provisions 

and a proper interpretation of the Charter, and the powers and authority of the council as the 

governing body for the city, and to attend the meetings of the council. The city attorney is 

also charged with the duty to draw all ordinances and resolutions that may be passed on by 

the council, and to represent the city in all of its litigation in the courts, and to discharge 

such other duties as are usually imposed upon city attorneys, including advice and counsel 

from time to time to the city manager. 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

2 
 

 

 

Sec. 2-6. Same--Opinions requested by appointive boards, committees, etc. 

 

 The city attorney shall, at the request of any appointive board, committee or commission 

of the City of Temple, Texas, give written or oral opinions upon any question touching the 

public interest and concerning the official duties of said board, committee or commission. 

No request for an opinion of the city attorney shall be made by any board, committee or 

commission except upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the members thereof present 

and voting at a meeting open to the public. Every such request shall be made through the 

chairperson of said board, committee or commission. 

 

Sec. 2-7. City engineer to ascertain monuments, make surveys, etc. 

 

 It shall be the duty of the city engineer to ascertain the established monuments of the 

city, and from them to extend surveys thereof and establish others and to locate, establish 

and survey all private property, streets and alleys where the interests of the city are 

involved, within the territorial limits of the city, when so called on or required to do so. 

 

Sec. 2-8. Legal defense and indemnification of city officers and employees. 
 

 (a) Definitions. For purposes of this section the term "officer" shall include any elected 

or appointed official of the City, and the term "employee" shall include all employees of the 

City, whether under civil service or not; including firemen and policemen. 

 

 (b) Indemnification. Any officer or employee who is liable for the payment of any 

claims or damages, excluding punitive damages, arising out of the course and scope of 

employment shall be entitled to indemnification by the City provided that the acts or 

omissions resulting in such liability were done in good faith and without malicious or 

felonious intent. For the purposes of this section, the term, "arising out of the course and 

scope of employment" shall not include any action which occurs during a period of time in 

which the officer or employee is engaged in outside employment or is rendering contractual 

services to someone other than the City. Whether the acts were done in good faith, without 

malicious or felonious intent, and within the course and scope of employment shall be 

determined by the City, and such determination shall be final for the purposes of the 

representation and indemnity of this section; provided, however, that in the event such 

representation and indemnity have been denied by the City, if upon a trial on the merits the 

City determines that the officer or employee was acting in good faith, without malicious or 

felonious intent and within the scope of employment the indemnification hereunder shall be 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

3 
 

granted and reasonable legal expenses incurred in the defense of the claim reimbursed. The 

City shall not be liable for any settlement of any such claim or suit effected without its 

consent, and the City reserves the right to assert any defense and make any settlement of any 

claim or suit that it deems expedient. 

 

 (c) Representation in actions. The City shall have the right and duty to provide legal 

representation through the city attorney, or in its discretion through the selection of outside 

legal counsel, to any officer or employee sued in connection with any claim for damages or 

other civil action against such person arising out of the course and scope of employment, 

provided that such officer or employee is entitled to indemnification as set forth in this 

section. Such legal representation shall be provided at no cost to the officer or employee, 

and any officer or employee may have his or her own counsel assist in the defense at the 

sole expense of the officer or employee. The officer or employee shall cooperate fully with 

the City in preparation and presentation of the case, and the failure to cooperate shall waive 

such officer's or employee's right to representation and indemnity under this section. 

 

 (d) City's defenses. Nothing in this section shall be construed as waiving the City's 

defense of governmental immunity to it or its employees or officers in any action brought 

against the City or such officer or employee. For any suit or claim arising under the Texas 

Tort Claims Act, the indemnity provided by this section shall be limited to the statutory 

limits applicable to the City provided in said Act, as amended. 

 

 (e) Notice. The provisions of this section shall apply only where the City has been 

given notice of the action brought against the city officer or employee within seven (7) 

calendar days of service of process upon the officer or employee. 

 

 (f) Disciplinary actions. Nothing in this section shall prevent the City from taking 

any disciplinary action against any officer or employee for conduct defended or 

indemnified by the City under this section, either before or after conclusion of the civil 

suit. 

 

  (g) Suits in behalf of the City. Nothing in this section shall require the City to 

indemnify any officer or employee for recoveries made against him or her in suits by or on 

behalf of the City. 

 

Secs. 2-10 – 2-60. Reserved. 

 

 

 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

4 
 

ARTICLE II. CODE OF ETHICS 

 

Sec. 2-61. Declaration of policy. 

 

 It is hereby declared to be the policy of the City of Temple that the proper 

operation of democratic government requires that public officials and employees be 

independent, impartial and responsible only to the people of the City of Temple; that the 

governmental decisions and policy be made in the proper channels of the governmental 

structure; that no officer, employee or member of any standing committee or board should 

have any interest, financial or otherwise, direct or indirect, or engage in any business 

transaction or professional activity, or incur any obligation of any nature which is in 

conflict with the proper discharge of his duties in the public interest and that public office 

not be used for personal gain. To implement such a policy, the city council deems it 

advisable to enact a code of ethics for all officials and employees, whether elected or 

appointed, paid or unpaid, to serve as a guide for official conduct of the City's public 

servants. 

 

Sec. 2-62. Definitions. 

 

 In this article, unless the context otherwise requires: 

 

(1)  Employee means any person employed by the City of Temple whether under 

civil service or not, including those individuals on a part-time basis, but 

shall be extended to apply to any independent contractor. 

 

(2) Officer means any member of the city council and any appointive member 

of a board, commission or committee set up by ordinance, Charter or state 

law on a permanent basis but does not include members of a board, 

commission or committee that functions only in an advisory or study 

capacity and which does not have the power to make findings as to the 

rights of specific parties. 

 

Sec. 2-63. Standards of conduct. 
 

 No officer or employee of the City of Temple shall: 

 

(1) Accept any gift or favor from any person, firm or corporation that might 

reasonably tend to influence him in the discharge of his official duties, or 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

5 
 

grant in the discharge of his official duties any improper favor, service or 

thing of value. 

 

(2) Use his official position to secure special privileges or exemptions for 

himself and others. 

 

(3) Grant any special consideration, treatment or advantage to any citizen, 

individual, business organization or group beyond that which is available to 

every other citizen, individual, business organization or group. This shall 

not prohibit the granting of fringe benefits to city employees as a part of 

their contract of employment or as an added incentive to the securing or 

retaining of employees. 

 

 (4) Disclose information that could adversely affect the property, government 

or affairs of the city, or directly or indirectly use any information gained by 

reason of his official position or employment for his own personal gain or 

benefit or for the private interest of others. 

 

(5) Transact any business on behalf of the City in his official capacity with any 

business entity with which he is an officer, agent or member, or in which he 

owns an interest of ten (10%) percent or more. In the event that such a 

circumstance should arise, in the case of an officer, he shall abstain from 

voting on the matter, or in the case of an employee, he shall turn the matter 

over to his superior for reassignment, state the reasons for doing so and 

have nothing further to do with the matter involved. 

 

(6) Accept other employment or engage in outside activities incompatible with 

the full and proper discharge of his duties and responsibilities with the City, 

or which might impair his independent judgment in the performance of his 

public duty. 

 

(7) Receive any fee or compensation for his services as an officer or employee 

of the City from any source other than the City, except as may be otherwise 

provided by law. This shall not prohibit his performing the same or other 

services for a private organization that he performs for the City if there is no 

conflict with his City duties and responsibilities. 

 

 (8) 

(a) No city councilman or employee shall represent, directly or indirectly, or 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

6 
 

appear in behalf of private interests of others before any agency of the 

City or any City board, commission or committee, nor shall he represent 

any private interest of others in any action or proceeding involving the 

City, nor participate on behalf of others in any litigation to which the 

City might be a party, nor shall he ever accept any retainer or 

compensation that is contingent upon a specific action taken by the City 

or any of its agencies.  

 

  (b) No other officer shall represent, directly or indirectly, or appear in 

behalf of the private interests of others before the board, commission or 

committee of which he is a member, or before the council or board 

which has appellate jurisdiction over the board, commission or 

committee of which he is a member with regard to matters that may be 

the subject of specific action by any such body. 

 

(9) Use city supplies, equipment or facilities for any purpose other than the 

conduct of official city business. 

 

(10) Engage in any dishonest or criminal act or any other conduct prejudicial to 

the government of the City of Temple or that reflects discredit upon the 

government of the City of Temple. 

 

Sec. 2-64. Personal or private interest. 
 

Any officer, whether elected or appointed, who has either a personal or private 

interest in any matter pending before his committee or board, shall refrain from 

discussing the same with any other member of the committee or board and shall not vote 

thereon. 

 

Sec. 2-65. Penalty. 
 

 The failure of any employee to comply with or the violation by any employee of one or 

more of the foregoing standards of conduct which apply to him shall constitute grounds for 

expulsion, reprimand, removal from office or discharge, whichever is applicable. In the case 

of an employee of the city, disciplinary action and appeals therefrom shall be in 

conformance with procedures established by the City Charter and personnel rules and 

regulations. In the case of a city councilman, the matter shall be handled as provided for in 

the City Charter. In the case of members of other boards or commissions other than the city 

council, the matter shall be decided by the city council. 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

7 
 

 

Sect. 2-66 – 2-111. Reserved. 

 

ARTICLE III. PAYMENT BY CHECK OR CREDIT CARD 
 

Section 2-112. Fee for returned checks. 
 

The Director of Finance is hereby authorized and directed to assess and collect a 

fee on all checks issued to the City of Temple, Texas, or any of its departments, which 

checks are returned by the bank upon which they are drawn. The amount of the fee shall 

be established by resolution of the City Council. It shall be unlawful for any person who 

issues such a check to fail or refuse to pay the fee as authorized here. 

 

Section 2-113. Postdated checks. 

 

Postdated checks are not acceptable for payment of any funds owed to the City of 

Temple, Texas, or any of its departments. Upon receipt of a postdated check the City may 

either return the check to the sender or maker or immediately present the check for 

payment. Any person who makes payment to the City with a postdated check assumes the 

risk of overdraft and all consequences of overdraft if the postdated check is paid early. 

 

Sec. 2-114. Payment of fees or costs by credit cards. 

 

 All municipal officers, officials and employees who collect feels, fines, court costs or 

other charges, including, but not limited to, the Director of Finance, Clerk of Municipal 

Court, Director of  the Civic Center and the Building Inspector are hereby authorized to 

accept payment of any such fees, fines, court costs or other charges by credit card. Provided, 

however, ad valorem taxes shall not be payable in anything other than currency of the 

United States or by a check or money order or other method consistent with Section 31.06 

of the Property Tax Code (V.A.T.C.S.) nor shall credit card payment be authorized if it is 

otherwise prohibited by law. 

 

Sec. 2-115. Service charge. 
 

 There is hereby established a service charge, which shall be the same as the fee charged 

by the City of Temple for the collection of a check drawn on an account with insufficient 

funds, which shall be collected from the person owing the fee, fine, court cost or other 

charge, if that person's payment by credit card is not honored for any reason by the credit 

card company on which the funds are drawn. This fee shall be in addition to the original fee, 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

8 
 

fine, court costs or other charge and is for the collection of the original amount. The 

municipal officer, employee or official collecting the service charge shall deposit the fee in 

the general fund. 

 

Sect. 2-116. Encumbrance of credit cards; fee. 
 

 Any municipal officer, employee or official who collects fees, fines, court costs or other 

charges is hereby authorized to contract with the company issuing credit cards to collect and 

seize credit cards issued by the company that are returned or otherwise unauthorized. All 

such contracts shall be approved by the City Council and the City Attorney. The Director of 

Finance shall establish a reasonable fee to be charged the credit card company for return of 

the credit cards. The municipal officer, employee or official collecting the fee shall deposit 

the fee in the general fund. 

 

Sec. 2-117 – 2-169. Reserved. 

 

ARTICLE IV. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Section 2-170. Policy. 

 

(a) It is the goal of the City Council to provide the requisite municipal services to 

its citizens most cost-effectively in terms of human, material, and financial resources. 

 

(b) The City Council recognizes that it has a responsibility to provide a safe 

working environment for its employees and that each employee must pursue the highest 

of standards in his or her assigned activities and that all municipal employees must 

recognize that the well-being of persons involved and the protection of our physical 

resources are as important as the activity and work being performed. 

 

(c) The City Council, acting as a trustee of municipal funds and assets, recognizing 

that there is a constant exposure to risk of loss from occurrences involving damage to 

property, injury to employees and other individuals, and unforeseen liabilities imposed by 

law or assumed by contract, hereby establishes this policy for the intensive management 

of municipal risks, and directs that this policy be implemented in stages over the next 

several months. This policy applies to all pure risks, such as fire, liability suits, theft, 

workers compensation, and other risks of property and liability losses, both direct and 

indirect. It specifically does not apply to deliberately assumed loss of employee benefits, 

depreciation or normal obsolescence. The policies contained herein supersede any 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

9 
 

policies currently in force and effect and to the extent that these policies are in conflict 

with current policies these policies shall control. 

 

Sec. 2-171. Office of risk management. 
 

 There is hereby created an office of risk management within current personnel, 

material, and financial constraints for the purpose of recognizing, avoiding, preventing 

and controlling the chance of resource losses by whatever means feasible. 

 

Sec. 2-172. Appointment and duties of risk manager. 
 

 The City Manager is hereby authorized to appoint a risk manager who will be 

responsible to the City Manager and whose duties will include, but not be limited to, the 

overall development, supervision, coordination, and implementation of the City of 

Temple's risk management plans and programs. 

 

Sec. 2-173. Risk Management Committee. 
 

 The City Manager shall appoint a risk management committee. The committee's 

duties and responsibilities are to oversee the City's risk management plans and programs, 

provide general policy guidance to all City departments, evaluate and make 

recommendations to the City Manager to protect the interests of the City, its employees 

and citizens, as well as to review the City's operations to insure adequate protection from 

loss. 

 

Sec. 2-174. Risk management techniques. 

 

The Office of Risk Management, the Risk Management Committee, and all City 

departments will be guided by the following policies and techniques: 

 

(a) Because of the need to protect the assets of this municipality against 

catastrophic loss (or to provide financial restitution if such loss should occur) and the 

expense involved in such protection, risk management is a critical part of the total 

management of the City of Temple, Texas. 

 

(b) Risk management is a specialized discipline intended to provide the decision-

making management level with data pertinent to the identification, analysis, evaluation, 

and alternative treatment of exposures to loss through chance events, for both program 

review and planning new undertakings. In these management areas, the City of Temple 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

10 
 

will utilize the services of qualified risk management specialists either in its own staff or 

through the use of risk management outside consultants, as required. Provided, however, 

consultants shall be hired only after approval by the City Council. 

 

(c) The following techniques of risk management will be employed by the City of 

Temple, Texas. 

 

1. Recognition. The recognition function will be to identify, analyze, 

and evaluate all exposure to loss through chance events, either in 

existence or subsequently created, that involve loss potentials of 

significant amounts either in one event or in the aggregate annually. 

In this municipality, acceptable loss exposures will be determined by 

the Risk Management Committee. From time to time this Committee 

shall assess such loss exposures and may modify them in accordance 

with current or anticipated fiscal limitations. 

 

2. Avoidance. The anticipated financial rewards for assuming any 

exposures to loss should exceed or at least be approximately equal to 

potential loss. The City of Temple, Texas, will avoid incurring 

disproportionate exposures to loss in contractual agreements. All 

new undertakings shall be evaluated carefully and those already in 

existence shall be re-evaluated periodically for the purpose of 

determining if any loss exposure can be avoided. 

 

3.  Loss Prevention. Once it is decided that a loss exposure should be 

retained (or transferred) and not avoided, it is the policy of this 

municipality to try to utilize loss prevention techniques wherever 

possible, consistent with the costs involved. It is the belief of this 

municipality that it is preferable to attempt to prevent losses before 

considering other techniques for handling loss exposures. 

 

The reduction of losses depends primarily upon a careful review of 

all operations, equipment, and facilities to identify potential hazards 

and to eliminate or reduce them to their practical minimum. This 

review must be a constant process--in the design, construction, and 

operating stages on the part of all management and supervisory 

personnel. Periodic safety inspections should serve as an overall 

second look in all the above stages. The essential part of these 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

11 
 

reviews is the corrective actions taken as a result of the 

recommendations enacted. 

 

4.  Retention. Generally, the City of Temple, Texas will retain a loss 

exposure under the following circumstances. 

 

 a. when the amount of annual potential loss is relatively so small 

that it may conveniently be treated as a normal operating 

expense; or 

 

 b. when 

 

 (1) the probability of loss (frequency) is so great that loss 

is almost certain to occur; and 

 

 (2) the rates for insurance or other transfer mechanisms are 

disproportionately high; and 

 

 (3) potential loss amounts are within the financial ability 

of the City to retain; and 

 

 (4) no necessary insurance services are required; or 

 

 c. When the probability of occurrence is so remote that the 

ordinarily prudent businessman would not incur any amount 

of premium expense for insurance; or 

 

 d. When insurance is not available, or only available at 

prohibitive cost. 

 

5.  Noninsurance Transfer. In all contractual relationships, the City of Temple, 

Texas, will transfer to others all exposures to loss from chance events 

appropriate to the transaction and relationship of the parties. This means 

that the City of Temple, Texas, will consider before contractually 

transferring a loss exposure to another party, that party's ability to assume 

the potential loss, ability to control the loss, and the customs and traditions 

of the parties and the industries involved. In the absence of adequate net 

worth of other parties, contractual transfers shall be supported by insurance 

of the indemnitor and evidence thereof required. Whenever a choice exists 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

12 
 

among two or more methods of accomplishing a business purpose, the 

opportunity to transfer the exposure shall be given appropriate 

consideration. 

 

6. Insurance Transfer. The City of Temple, Texas, will purchase insurance 

under the following circumstances: 

 

 a. when required by law or contract; or 

 

b. when the amount of potential loss is too large to be safely 

retained (measured against assets, operating income, earnings, 

and cash flow); or 

 

 c. when the probable annual cost variation is unacceptable and 

insurance is available on acceptable terms; or 

 

 d. when insurance can better or more economically provide 

accessory services required, such as inspection, claims 

handling, legal qualifications, and loss prevention. 

 

7. Joint Insurance Transfer and Retention. The City of Temple, Texas will 

combine insurance transfer and retention through the use of deductibles, 

franchises, excess insurance, and retrospective rating plans when relatively 

low loss amount exposures can be safely retained. 

 

Sec. 2-175. Dissemination and implementation. 

 

 This risk management policy has been developed and will be disseminated by the risk 

manager to be used as a tool to help all department heads and supervisory personnel to 

minimize the City's exposure to loss, whether these losses be in the form of funds expended, 

theft, lost productivity, personal injury, vehicular accidents, inconvenience, pain and 

suffering, or in other areas. This office of risk management will make itself available to 

assist all departments in implementing these policies by providing such advice, guidance, or 

counseling as required. 

 

Sect. 2-176. Departmental operation. 
 

 The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, recognizes that no risk management 

plan, policy, or statement for the City will be any more effective than the weakest link in its 



“Old Code of Ethics” 

 

13 
 

chain of command. Therefore, department heads and other supervisory personnel will be 

required to cooperate fully with the risk manager and the risk management committee to 

implement and enforce the risk management plan and policy. 

 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4832 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2016-4796 WHICH 
AMENDED THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE II, 
“CODE OF ETHICS,” TO CHANGE THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE TO OCTOBER 1, 2017; PROVIDING A REPEALER; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article II, titled “Code of Ethics,” was 
previously adopted in the late 1970’s and applies to employees and “officers” of the City 
which includes Councilmembers and any “appointive member of a board, commission or 
committee set up by ordinance, Charter or state law;” 
 

Whereas, the previous code included ten “standards of conduct” that employees and 
officers were required to follow and the Article established certain penalties for violation of 
those standards - penalties included “expulsion, reprimand, removal from office or discharge, 
whichever is applicable;” 

 
Whereas, in 2015, the City Manager created an “Ethics Committee” which consisted 

of City Staff and citizens which were tasked to review the language in Chapter 2 and propose 
possible amendments - after the Committee finished its review and provided draft 
amendments, City Staff continued to research Ethics Codes in other cities and discuss the 
internal procedures for handling possible complaints for Ethics Code violations; 

 
Whereas, in February, 2016, the City Council received a presentation on the proposed 

changes and possible ways to investigate and enforce violations and after further discussion at 
a Council workshop in May, 2016, Staff proposed extensive amendments to Chapter 2, 
Article II; 
 

Whereas, the amendments were presented to Council at the July 21, 2016, meeting 
and were approved by Council at the August 4, 2016, meeting - the amendments replaced the 
previous language in Article II which made “city officials” and “employees” subject to the 
Ethics Code; 

 
Whereas, “City officials” are defined as “a public official, either elected or appointed, 

that serves the City as a Councilmember or board member for any of the City boards or 
commissions” and “Board or Commission” refers to City boards and commissions that have 
quasi-judicial authority or responsibilities beyond those that are advisory in nature; 
 

Whereas, the amendments included several standards of conduct, similar to those in 
the previous code, which would, among other things, require the disclosure of conflicts of 
interest, prohibit the sharing of confidential information, prohibit the unfair advancement of 
private interests, prohibit outside employment which is incompatible with the city official’s 
duties, and established a detailed complaint and review process; 



 2 

 
 

Whereas, the purpose of the proposed amendments was to promote confidence in the 
governance of the City and thereby enhance the City’s ability to function effectively by 
discouraging conduct which is incompatible with the best interests of the City. For these 
reasons, Staff recommended approval of the amendments to Chapter 2, Article II; 
 

Whereas, over the past several weeks, concerns have been expressed regarding the 
amendments adopted in August, 2016 and Staff is requesting time to review and address those 
concerns; 

 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council amend the effective date of Ordinance No. 2016-

4796 which amended the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article II, “Code of Ethics,” to 
change the effective date of the ordinance to October 1, 2017; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council amends the effective date of Ordinance Number 2016-4796 
to October 1, 2017. 
 

Part 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since 
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this 
ordinance of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 



 3 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 

March, 2017. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of March, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 7 

DEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Dessie Redmond, Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-03: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from the Neighborhood Services zoning district to the Planned 
Development-Neighborhood Services zoning district on 7.35 +/- acres, 1-lot, 1-block non-residential 
subdivision, proposed for a mini-storage facility, situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 
692, Bell County, City of Temple, Texas, located at 5785 South 31st Street. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their February 6, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted two to six to deny a motion for approval of the proposed rezoning. 
Therefore, the motion failed.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval with conditions for 
a rezoning from the NS zoning district to the PD-NS zoning district for the following reasons: 

1. That the proposed Development Plan/Site Plan has demonstrated compliance with the 
provisions of the Planned Development Criteria as required by Unified Development Code 
(UDC) Section 3.4.5; 

2. That the request complies with UDC, Section 5.3.8 that states for a mini-storage facility the 
size of each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 

3. The proposed mini-storage facility will be adequately buffered and screened from adjacent 
residential uses; 

4. The request is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Auto-Urban Commercial 
character district designation; 

5. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning and anticipated retail and service 
uses along this section of South 31st Street;  

6. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan and Trails Master Plan; and   
7. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.  

 
Staff recommends approval of the request, subject to the following conditions:  

1. Substantial compliance with the Development/Site Plan;  
2. Substantial compliance with the Landscape Plans and Elevations; 
3. That the remaining 2.16 +/- acres will require a separate public development plan review by 

the Planning & Zoning Commission with approval by City Council prior to any future 
development;   

4. Each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 



 

03/02/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 7 

 
5. A six foot wide sidewalk is required to be built along South 31st Street prior to the opening of 

the business; 
6. Outward-facing building facades (as shown in attachment: Outward-Facing Building Facades 

Graphic) related to the mini-storage buildings shall have exteriors containing a combination 
of Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), split-faced concrete masonry units (CMUs), 
brick and accent metal panels as shown in the Elevations submittal; 

7. Preservation of most trees within the subject property (perimeter and interior), based on 
variety and maturity, must be considered; 

8. A continuous 10-15 foot wide landscape buffer is required between residential and 
nonresidential uses. The buffer must be installed prior to any nonresidential development 
and maintained per UDC, Section 7.4.8. Maintenance and Irrigation; 

9. A continuous 20 foot wide landscape buffer is required along the Georgetown Railroad. This 
buffer must be installed prior to the completion of Phase II and maintained per UDC, Section 
7.4.8. Maintenance and Irrigation; 

10.  All landscaping required by the UDC shall meet or exceed UDC, Section 7.4 Landscaping; 
11.  Any fencing along South 31st Street shall be decorative metal; 
12.  This PD runs with the land and is not affected by the transfer of property owners; 
13.  The maximum building wall height is 21 feet (top of wall and per submitted elevations); and 
14.  The applicant shall comply with all Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 

requirements. 
15. All lighting associated with the proposal shall be shielded to prevent light trespass.  

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, Joshua Valenta with Matkin-Hoover Engineering, Donald Jones with 
Donald Jones Consulting and Wes Jackson of RVOS Farm Mutual Insurance (property owner), 
requests a rezoning from the NS zoning district to the PD-NS zoning district for a mini storage facility. 
The subject property is 7.35 +/- acres and undeveloped (attachments: Site and Surrounding Photos) 
and currently in the NS zoning district. There are residential and non-residential uses that are permitted 
by right in the NS zoning district. A summary table of the uses permitted, but not limited to, is in the 
attachments (Summary of Uses Permitted in the NS Zoning District).  
 
February 6, 2017 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 
During the meeting the Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Commissioners deliberated on my topics including 
drainage, site characteristics, future development in the area, history of the site and the abutting 
Georgetown Railroad. The applicant explained the project and the process his team has taken with the 
project. During the public hearing, many citizens expressed opposition to the project. A motion for 
approval, per staff recommendation, was made. However, the motion failed with a 2:6 vote (attached 
DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt).  
 
December 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 
Z-FY-017-03 was heard at the December 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Commission meeting. 
During this meeting there was discussion on the site characteristics and how the proposal works with 
the constraints (easements) on the property. There was also discussion on tree preservation and 
lighting. A public hearing was opened and several of the property owners around the subject property 
spoke in opposition of the project (attachments: December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes). The P&Z 
Commission made a motion to continue the case until February 6, 2017 and directed Staff to work with 
the applicant and property owners.  



 

03/02/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 7 

January 18, 2017 Public Meeting 
On January 18, 2017 staff facilitated a public meeting between the applicant and property owners. At 
this meeting, approximately 12 people signed the attendance sheet (attachments: Public Meeting – 
January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet). The applicant presented revised plans and a Preliminary drainage 
study (this study is available for review in the Planning Department). 
 
February 2, 2017 
Based on feedback from staff and the surrounding property owners, the applicant submitted revised 
documents including a site plan, elevations and landscape plans (see attachments). The applicant also 
submitted a rendering of the project (attachments: Temple Storage Rendering).  
 
Site Characteristics 
There are several easements within the subject property (attachment: Surveyor’s Sketch). These 
easements restrict the site from many uses that are allowed by right or with a conditional use permit in 
the NS zoning district. Staff believes that the mini-storage facility use is a compatible use with the 
existing constraints and easements on the site.  
 
Proposal 
In the UDC, Section 11.2 defines a mini-storage facility as “a building or group of buildings consisting 
of individualized shelters of various sizes for rent or lease for the purpose of providing protection of 
commodities stored in the mini-storage warehouse.” UDC, Section 5.3.8 states that for a mini-storage 
warehouse the size of each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet.   
 
This proposal includes a mini-storage facility as defined by the UDC, Section 11.2 and does not include 
storage units greater than 2000 cubic feet and therefore, is compliant with UDC, Section 5.3.8. The 
proposal includes a range of units between 25 square feet and 200 square feet in either climate 
controlled or non-climate controlled capacities. There will be a total of approximately 350 self-storage 
units. The amount of each size of unit has not yet been determined. The proposal also includes a Phase 
I and a Phase II. The timeline for each Phase has yet to be established and will be determined by 
construction costs and tenant occupancy. There is approximately 2.16 acres remaining within the site 
that is not included in this Development/Site Plan design. Currently, the applicant has stated their 
intentions are to plat the site into two lots at some point in the future. Therefore, this remainder of the 
site will remain as natural vegetation until (and if) there is future development on the remainder 2.16 
acres. This future phasing will require a separate public site plan approval, which is stated on the 
Development/Site Plan. 
 
Planned Development 
UDC Section 3.4.1 defines a PD as: 

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special 
design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to 
surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  

 
Per UDC Section, 3.4.3.A, a PD is subject to review and approval by City Council as part of the 
rezoning. As opposed to a standard rezoning, conditions of approval can be included into the rezoning 
Ordinance. The Development/Site Plan that has been submitted, provides the boundaries and the 
layout for the proposed building footprints for the mini-storage facility, parking and traffic circulation 
areas. 



 

03/02/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 7 

 
Enhancements are typically an expectation of a PD to off-set the unique manner of the request. While 
staff has worked closely with the applicant, enhancements for the site are in the form of screening, 
buffering, landscaping, enhanced exterior building materials and have been discussed and agreed 
upon with the applicant and are described as follows: 

 
Screening / Buffering: A continuous 20 foot wide landscape buffer along the inactive Georgetown 
Railroad is proposed (attachment: Revised Development/Site Plan). The City owns an easement 
along the Georgetown Railroad with future plans of a “rails to trails” amenity to the city’s trail system. 
This landscape buffer is in addition to any UDC, Section 7.7 Screening or Buffering requirements.  
 
Landscaping: UDC, Section 7.4.4 states that a developer is required to provide a minimum 
landscaped area of five percent of a lot. This proposal includes approximately 39 percent of the total 
site to be landscaped and thus significantly exceeds the percentage required by the UDC. The 
Landscape Plan also includes 15 frontage trees (as required by the UDC) along with other trees, 
shrubs, groundcovers and ornamental grass, which also exceeds requirements (attachments: 
Revised Landscape Plans).  
 
Exterior Building Materials: Exterior building materials are proposed which provide close to 100% 
masonry. Materials consist of a combination of Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), which 
meets the approved listing of standard building materials listed in UDC Sec. 7.8.3F, as well as brick, 
split-faced CMUs and accent metal paneling. The applicant submitted elevations with varying 
amounts of masonry accent (attachment: Revised Elevations). In order to maintain a consistent 
architectural design throughout, a recommended condition of approval is: “All exterior building 
facades related to the mini-storage buildings shall have exteriors containing a combination of 
Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), split-faced concrete masonry units, brick and accent 
metal panels as shown in the Elevations submittal.” 
 

Texas Department of Transportation 
The applicant has been in preliminary discussions with Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), 
which included the existing non-access easement required by TxDOT as shown on the final plat 
(attachment: RVOS Addition Final Plat). The final plat also shows two possible 50 foot access points 
along South 31st Street. However, this Development/Site Plan is only utilizing one access to the north. 
The applicant has stated this curb cut will align with Blue Meadow Drive. Additionally, the applicant is 
aware that a Driveway Permit Package in coordination with TxDOT is required. A recommended 
condition of approval includes: “The applicant shall comply with all TxDOT requirements.” 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTIES AND USES: A table in the attachments provides the surrounding 
properties, FLUM designations, existing zoning and current land uses (attachment: Surrounding 
Properties & Uses Table). 
 
SCREENING / BUFFERING  
UDC, Section 7.7 Screening & Buffing details that a continuous buffering is required along the common 
boundary between nonresidential uses and residential zoning districts or uses. The design of this 
required buffer must either consist of evergreen hedges with a minimum of six feet high and  
 
 



 

03/02/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 7 

 
placed on 36 inches center or consist of fences or walls constructed of wood, masonry, stone or pre-
cast concrete, with integrated color, texture and pattern.  
 
There are two existing residences that abut the property to the north and northwest. Therefore, the 
applicant is required to provide continuous buffering along this portion of the property. A recommended 
condition of approval includes: “A continuous 10-15 foot wide landscape buffer is required between 
residential and nonresidential uses. The buffer must be installed prior to any nonresidential 
development and properly maintained while this property remains as a nonresidential use.” 
 
Also, there are some mature, healthy trees existing along this property line, which is why staff is 
recommending a landscaped buffer versus a fence or wall screening. Preservation of these trees is 
important to this buffering requirement. A recommended condition of approval includes: “Preservation 
of most trees within the subject property (perimeter and interior), based on variety and maturity, must 
be considered.” 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan. A summary table of 
the CP compliance is located the attachments: Comprehensive Plan Compliance Summary Table. 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
In the FLUM, the subject property is designated as the Auto-Urban Commercial character district. This 
district is intended for commercial uses and generally concentrated at intersections versus strip 
development along the major roads. The use of a higher landscape surface area, better landscaping 
along frontages and around and within parking areas. Other signage and design standards would 
significantly enhance the appearance of these areas.  
 
The proposal is in compliance with the FLUM as it includes a proposed commercial use and a high 
landscape surface area as described in the “Enhancements” section of this report.  
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from South 31st Street, which is designated as a major arterial in the 
Thoroughfare Plan. This designation requires a six foot wide sidewalk on both sides and is noted on 
the Landscape Plan. Therefore, this request is compliant with the Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing eight inch sewer line along South 31st 
Street. Water is available through an existing 12 inch waterline along South 31st Street. Both water and 
sewer lines will require extensions to the subject property from their current location.  
 
Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan identifies a proposed local connector trail along South 31st Street. A note on the 
Landscape Plan requiring a six foot wide sidewalk is provided. Therefore, this request is compliant with 
the Trails Master Plan. 
 
 

 



 

03/02/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 6 of 7 

 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE: As required by UDC, Section 3.4.2 B, the Development/Site 
Plan for the proposed mini-storage facility was reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) 
on November 21, 2016.  Site characteristics such as the easements and preservation of mature trees 
were discussed. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Currently, the property can be developed with uses permitted by 
right that would not require a public process. A table in the attachments (attachment: UDC Standards 
Comparison Table) compares how the site could be developed (in the NS zoning district) versus how 
the applicant is proposing to develop the site (in the PD-NS zoning district). The table shows this 
proposal is exceeding side and rear setbacks, buffering and screening, landscaping, masonry and code 
requirements. This proposal also includes tree preservation and architectural elements, which are not 
required by code. Further, this proposal’s maximum building wall height is 21 feet (per condition of 
approval #13); code allows for 28.75 feet.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Twenty-five notices were mailed to property owners within the 200 feet buffer area 
of the subject property. The notices included information on the public hearing as required by State 
Law and City Ordinance. As of Friday, February 17, 2017, two notices in agreement with the proposal 
were returned. One of these is from the current property owner of the subject property. Seventeen 
notices in disagreement have also been received.  
 
UDC, Section 3.3.4 Protest states that a Zoning district map amendment application requires a three-
fourths vote of the City Council in order to be approved if a written protest has been signed and 
submitted by the owners of a minimum of 20 percent of the area of the properties immediately adjoining 
the area covered by the proposed changed and extending 200 feet from that area. This threshold is 
exceeded with 48 percent in opposition to the proposal (attachment: Z-FY-17-03 Opposition Area). 
Therefore, a protest is triggered.  
 
Also, letters were submitted from the Bentwood Professional Property Owners Association, from 
residents at the Creeks at Deerfield and from another property owner outside of the 200’ buffer area 
(the Applicant responded to these comments, which can also be found in the attachments). A 
representative from the Deerfield Estates submitted a petition. These were all in disagreement of the 
proposal. All public comment is included in the attachments: Returned Property Owner Notices – Within 
the 200’ Buffer Area, Public Comment – Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area and Applicant’s Response to 
Property Owner Comments Outside the 200’ Buffer Area.  .  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on November 24, 2016 in accordance with state 
law and local ordinance. 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE: This request is scheduled for a first reading on March 2, 2017 
and a second reading on March 16, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 



 

03/02/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 7 of 7 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Temple Storage Rendering 
Revised Development/Site Plan 
Revised Landscape Plans 
Revised Elevations 
Aerial Map / Utility Map 
Zoning Map / Future Land Use and Character Map 
Thoroughfare & Trails Map / Notification Map 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Summary of Uses Permitted in the NS Zoning District 
December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes 
Public Meeting – January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet 
Surveyor’s Sketch 
RVOS Addition Final Plat 
Surrounding Properties & Uses Table / Comprehensive Plan Compliance Summary Table 
UDC Standards Comparison Table 
Z-FY-17-03 Opposition Area 
Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area 
Public Comment – Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area 
Applicant’s Response to Property Owner Comments Outside the 200’ Buffer Area 
Outward-Facing Building Facades Graphic 
DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt 
Ordinance 
 

  



Temple Storage Rendering



BLU
E

M
EAD

O
W

R
EM

AIN
D

ER
O

F
LO

T
94,300

SF
2.16

AC

Revised Development/Site Plan



B
A

C
K

 O
F C

U
R

B

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

GATE & FENCE, REF. ARCH.

20' P
.U

.E
.

25' B
U

ILD
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

B
A

C
K

 O
F C

U
R

B

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

20' P
.U

.E
.

25' B
U

ILD
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

B
A

C
K

 O
F C

U
R

B

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

20' P
.U

.E
.

25' B
U

ILD
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

B
A

C
K

 O
F C

U
R

B

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

20' P
.U

.E
.

25' B
U

ILD
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

BACK OF CURB

G
A

TE
 &

 FE
N

C
E

,
R

E
F. A

R
C

H
.

FE
N

C
E

, R
E

F. A
R

C
H

.

PROPERTY SETBACK

P.U.E.

PROPERTY LINE

6' W
ID

E S
ID

EW
A
LK

EX
IS

TIN
G

 TR
EE, TYPIC

A
L

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 IN
FO

.

P
R

E
LIM

IN
A

R
Y

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

LP
 1.1

R
E

VIS
IO

N
S

1)2)3)4)5) D
A

TE
: 2016-11-16

FILE
 N

A
M

E
: 16424

N

W
W

W
.D

O
U

B
LE

B
LA

N
D

D
E

S
IG

N
.C

O
M

D
ouble B

 D
esign ow

ns the rights to this draw
ing

and under no circum
stances m

ay this draw
ing

be reproduced, altered, replicated or m
odified

by any party w
ithout the express w

ritten consent
and perm

ission of D
ouble B

 D
esign.  P

lans are
for review

 purposes only and not for perm
it or

construction set.

P
.O

. B
O

X 340443
A

ustin, TX  78734   |  512.740.9323

0
10'20'

40'
80'

O
W

N
E

R
 IN

FO
.

D
O

N
A

LD
 JO

N
E

S
 C

O
N

S
U

LTIN
G

10521 B
E

A
R

 C
R

E
E

K
 TR

A
IL

FO
R

T W
O

R
TH

, TE
XA

S
 46244

TE
L:

817-944-3411

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
E

N
TS:

TO
TA

L LO
T S

IZE
 (S

F)                                                          225808  S
F

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

 A
R

E
A

 (5%
)                                 11,290 S

F
TO

TA
L LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

 A
R

E
A

87,888 S
F

*O
N

E
 2" C

A
LIP

E
R

 TR
E

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 FO
R

 E
V

E
R

 40' O
F LIN

E
A

R
 S

TR
E

E
T

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

TO
TA

L LIN
E

A
R

 FE
E

T O
F S

TR
E

E
T FR

O
N

TA
G

E
                     565.4 LF

TO
TA

L N
U

M
B

E
R

 O
F FR

O
N

TA
G

E
 TR

E
E

S
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

15
TO

TA
L N

U
M

B
E

R
 O

F FR
O

N
TA

G
E

 TR
E

E
S

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
15

G
E

N
E

R
A

L LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 N
O

TE
S:

A
LL R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
 TO

 B
E

 M
A

IN
TA

IN
E

D
 A

T A
LL TIM

E
S

 IN
 A

LIV
IN

G
 A

N
D

 G
R

O
W

IN
G

 C
O

N
D

ITIO
N

.

O
W

N
E

R
 TO

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

, W
ITH

IN
 30 D

A
Y

S
, A

N
Y

 P
LA

N
T M

A
TE

R
IA

L TH
A

T
IS

 D
IS

E
A

S
E

D
, D

E
TE

R
IO

R
A

TE
D

 O
R

 D
E

A
D

.  TH
E

 D
IR

E
C

TO
R

 O
F

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 M
A

Y
 IS

S
U

E
 U

P
 TO

 A
 90 D

A
Y

 E
X

TE
N

S
IO

N
 O

F TH
E

 TIM
E

 FO
R

R
E

P
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T D

U
R

IN
G

 D
R

O
U

G
H

T O
R

 S
U

M
M

E
R

 M
O

N
TH

S
.

A
LL R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
 M

U
S

T B
E

 IR
R

IG
A

TE
D

 B
Y

 A
N

A
U

TO
M

A
TIC

 S
P

R
IN

K
LIN

G
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 O
R

 H
A

V
E

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 TO
 A

 H
O

S
E

C
O

N
N

E
C

TIO
N

 W
ITH

IN
 100' O

F A
LL LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
 N

O
TE

S
:

P
LA

N
TIN

G
 A

N
D

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 M
A

TE
R

IA
L S

C
R

E
E

N
IN

G
A

D
JA

C
E

N
T R

E
S

ID
E

N
TIA

L LO
TS

 A
N

D
 A

D
JA

C
E

N
T R

A
ILR

O
A

D
 TO

 B
E

IM
P

LE
M

E
N

TE
D

 A
N

D
 IN

S
TA

LLE
D

 A
T A

 FU
TU

R
E

 D
A

TE
 A

N
D

 TIM
E

 A
N

D
TO

 B
E

 W
O

R
K

E
D

 O
U

T W
ITH

 TH
E

 D
E

V
E

LO
P

E
R

.

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

D
 A

R
E

A
S:

H
A

TC
H

 IN
D

IC
A

TE
S

 A
R

E
A

 TO
 B

E
 LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

2017-1-11 - TR
E

E
 S

U
R

VE
Y

2017-2-2 - P
LA

N
TIN

G

Revised Landscaping Plan Overall



B
A

C
K

 O
F C

U
R

B

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

PROPERTY LINE

GATE & FENCE, REF. ARCH.

20' P
.U

.E
.

25' B
U

ILD
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

B
A

C
K

 O
F C

U
R

B

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

20' P
.U

.E
.

25' B
U

ILD
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

B
A

C
K

 O
F C

U
R

B

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

20' P
.U

.E
.

25' B
U

ILD
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

BACK OF CURB

G
A

TE
 &

 FE
N

C
E

,
R

E
F. A

R
C

H
.

FE
N

C
E

, R
E

F. A
R

C
H

.

TU
R
F, TYPIC

A
L

TU
R
F, TYPIC

A
L

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T,

TYPIC
A
L A

S
IN

D
IC

A
TED

 B
Y H

A
TC

H

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

C
EN

TU
R
Y PLA

N
T

R
ED

B
U

D

TEX
A
S
 S

A
G

E

TEX
A
S
 S

A
G

E

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

R
O

S
EM

A
R
Y

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T

R
ED

 YU
C
C
A

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T

C
ED

A
R
 ELM

R
ED

 YU
C
C
A

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T

C
ED

A
R
 ELM

R
ED

 YU
C
C
A

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T

C
ED

A
R
 ELM

TU
R
F, TYPIC

A
L

EX
IS

TIN
G

V
EG

ETA
TIO

N
 TO

R
EM

A
IN

, V
ER

IFY
A
C
TU

A
L LIM

ITS
IN

 FIELD

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

R
O

S
EM

A
R
Y

2' M
O

W
S
TR

IP
6' W

ID
E S

ID
EW

A
LK

EX
IS

TIN
G

 TR
EE,

TYPIC
A
L

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 IN
FO

.

P
R

E
LIM

IN
A

R
Y

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

LP
 1.2

R
E

VIS
IO

N
S

1)2)3)4)5) D
A

TE
: 2016-11-16

FILE
 N

A
M

E
: 16424

W
W

W
.D

O
U

B
LE

B
LA

N
D

D
E

S
IG

N
.C

O
M

D
ouble B

 D
esign ow

ns the rights to this draw
ing

and under no circum
stances m

ay this draw
ing

be reproduced, altered, replicated or m
odified

by any party w
ithout the express w

ritten consent
and perm

ission of D
ouble B

 D
esign.  P

lans are
for review

 purposes only and not for perm
it or

construction set.

P
.O

. B
O

X 340443
A

ustin, TX  78734   |  512.740.9323

0
5'

10'
20'

40'

O
W

N
E

R
 IN

FO
.

D
O

N
A

LD
 JO

N
E

S
 C

O
N

S
U

LTIN
G

N
O

TE
:  P

LA
N

S
 A

R
E

 FO
R

E
 P

R
E

LIM
IN

A
R

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

 O
N

LY
.  P

LA
N

S
A

R
E

 N
O

T FO
R

 P
E

R
M

IT, C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TIO

N
 O

R
 B

ID
D

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

.

IN
A

R
Y

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
ITE

 P
LA

N
1" = 20'

N

10521 B
E

A
R

 C
R

E
E

K
 TR

A
IL

FO
R

T W
O

R
TH

, TE
XA

S
 46244

TE
L:

817-944-3411

M
A

TC
H

LIN
E

. 1/LP
 1.3

2017-1-11 - TR
E

E
 S

U
R

VE
Y

2017-2-2 - P
LA

N
TIN

G

Revised Landscaping Plan Detail - West Side



PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY SETBACK

P.U.E.

PROPERTY LINE

TU
R
F, TYPIC

A
L IN

 U
TILITY EA

S
EM

EN
T

EX
IS

TIN
G

 V
EG

ETA
TIO

N
 TO

 R
EM

A
IN

,
V
ER

IFY A
C
TU

A
L LIM

ITS
 IN

 FIELD

EX
IS

TIN
G

 TR
EE,

TYPIC
A
L

TR
E

E
S

 S
YM

B
O

L
P

LA
N

T N
A

M
E

S
IZE

S
H

R
U

B
SP
LA

N
T N

A
M

E
S

IZE

G
R

O
U

N
D

C
O

VE
R

P
LA

N
T N

A
M

E
S

IZE

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

C
E

D
A

R
 E

LM

TE
XA

S
 S

A
G

E

P
U

R
P

LE
 H

E
A

R
T

K
N

O
C

K
O

U
T R

O
S

E

R
E

D
 YU

C
C

A

R
O

S
E

M
A

R
Y

TU
R

F
P

LA
N

T N
A

M
E

S
IZE

TIFFW
A

Y 419 B
E

R
M

U
D

A

N
O

TE
S

2" C
A

LIP
E

R
 M

IN
.

A
N

D
 65 G

A
L M

IN
.

TE
XA

S
 R

E
D

B
U

D
15 G

A
L. M

IN
.

M
U

LTI - TR
U

N
K

, C
O

N
TA

IN
E

R
 G

R
O

W
N

,
P

LA
N

T P
E

R
 P

LA
N

3 G
A

L.
P

LA
N

T P
E

R
 P

LA
N

S
IN

G
LE

 S
TR

A
IG

H
T TR

U
N

K
, C

O
N

TA
IN

E
R

G
R

O
W

N
, P

LA
N

T P
E

R
 P

LA
N

 S
YM

B
O

L

 S
YM

B
O

L

 S
YM

B
O

L

P
LA

N
T P

E
R

 P
LA

N

P
LA

N
T P

E
R

 P
LA

N

P
LA

N
T P

E
R

 P
LA

N

P
LA

N
T P

E
R

 P
LA

N

P
LA

N
T 24" O

.C
.

P
LA

N
T P

E
R

 P
LA

N
.  S

O
LID

 S
O

D
 M

U
S

T B
E

U
S

E
D

 IN
 S

W
A

LE
S

, B
E

R
M

S
 A

N
D

 A
N

Y
O

TH
E

R
 A

R
E

A
S

 S
U

B
JE

C
T TO

 E
R

O
S

IO
N

P
E

R
 C

ITY C
O

D
E

.

H
YD

R
O

M
U

LC
H

S
O

D
 - R

E
F. N

O
TE

S
.

3 G
A

L.

1 G
A

L.

3 G
A

L.

3 G
A

L.

3 G
A

L.

C
E

N
TU

R
Y P

LA
N

T A
G

A
VE

15 G
A

L.
P

LA
N

T P
E

R
 P

LA
N

N
O

TE
S

N
O

TE
S

N
O

TE
S

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 IN
FO

.

P
R

E
LIM

IN
A

R
Y

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

LP
 1.3

R
E

VIS
IO

N
S

1)2)3)4)5) D
A

TE
: 2016-11-16

FILE
 N

A
M

E
: 16424

W
W

W
.D

O
U

B
LE

B
LA

N
D

D
E

S
IG

N
.C

O
M

D
ouble B

 D
esign ow

ns the rights to this draw
ing

and under no circum
stances m

ay this draw
ing

be reproduced, altered, replicated or m
odified

by any party w
ithout the express w

ritten consent
and perm

ission of D
ouble B

 D
esign.  P

lans are
for review

 purposes only and not for perm
it or

construction set.

P
.O

. B
O

X 340443
A

ustin, TX  78734   |  512.740.9323

0
5'

10'
20'

40'

O
W

N
E

R
 IN

FO
.

D
O

N
A

LD
 JO

N
E

S
 C

O
N

S
U

LTIN
G

N
O

TE
:  P

LA
N

S
 A

R
E

 FO
R

E
 P

R
E

LIM
IN

A
R

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

 O
N

LY
.  P

LA
N

S
A

R
E

 N
O

T FO
R

 P
E

R
M

IT, C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TIO

N
 O

R
 B

ID
D

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

.

P
R

E
LIM

IN
A

R
Y

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
ITE

 P
LA

N
1

S
C

A
LE

: 1" = 20'

N

10521 B
E

A
R

 C
R

E
E

K
 TR

A
IL

FO
R

T W
O

R
TH

, TE
XA

S
 46244

TE
L:

817-944-3411

P
LA

N
TIN

G
 P

LA
N

2

M
A

TC
H

LIN
E

. 1/LP
 1.2

2017-1-11 - TR
E

E
 S

U
R

VE
Y

2017-2-2 - P
LA

N
TIN

G

Revised Landscaping Plan Detail - East Side



4
1

2
4

1
2

4
1

2

4
1

2

4
1

2
4

1
2

4
1

2

D
ATE:

S
H

EE
T

N
U

M
B

ER
:

NO.

REVISIONS:
DESCRIPTION DATE

S
H

E
ET

TITLE:

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
D

R
A

W
IN

G
-

N
O

T
F

O
R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
IS

S
U

E
D

F
O

R
Z

O
N

IN
G

C
IT

Y
R

E
V

IE
W

A
N

D
O

W
N

E
R

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

.

M
IC

H
A

E
L

D
.

M
A

U
L

D
IN

T
E

X
A

S
#

1
6

7
3
3

Elevations



Aerial Map

Utility Map



Zoning Map

Future Land Use Character Map



Thoroughfare & Trails Map

Notification Map

2214
6210

1936

2008

5807

5918
5917

5913

2304

1829

5810
5811

5807

2004

2003

5906

5822

5803

5815

5819

5901

5905

59092205
2209

2213
2217

5808

59085912

5916

5920

5924

5928

6005

6011

6017

2310
2304

2210
2206

2309

2205
2209

2213

6105
1923

1915

1909

1903

1821

1813

1731

1924
1928

2006
2010

2014
2018

2022

5716

5720

5814

5818

5910

5914

6006

6010

6014

5929

5804

2009

2012

2011

5913
5905

2206
2210

2214

5904

2305
2211

2207

2204
2208

2214

5811

5719

2011
2007

2003

2002
2008

20125905

5823

5819

6007

6003

2017
2013

2009 1904

1912

1920

1928

20202028

1725

1717

5221

522

5707

1815

1816

1820
1916

1920

1819

6012

6400

2308

2707

5720

2534

5932

5936

2312

6004

6008

2315
2313

2305
2309

6104

6016

2312
2316

2313

2312
2308

2304
6204

6116

6110

27192715
2707

2708

2627
2619

2611
2603

2526

2566
2584

2601

2600

2317

2316

5785

2716
2720

2719
2715

04

2604
2608

2616
2624

2627
2619

2611

2603

26042608
2616

5901

2503

201

5505

5415

2504

5515

221

220

219

216

217
213

211
209

207
205

203

5627

5621

234

233

232

231

230

229

228

227

226

225
223

5245

5

5520

5508

2603

5607

2616

2615

2616

2615

5521

5504

5518

2708

2611
2607

2507

2510
2516

2522
2604

2610

2609
2603

2521
2515

2509
2503

5515

2816
2808

2804
2720

2716 5608
5610

5607

5603
5603

5610

5608
5604

5514
5512

55035507
5511

5513

2582
2552

2803

2706

2604

2714

2514

5716
1

707
5712

5708

5703

5607

5704

2716
2720

2715
2711

2707

2803

5604

2624

2703
2623

2619
2615

2611
2607

2603

5604
5612

5608

3320

578557857857885785787885785785785578578555



Location of sign posting along W. Adams Ave. on adjacent site to the east of subject property

Property to the north: Scott & White West Campus

Site Photos



Property to the south and west: Pepper Creek Trail

Property to the east: vacant

Pepper Creek Trailhead

Site Photos

Kegley Rd

subject property



Existing
NS

Residential Uses
*Group home
Single family

Agricultural Uses Farm, ranch, orchard
Commercial Uses none

Education & Institutional

Museum
*Cemetery
Place of Worship
School, business
*Community Center
Pre school/ elementary school

Industrial Uses *Laboratory medical, dental
Office Uses Office

Overnight Accommodations none

Entertainment/Recreational
Uses

*Alcoholic beverage sales for on premise consumption: beer & wine only less
than 75% revenue from alcohol
(restaurant)
Park or playground
*Playfield or stadium
Theater or playhouse (indoor)

Restaurant Uses Restaurant (not drive in)

Retail & Service Uses

Antique shop
Bank
Drug store or pharmacy
Greenhouse
Food or beverage sales store without fuel
Bakery or confectionary shop
Barber shop or beauty shop
*Exercise gym
Florist or garden shop
Laundry and cleaning (self service)
Office supply store
Retail shop, gift, apparel, acessory and similar items
Travel agency

Vehicle Service Uses *Fuel sales

Summary of Uses Permitted in the NS Zoning District

*Conditional Use Permit required



1

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
DECEMBER 6, 2016 

5:30 P.M. 

PLANNING AND ZONING MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chair Greg Rhoads 

Bryant Ward Omar Crisp 
Lydia Alaniz Jeremy Langley 

Lee Armstrong David Jones 
Derek Marshall  

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Lester Fettig 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Lynn R. Barrett, Asst. Director of Planning 
Trudi Dill, Deputy City Attorney 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
Dessie Redmond, Planner 
Leslie Evans, Planning Technician 
Kelli Tibbit, Administrative Assistant 

The agenda for this meeting was posted on the bulletin board at the Municipal 
Building, December 2, 2016, at 4:30 p.m. in compliance with the Open Meetings 
Law. 

The following is a summary of the proceedings of this meeting.  It is not intended to be a 
verbatim translation. 

Chair Rhoads called Meeting to Order at 5:30 P.M. 
Invocation by Commissioner Jones; Pledge of Allegiance by Commissioner Ward. 

A. CONSENT ITEMS 

Item 1: Approval of Minutes: Work session and the regular meeting of November 21, 
2016.

Approved by general consent. 

B. ACTION ITEMS 

Item 2: TMED-FY-17-01 – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action to 
amend Ordinance No. 2016-4749, for a TMED Planned Development District 
site plan on .85 +/- acres, Lot 11, Block 1, Highline Addition, to allow for a drive-

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



2

through restaurant located at 2110 South 31st Street, as well as to amend the 
overall development site plan to consider allowing a public sidewalk in lieu of a 
private trail.

Mr. Brian Chandler, Director of Planning, stated there were two parts to this request. The 
first part is to allow a drive-through at the subject property location (Lot 3B platted as Lot 
11) by approving an amendment to the original site plan.

The site plan with building footprint shown. The building is 6,600 square feet and will be 
occupied by multiple tenants. 

Another site plan is shown with an outdoor patio space of greater than 1,500 square feet 
which exceeds the Planned Development District Ordinance. 

Current aerial site plan is shown. 

The applicant will need to comply with the landscaping and proposed architectural 
standards of the Unified Development Code (UDC) and as approved in the Planned 
Development District Ordinance. 

Part two of the request is a public sidewalk in lieu of a private trail. 

Aerial site plan is shown for with the proposed private trail which would essentially 
connect the 200 plus apartment project with the South 37th Street stub-out road adjacent 
to the Candlewood Suites Hotel.

Another aerial shows what the area looks like currently with the preserved trees and the 
drainage easement. Whether developed as a trail or not, the trees are to remain.

The applicant is proposing a sidewalk in lieu of the proposed trail for connectivity. A six 
foot sidewalk is proposed along Scott Boulevard (in orange) for pedestrian connectivity 
all the way to the drainage area, which requires a Waters of the US Permit. The 
applicant has received this permit through the Army Corps of Engineers for the detention 
pond and the drainage work (indicated in the red-lined area).

The drainage portion (blue-lined area) requiring a Waters of the US Permit that would be 
outside of the scope of what the developer is requesting. 

The green-lined area abuts another lot and upon future development a sidewalk will be 
required there. The City would need to provide pedestrian crossing from that sidewalk 
down to the leg of the Jaycee Park. 

This proposal would implement the Trails Master Plan (TMP) as part of the Temple 
Medical Education District (TMED) standards for new development. The TMP does show 
a trail along Scott Boulevard connecting to Jaycee Park. 

Cost estimates have been provided by the applicant/developer comparing the trail costs 
of $80,000 for a decomposed granite trail, tree work, etc., and the sidewalk construction 
of $100,000 which is higher than the actual trail costs due to unknown expenditures for 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



3

the reconstruction of driveways for Candlewood Suites and the office building to the west 
to meet ADA requirements. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates Scott Boulevard as a collector which requires a four-
foot wide sidewalk, except in TMED it requires a six-foot wide trail.

Jaycee Park Master Plan is shown. Jaycee Park is funded for bond improvements ($1.1 
million estimate).

Additional view of the “Trail” and Candlewood Suites and how the connectivity would be 
proposed. 

The office building located at 2002 Scott Boulevard would also be affected, if approved. 

Development Review Committee (DRC) reviewed this site plan on November 21, 2016 
and the applicant has adequately addressed all comments. 

Seven notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with zero 
notices returned in agreement or in disagreement. 

Staff recommendation is approval with the following conditions: 
That the sidewalk is six-feet wide for consistency with: 

The other Scott Boulevard sidewalk required by the developer; and 
The Trails Master Plan minimum width; and 

That the length of the sidewalk extends to either: 
The drainage channel per the Proposed Sidewalk Exhibit; or 
As far west as the estimated $100,000 will go: 

The cost of the two driveways at 1850 and 2002 Scott Boulevard 
could change based on ADA sloping requirements 

Mr. Chandler explained Candlewood Suites may have been built around 2005-2006 
which predates TMED and is not actually located within the TMED. Mr. Chandler is 
unsure why the sidewalk was not required for Candlewood Suites at the time of 
construction.

Chair Rhoads explains the time limits procedure in order for everyone in attendance to 
have an opportunity to speak. 

The public hearing was opened. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 2, TMED-FY-17-01, and
Commissioner Ward made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0)
Vice-Chair Fettig absent 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



4

Item 3: Z-FY-17-02 – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a 
rezoning from Agricultural (AG) to Single Family-One (SF-1) and on permanent 
zoning upon annexation of a tract of land consisting of a total of 86.91 +/- acres 
proposed for Single-Family One (SF-1) District, located south of FM 93, east of 
Southwood Drive and west of Boutwell Road, situated in the Redding Roberts 
Survey, Abstract 692, Bell County, Texas, in Temple's southern Extra Territorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ). Applicant requests postponement until the 12/19/16 P&Z 
meeting to develop a site plan and to amend the zoning request to PD-SF-
1 (Planned Development District Single-Family One).

Ms. Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner, stated since Planning advertised this item for a 
public hearing Planning and Zoning is required to open a public hearing if anyone would 
like to speak. The applicant has requested the item be postponed until the next P&Z 
meeting scheduled for December 19, 2016. 

Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Ms. Lyerly reminded the Commission that whatever motion is made to include the 
postponement to the December 19, 2016 P&Z meeting. 

Commissioner Ward a motion to table Item 3, Z-FY-17-02, and will remain opened for a 
public hearing and Commissioner Marshall made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0)
Vice-Chair Fettig absent 

Item 4:  Z-FY-17-03 – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a 
rezoning from the Neighborhood Services (NS) zoning district to the Planned 
Development-General Retail (PD-GR) zoning district on 7.35 +/- acres, 1-lot, 1-
block non-residential subdivision, proposed for a mini-storage facility, situated in 
the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692, Bell County, City of Temple, 
Texas, located at 5785 South 31st Street.

Ms. Dessie Redmond, Planner, explained that since delivery of the packet on December 
2, 2016, Staff has changed their recommendation of approval with conditions to PD-NS 
and  not PD-GR and stated in the staff report in the packet. 

This item is scheduled to go to City Council for first reading on January 5, 2017 and 
second reading on January 19, 2017. 

The applicant/property owner is Mr. Wes Jackson, RVOS Farm Mutual Insurance, and 
Trey Pike.

The property is currently vacant, undeveloped, and located in the RVOS Addition 
Subdivision. There are some and existing drainage easements on the site. The 
Georgetown Railroad runs along the southern portion of the subject property. 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



5

Surrounding properties include undeveloped land to the east, residential to the north, the 
Bentwood Subdivision to the west, and the Georgetown Railroad (which is inactive) 
abuts the property on the south. 

The applicant is proposing a mini-storage warehouse as defined by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) Section 11.2 – Definitions: 

Mini-Storage Warehouse. A building or group of buildings consisting of 
individualized shelters of various sizes for rent or lease for the purpose of 
providing protection of commodities stored in the mini-storage warehouse. 

 UDC, Section 5.38 states that the unit size is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet: 
5.3.8 Mini-Storage Warehouse

A mini-storage warehouse may be permitted in accordance with the use 
table in Sec. 5.1 provided that the size of each individual storage unit of a 
mini-storage warehouse is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet. 
The proposed units range in size from 25 square feet to 200 square feet; 
Some buildings are climate controlled; 
Some buildings are non-climate controlled; 
Approximately 350 total units (number of sizes yet to be determined); 
Combination of Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), brick, split-faced 
concrete masonry units (CMUs) and accent metal paneling (visible facades as 
shown in the north and west elevations); 
*A 20 foot wide buffer along the Georgetown Railroad for future “rails to trails” 
amenity;
*39% of site is proposed to be landscaped; and 
The remaining 2.16 +/- acres are not included in this site plan and would require a 
PD amendment if developed in the future. 

(*Staff considers enhancements to the site because the proposal exceeds requirements 
by the UDC) 

Site plan shown. The proposal is split into two phases and Phase One includes an office 
space.

Ingress and egress will be located off of South 31st Street. 

Elevations and landscaping plans shown. 

In accordance with the UDC, Section 3.4.3 and 3.4.4, a Planned Development requires 
approval of a development/site plan which is binding to the project. 

In UDC, Section 3.4, a Planned Development is defined as: 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



6

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique 
development proposals, special design considerations and land use 
transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding 
areas through development plan approval.”

A PD typically includes: 
Screening/Buffering;
Landscaping; and 
Combination of Exterior Building Materials. 

The existing zoning map shows AG to the north, Single Family One (SF-1) to the south, 
NS to the west (with a PD), and SF-1 to the east.

In the Future Land Use and Character Map, the subject property is designated as the 
Auto-Urban Commercial district which provides for commercial uses and requires a 
higher landscaped surface area. The UDC requires five percent and the applicant is 
proposing 39 percent, therefore, the request is compliant with the Future Land Use and 
Character Map. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates South 31st Street as a major arterial with existing 
adequate right-of-way and will provide ingress and egress to the property. 

A six-foot wide sidewalk is required on the applicant’s side of the road and this sidewalk 
is included on the applicant’s submitted landscape plan. 

The Trails Master Plan indicates a City-wide proposed trail along the Georgetown 
Railroad. The applicant has confirmed the trees will be preserved and supplement trees 
as needed within the buffer along the railroad. This request is compliant with the 
Thoroughfare Plan and Trails Master Plan. 

Public facilities are available to the property which may require extensions.  

The applicant’s request is in compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map, 
the Thoroughfare Plan, the Trails Master Plan and Sidewalk Ordinance, UDC, Section 
3.4.5 Planned Development Criteria, and is consistent with the City’s infrastructure and 
public service capacities. 

Development Review Committee (DRC) reviewed this request on November 21, 2016 to 
discuss the following: 

Site Characteristics: 
Existing easements;
Constraints;
Existing mature trees; 
Preservation of perimeter and interior trees based on species and maturity; 
Georgetown Railroad; and 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



7

“Rails to Trails” possible future amenity for the city’s trail system. 
Comparison between NS and PD-GR uses are given. 
Twenty-five notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with 
two response notices being returned in agreement and 12 response letters returned in 
disagreement. 
UDC, Section 3.3.4. - Protest, states that 20 percent or more of the area within the buffer 
accounts for property owners in disagreement of the rezoning request will trigger a 
protest. This means that a three-fourths vote by City Council is required in order for this 
action to be approved.
The total area of the buffer portion of this request is approximately 665,472 square feet; 
and the opposition area is approximately 135,238 square feet, which equals 20.322 
percent of the buffer. 
Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from NS to Planned Development 
Neighborhood Services (PD-NS) with the allowed use of a mini-storage warehouse and 
with the following conditions: 

Substantial compliance with the Development/Site Plan; 
Substantial compliance with the Landscape Plans and Elevations; 
That the remaining 2.16 +/- acres will require a separate Development/Site Plan 
review by the Planning & Zoning Commission with approval by City Council prior 
to any future development; 
Each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 
A six-foot wide sidewalk is required to be built along South 31st Street prior to the 
opening of the business; 
All exterior building facades related to the mini-storage buildings shall have 
exteriors containing a combination of Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), 
split-faced concrete masonry units (CMUs), brick and accent metal panels as 
shown in the Elevations submittal; 
Preservation of most trees within the subject property (perimeter and interior), 
based on variety and maturity, must be considered; 
A continuous 10- to 15-foot wide landscape buffer is required between residential 
and nonresidential uses. The buffer must be installed prior to any nonresidential 
development and maintained per UDC, Section 7.4.8. - Maintenance and 
Irrigation;
A continuous 20-foot wide landscape buffer is required along the Georgetown 
Railroad. This buffer must be installed prior to the completion of Phase II and 
maintained per UDC, Section 7.4.8. - Maintenance and Irrigation; 
All landscaping required by the UDC shall meet or exceed UDC, Section 7.4 -
Landscaping;
Any fencing along South 31st Street shall be decorative metal; 
This PD runs with the land and is not affected by the transfer of property owners; 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



8

The maximum building height allowed is 30 feet (top of wall and per submittal 
elevations); and 
The applicant shall comply with all Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 
requirements.

Chair Rhoads asked about lighting on the project. Ms. Redmond deferred to the 
applicant for response. 
Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 
Mr. Donald Jones, 4216 Little Bend Court, Fort Worth, Texas, stated he was 
representing Mr. Trey Pike. Mr. Jones provided a brief background on this project. 
Mr. Jones has been in the storage business for 24 years and has worked all over the 
country.
When Mr. Jones was consulted about the subject property, he felt this property was most 
conducive to what he considered a good self-storage location: 1) it would accommodate 
a smaller self-storage property that would have nice curb appeal; 2) it would limit the 
growth of the business; 3) the 2.16 +/- acreage could possibly accommodate some other 
type of business; and 4) it is a multi-phase project which leaves access. 
In the design of the facility the entire back portion was intentionally left as-is. 
The applicant intends to preserve the trees on site. 
The applicant will work with the City on the future Trails and Rails project. 
Mr. Jones addressed the lighting question by stating through LED lighting, the lighting 
can be kept low enough and downward that there will be zero impact on the residential 
areas. It would not be overt just provide security.  
Mr. Jones invited any of the neighbors/property owners/residents/HOAs to meet with him 
to discuss the project between tonight’s P&Z meeting and the first City Council meeting. 
Mr. Jones looks forward to working with the residents on any concerns raised. 
Brief discussion about the Waters Dairy storage project which was a totally different 
group.
Mr. Tex Burrows, 6205 Turtle Creek, Temple, Texas, asked about the difference 
between NS and PD-NS. 
Ms. Redmond clarified that a PD requires the submittal of a site plan, elevations, etc., 
which becomes binding to the property and project. 
Mr. Brian Chandler, Director of Planning, explained that this use would not be allowed in 
NS or GR unless it were tied to a PD district. The subject project would be bound to the 
elevations and the site plan if a mini-storage were to be built. Staff asked the applicant if 
they needed the GR zoning and they said no. If this project fails, the NS zoning district 
still prevails. 
Mr. Burrows lives in Deerfield Estates and is representing both his neighborhood and the 
Creeks of Deerfield. The Creeks of Deerfield created a letter and petition which included 
38 signatures against this proposal. Copies of these documents were given to P&Z. 
Mr. Burrows is on the Board of Directors of the HOA for Deerfield Estates. His main point 
tonight is the zoning that has been used by the City for this area which is NS. This 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



9

zoning was developed by the City to maintain the integrity of the neighborhoods around 
this area which include several neighborhoods/subdivisions.  
Mr. Burrows asked the Commission to maintain the integrity of the original plan with the 
NS zoning, which is the most restrictive, since GR is inappropriate and creates other 
problems.
Mr. Burrows felt that the definition given for the PD-NS may calm a lot of fears but it is 
still a concern for many residents. 
Commissioner Jones stated the subject project did not look like the standard mini-
storage building(s) people equate with and asked if the mini-storage facility itself was 
causing concerns. Mr. Burrows responded that none of the residents he spoke with prior 
to the meeting were aware of the type of mini-storage explained here tonight. It was Mr. 
Burrows’ opinion that some residents may feel better about the mini-storage facility but 
others may not just because it is a mini-storage. Mr. Burrows personally felt the concept 
was better than what was known prior to the meeting. 
The mini-storage buildings include a combination of climate-controlled units and non-
climate controlled units. 
Mr. John Shanafelt, 5934 Fawn Meadow Drive, Temple, Texas, stated his property 
backs up to the subject property. There are three other storage facilities within a mile and 
a half and he questions why another is needed. 
Mr. Shanafelt had concerns about the 25-foot setback since nothing else in the area was 
that close to the road. He also had concerns about the flat roofline and the height of the 
building.  
When it rains, the subject property drains through the back yards of the residents. There 
was considerable concern about where the water would go and who would maintain it. 
Mr. Shanafelt stated putting this building with a 730-foot front wall, being 15-feet tall, and 
the corners being 30-feet tall (the height of a telephone pole), in a residential area, it is 
too close to the street, too massive on the face, and the drainage needs to be addressed 
in advance of any proposal. 
Mr. Chandler responded to the drainage issue by stating it was preliminarily reviewed 
through the DRC (which consists of City Staff) and they are aware of the issue. At 
permitting, the applicant would need to address the drainage plan requirements. 
Mr. Chandler added in regards to the setback issue, the 25-foot setback starts from 
behind the utility poles which are located in the utility easement. A lot of the front area is 
right-of-way and would not be in direct conflict. 
Ms. Susan Head, 5621 South 31st Street, Temple, Texas, stated she owns the property 
across the street from the subject property. 
Ms. Head is against the mini-storage facility and does not believe it is the best use for 
the property.  Ms. Head has lived in her home for 40 years and seen many changes in 
the area over time. 
Ms. Head is concerned that people would start using her driveway as a turnaround, 
thievery will increase, and she has never known a mini-storage to look nice. To Ms. 
Head, the design sounds fort-like with 30 foot towers, lots of fencing and concrete, and 
lots of metal. 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



10

Ms. Head feels the community should remain as it is. 
Mr. Mark Hacker, 5604 Legacy Oak, Temple, Texas, stated he is representing some of 
the neighbors and they are against this idea since it would detract from the neighborhood 
and not the best use for the land. 
Mr. Dan Mares, 5804 Turtle Creek Trail, Temple, Texas, stated he was concerned about 
the drainage situation. Mr. Mares moved to the area in 2006 and he has dealt with the 
runoff from the subject property and the railroad tracks for ten years. Mr. Mares 
explained the City did put in a small culvert on the east side of the railroad track which 
has helped some; however, there is still a lot of drainage/runoff occurring. 
Mr. Mares commented the subject property has been vacant since he moved to the area. 
Mr. Mares stated he was opposed to the storage facility and does not believe it is 
appropriate for the area. 
Mr. Paul Cox, 6004 Fawn Meadows Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he was in agreement 
with the facility, but not for three stories tall. Mr. Cox feels there is a lot less traffic coming 
in and out of the storage facility than the subdivision or the office complex.  
Mr. Cox felt the applicant would provide more security for the business than it has 
currently and did not have concerns about that. 
It was asked of the applicant if there needed to be a three-story tall building at each end 
of the facility. 
Mr. Donald Jones returned to the podium and stated the applicant is willing to make 
adjustments to any of the stated concerns and the three-story parapets façade could be 
adjusted to be smaller. 
The drainage issue was not created by the applicant but Mr. Jones can assure that the 
City will make the applicant fix the problem. The applicant/developer is already working 
with a civil engineering group out of Austin and Mr. Jones feels a detention pond is being 
designed to accommodate the issue for the entire seven acres. 
Mr. Paul Cox asked what type of barrier/fence would be along the railroad tracks and the 
storage units, the “trash” trees, and would the landscaping be done during Phase II.
Mr. Jones responded that a wrought iron (expanded tubed metal with shepherd’s hook) 
fence would be installed since it creates a barrier to keep people from crossing over the 
fence. Security is extremely important to the facility. 
The trees on the back lot would be inspected to identify the trees and what needs to be 
removed or preserved with any preserved trees accounting towards the landscaping 
agreement requirements.
The applicant is only developing the first three and a half acres and will need to work 
with the City on what they can or cannot do. This is a two-phased project. The initial 
thought is to fix the tree line immediately behind the property in the first phase and then 
phase II would include the remaining portion of the tree line; however, Mr. Jones is open 
to discussion. 
Mr. Jones confirmed there will be no outdoor storage whatsoever. Mr. Jones also 
confirmed that the applicant is not interested in having or including any truck 
rentals/sales (U-Haul, Ryder, etc.). 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



11

Ms. Susan Head returned to ask about the fencing along South 31st Street (the section 
facing the road). 
Mr. Jones responded there would be zero fencing on 31st Street since the wall (façade) 
is what they would want to show to the community and to look nice. The only fencing 
involved would be on the back portion of the subject property against the Georgetown 
Railroad section to prevent anyone from coming in the back way and close off any 
access points from the side. 
Additionally, the location of the main drive is for safety of and clear ingress and egress. 
The applicant prefers only one driveway on the entire subject property which could also 
serve as a shared common driveway if the other property is sold or developed.
Chair Rhoads clarified that the remainder 2.61 +/- acres would be untouched since it was 
a project for a later time, which would need to return to the Planning & Zoning 
Commission and ultimately City Council. 
Ms. Head is against the proposal. 
There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 
Staff has asked the applicant to submit an additional elevation for the front building of 
phase II (Building E) but has not received it to date. A condition for approval addresses 
the façade. All exterior building façades related to the mini-storage building shall have 
exterior combination of materials as shown in the elevation. 
Mr. Chandler clarified that this meant the public facing façade (what people would see). 
The internal units were not necessarily required to be masonry and would defer to the 
applicant to address the interior façades.
Chair Rhoads reopened the public hearing for the applicant to explain. 
Mr. Donald Jones stated the intention was to make the front façade on 31st Street as nice 
as possible. When the applicant builds the Trails and Rails portion, they want the back 
portion to be as nice as possible as well. Mr. Jones stated it would be alright with the 
applicant to do split-faced blocks in between the buildings but you generally would not do 
an EIFS-type product. In Phase II, the large building façade would be very nice since it 
will be visible from S. 31st Street.
The building on the back side by the drainage pond could be done in brick or face block 
or something similar to have a nice clean façade to the public if Trails and Rails is 
created. The three interior buildings will not have stucco, etc., but could do split-faced 
block in between the doors. 
Chair Rhoads closed the public hearing. 
Commissioner Jones offered up a motion to table the item and explained there were too 
many issues creating confusion and several unresolved matters. 
Commissioner Crisp agreed with Commissioner Jones’ comments. 
Chair Rhoads agreed with the comments made and stated growth is coming and 
inevitable in the area, as well as the rest of the City. 
Chair Rhoads reiterated the three-fourths vote will be required for approval by City 
Council due to the number of responses in disagreement of the request. 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



12

Commissioner Marshall asked if the Commission decided to table this item, is the 
Commission allowed to request to have a site drainage study/information included with 
the resubmitted elevations. Mr. Chandler confirmed the Commission is allowed to 
request this item in the motion; however, the applicant should be allowed to state how 
much time they would need to provide the information. The motion should include a 
specific date to return to the P&Z Commission. 
Mr. Chandler stated after conferring with Ms. Trudi Dill, Deputy City Attorney, it was not 
necessary to open and close a public hearing to hear the applicant speak. Applicants 
may make comments at any time during meetings. 
Mr. Jones replied with the holidays coming up and his current travel schedule, he 
requested to return to P&Z on February 6, 2017.
Mr. Chandler stated Staff would coordinate with applicant and residents to provide any 
dialogue and feedback for the applicant to make any changes prior to February 6, 2017. 

Commissioner Jones made a motion to table Item 4, Z-FY-17-03, until February 6, 2017 
Planning & Zoning meeting and directed Staff to work with the applicant and property 
owners with any dialogue, feedback, and/or meetings needed and Commissioner Crisp 
made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0)
Vice-Chair Fettig absent 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Leslie Evans 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



Public Meeting - January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet



Public Meeting - January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet, continued



Public Meeting - January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet, continued



Surveyor’s Sketch



RVOS Addition Final Plat



Direction U Zoning Current and Use
Site Auto Urban Commercial NS vacant

North Auto Urban Commercial AG single family residential
South Estate Residential PD SF1 single family residential
West Auto Urban Commercial PD NS vacant/retail
East Estate Residential PD SF1 single family residential

Surrounding Pro erties & Uses a le

Document Policy oal O ective or a Com liance

Com rehensive Plan Com liance Summary a le



Existing Proposed
NS PD NS

Minimum Lot Size n/a 320,166 sq ft
Minimum Lot Width n/a 820 ft

Front Setback 15 ft (per plat 25 ft) 25 ft
Side Setback 10 ft 50 ft
Rear Setback 0* 30 ft

Max Building Height 2.5 stories (28.75 ft)** 21 ft (COA)
Landscaping 5% of entire site 39% of entire site

Buffer Between Residential
and Non Residential Uses

6 8' high fence or evergreen
hedges 6 ft high on 36 in center

10 15 ft wide landscape buffer
(COA)

Buffer Along
Georgetown Railroad

not required
20 ft wide landscape buffer

(COA)

Masonry on Facades 70% if visible from ROW
100% on all outward facing

facades (including some rear
facades) (COA)

Tree Preservation not required
preservation of most trees

(interior and perimeter) (COA)

Architectural Elements not required
corbels, pitched roof, varying

roof lines and overhangs

**UDC defines the standard height for a story as 11.5 ft.

COA = Condition of Approval

UDC Standards Comparison Table

* = See Section 4.4 Measurements & Special Cases.



Z-FY-17-03 Opposition Area

Z-
FY

-1
7-

03
 O

pp
os

iti
on

 A
re

a
20

0 
ft 

B
uf

fe
r

op
po

si
tio

n_
_p

ar
ce

l
μ

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

To
ta

l B
uf

fe
r A

re
a 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
66

5,
47

2.
78

8 
sq

 ft
O

pp
os

iti
on

 A
re

a 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

20
0 

ft 
bu

ffe
r  

-  
31

9,
00

0.
93

8 
sq

 ft
O

pp
os

iti
on

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  4
7.

93
6%

   
 

G
IS

 p
ro

du
ct

s 
ar

e 
fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 
no

t h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r o

r b
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r l

eg
al

, 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 o

r s
ur

ve
yi

ng
 p

ur
po

se
s.

 T
he

y 
do

 n
ot

 
re

pr
es

en
t a

n 
on

-th
e-

gr
ou

nd
 s

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
re

pr
es

en
t 

on
ly

 th
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rty
 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r f

ea
tu

re
s.



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Cox



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Smith



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Nix



1

NIXD01@nationwide.com
Thursday, January 19, 2017 9:51 AM
Dessie Redmond
Jan 18 - Public Forum for Rezoning request Z-FY-16-03

Follow up
Completed

I appreciate the public forum last night.  It was good to meet you.  

Will there be opportunity for public comment to the P&Z?  Should I put in my written response to the comments made last 
night?  Can you just forward this to the members so they will know my thoughts?

I still strongly oppose changing the zoning on this property.  I wanted to hear the developer, and I wanted to see the 
plans.  Neither impressed me.  The proposed location is not the place for this development.  The location is well suited as 
it is currently zoned.  There is no need on the part of this community to change the zoning just to fit this investor's 
needs.  I am sure there are sites in Temple appropriately zoned for the desired business.  

I understand Mr. Jones has a job to do.  He is hired by an investor to find him a location that works for a self storage 
facility.  I have looked on his website.  The locations on his web site look like mini storage facilities (obviously, because 
that is what they are).  The proposed facility, in spite of the proposed design, will look like mini warehouses.  They may be 
nice mini warehouses, but they are mini warehouses.  

My summary:

 Trey Pike, an investor from Austin, wants to build a mini warehouse facility in Temple.
 He reached out to Donald Jones, a consultant and manager of mini warehouse facilities, to help him find a 

feasible spot in Temple.
 Jones gets Lee Idom, a realtor, to find a spot.
 Idom finds the proposed location, even though it is not zoned appropriately.
 Jones starts the process of getting this location's zoning changed to fit his investor's needs 
 Temple is obligated to allow the due process of going through the re-zoning request
 Jones listens to concerns and agrees to put lipstick on the mini warehouses 

I understand perfectly that to the investor, the consultant, the realtor and even the engineer involved in this proposal this is
simply a business deal.  I get that, and I totally understand and respect that.  They want us to change our zoning so they 
can profit from this location. But our community has no obligation to change our zoning just to make this a good business 
deal for these folks.  Is it good for Temple? Is it good for the neighborhood? Is it good for the people that have invested 
already in this area?  Will it be good in the long term for one of our communities most travelled entries?  I think not.

Thanks,
David Nix

Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - 
Nix, Updated Comments



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Fossum



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Kiella



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Prinzine



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Richter



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Raub



Gary Goins <g6518@icloud.com>
Friday, December 02, 2016 9:39 AM
Dessie Redmond
Zoning

Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Goins



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Vogel



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Hebert



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Voytko



1

Dessie Redmond

From: Larry Allis <silver_veteran@yahoo.com>
Sent: Friday, December 02, 2016 5:57 PM
To: Dessie Redmond
Subject: Response to Zoning Request
Attachments: IMG_20161202_0001.pdf

Ms. Dessie Redmond' attached you'll find a scanned copy of my disagreement with the zoning 
change request that will be discussed at the December 6th meeting.  Health reasons will prevent me 
from attending this meeting in person but I am very much opposed to changing the zoning 
classification of the property in question. When I moved here form Pennsylvania 11+ years ago I 
purchased a home in Deerfield Estates.  I asked the question prior to purchasing the property what if 
anything could be built behind my home.  The answer was nothing but possibly other homes. (This 
was according to Stillwater Homes). Now in an area that is purely residential there is a proposal to 
change the zoning to allow commercial properties to be comingled with residential.  This (in my 
opinion) if approved is not only totally absurd, but it would demonstrate that Temple Texas does not 
have a professional zoning and development board in place that can properly manage growth. And if 
that's the case then how does Temple expect to entice professional talent to our city.

Again attached is my form and I hope that the board will disapprove this request. 

Respectfully

Larry Allis

Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Allis



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - 
Allis, continued



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Mares



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Myers



Digitally signed by James I. Howe 
DN: cn=James I. Howe, o, ou, 
email=jim.howe@belfairdev.com, c=US 
Date: 2016.12.01 12:42:54 -06'00'

Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Howe



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Howe, continued



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Head



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - 
Schanafelt



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - 
Schanafelt, continued



Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - 
Schanafelt, continued



Response to Proposed Rezoning Request

Zoning Application Number: Z-FY-17-03

Property Location:  5785 South 31st Street, Temple TX

We strongly appose the rezoning of the 7.35+ acres located at 5785 S 31st Street.
In 1997 the City Council had a land use study done to help them make decisions 
on requests by landowners for rezoning  on the South 31st Street corridor.

All development on South 31st street since 1997 has held to the approved land use plan. If 
the city council approves this request, then the “spot zoning” is starting all over again and 
the approved land use plan is ignored.
No other storage facilities in Temple are located in the middle of a primarily residential 
area. As homeowners we do not want to share our backyard with a storage facility.

Thank You,
Gary and Gayle Bergstrom
5627 South 31st Street  

Returned Property Owner Notices - Within 200’ Buffer Area - Bergstrom



Public Comment - Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area - Bentwood 
Professional Property Owners Association



Public Comment - Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area - Burrows, 
Deerfield Estates



Public Comment - Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area - Burrows, 
Creeks at Deerfield



Public Comment - Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area - Burrows, 
Creeks at Deerfield, continued



Public Comment - Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area - Burrows, 
Creeks at Deerfield, continued



1

Dear Ms. Redmond,

Thank you for the helpful information concerning the rezoning of the above property on 31st Street. I have
shared this with a good number of residents in our direct neighborhood and all are quite enthusiastic about
the possibility of developing a walk/jog/bike trail on the abandoned rail line from 31st St to 5th St. while also
developing a playground for children on the 31st Street property while preserving as many wildflowers as
possible on this site.

At this time, we recommend not changing the zoning but recommend that the City of Temple fully
evaluate our proposal and strongly consider implementing it to help enhance the fitness and well being of our
adults and children.

Thanks,
John A. Schuchmann, M.D.

____________________________________________________________________________________

PROPOSAL TO CONSIDER ALTERNATE USE OF LAND ON 31st STREET IN TEMPLE:
AN OPPORTUNITY TAKEN OR FOREVER MISSED

Land in Question Z FY17 03 7+ acres

CURRENT SITUATION AND RECOMMENDATION:

1.       The above plot of land is located on the east side of 31st Street just north of the
abandoned Temple Belton Railroad line. A request has been made to change zoning of this piece
of land to allow commercial development.

2.       It is recommended that the zoning not be changed on this land, as this land, if developed properly, has
the potential to become a major asset to the City of Temple, its residents as well as others from
surrounding areas.

FACTS ABOUT TEMPLE:
1.       Many people enter and leave Temple via Highway 93, then turning onto south 31st Street. They pass

the land to get to their destinations.
2.       They come to work, to shop, to frequent our restaurants and other businesses
3.       They come for their or their family medical and hospital needs
4.       31st Street for many is the Gateway to Temple
5.       Many new housing developments are being built in south Temple along south 31st Street, Hartrick

Bluff, 5th Street and along Highway 93.
FACTS ABOUT THE LAND UNDER CONSIDERATION:

The above piece of property has a number of unique features:

Public Comment - Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area - Schuch-
mann



2

1.       This land is the site of spectacular displays of wildflowers in the spring. Many people come for family
pictures, pictures of the kids or the family pets, wedding pictures and even just to enjoy the flowers.

2.       This land also has a unique and very valuable location adjacent to the abandoned Belton Temple
Railroad Line.

3.       This piece of land could be used in several very beneficial ways to enhance our city for children and
adults alike (as described below).

FACTS ABOUT THE HEALTH OF TEXANS:

Not all Texans are the picture of health as noted by the following statistics:

1.       The incidence of Obesity is rising in our state. In 1990, 10.7% of Texan were obese. In 2000 21.7%. In
2016 32.4%

2.       11.4% (1.962 million Texans) suffer from Diabetes
3.       29.5% (4.3 million Texans) have Hypertension
4.       1,261,654 of Texans have some form of Heart Disease
5.       4,426,828 Texans have some type of Arthritis
6.       It is estimated that 328,379 (20%) of Cancers are obesity related. (These cancers include breast in

post menopausal females, endometrial, colon, rectal, kidney, prostate, possibly pancreatic.)
HEALTH ENHANCEMENT:

A number of measures can be recommended to enhance the health of our residents proper diet,
appropriate use of medications, avoidance of drugs, tobacco and excess alcohol but one of the most
important measures of all is obtaining regular exercise for children as well as adults of all ages.

WHAT CAN WE DO TO ENHANCE THE HEALTH OF OUR RESIDENTS?

1.       Currently, Temple and Belton have a number of walk/jog/bike trails such as the Pepper Creek Trail in
west Temple and Confederate Park in Belton. People living in these areas frequently use these trails
as safe ways to regularly exercise to enhance their health and well being.

2.       South Temple is now steadily growing with much more growth planned for the future. South Temple
suffers from a lack of appropriate sidewalks and trails (as well as park space for our children). It is
difficult and often hazardous for our residents and especially our children to get outdoors for adequate
amounts of regular exercise and activity.

3.       The abandoned Belton Temple Railroad line provides an excellent location for developing a multi use
walk/jog/bike trail. The rail line is not in suitable condition for trains and would require major
redevelopment to allow railroad use again. The railroad bed is relatively flat and could be developed
into a very attractive and useful rail to trail. The railroad from 31st Street east to 5th Street passes quite
close to many areas that are now and will in the future be used for residential development. The
abandoned railroad line is quite scenic and will allow a safe trail for exercise and activity for children as
well as adults. At this time, it is recommended that a multi use (walk/jog/bike) rail to trail be
developed between 31st Street and 5th Street.

4.       A trailhead with parking for 10 20 cars should be developed on the 31st Street site (along with
bathroom facilities and source of drinking water.) A playground for children should be developed at
this site. Consideration should be given to enlisting a civic organization in the planning and
development of this parkland.

5.       Another smaller trailhead with several spaces for parking should be developed where the trail crosses
Hartrick Bluff so that residents in that area can easily access the trail. A sidewalk should be considered
from the new developments on Hartrick Bluff to the trailhead to facilitate trail access.

6.       The trail should also have a trailhead with bathroom and water availability at the Lion’s Junction Park
area a site where ample parking already exists.

Public Comment - Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area - Schuch-
mann, continued



3

7.       Additional sidewalks should be completed along 31st Street to allow residents a safe pathway to walk
or ride bikes to the trail. A suitable sidewalk now exists adjacent to the D’Antonio’s Crossing
subdivision but unfortunately this does not connect to any other sidewalks or to the proposed trail.

WHY THIS PROPERTY ON 31st STREET?

Having the major trailhead, parking and a playground for children on the 31st Street property will have many
benefits for our city as well as our residents and especially our children:

1.       Such a facility will place a playground and developed trail in a busy and growing part of our
city. Obtaining safe exercise and outdoor activity will be much easier for residents in the new
neighborhoods developing in south Temple.

2.       The location of the major trailhead on the 31st Street site will allow exposure to many residents,
neighbors and visitors to Temple and will convey that we care about the health and well being of our
residents.

3.       The trailhead and playground on 31st Street will not need all of the space on the 31st Street location. It
is recommended that other portions of the site be developed as a Gateway to Temple with a
“Welcome to Temple” emphasis as well as maintaining as much of the spring wildflower display as
possible. The wildflower display should continue to draw people and should also provide a positive
impression as they enter Temple. Many should be intrigued with the facility and choose to visit it
frequently.

4.       Why not elsewhere? This site is a perfect location with the abandoned railroad being a great site for a
multiuse trail, the land’s history as a location of abundant wildflowers, and the location where this
could be developed into a beautiful and functional “Gateway to Temple.”

5.       It would be a shame to miss such an opportunity to enhance our community and its well being.

2/1/2017

Developed in the interest of a healthier Temple,

John Schuchmann, M.D.
Retired Scott and White Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Physician
2028 Deerfield Drive
Temple, TX 76502
Home phone – 774 9157
e mail jschuchmann@msn.com

Public Comment - Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area - 
Schuchmann, continued



1

Donald Jones <djones@donaldjonesconsulting.com>
Thursday, February 02, 2017 9:02 AM
jschuchmann@msn.com
31st street Development

Dessie with the City Staff sent me the letter that would be delivered to P&Z for Monday's meeting.  

I appreciate your comments and what the residents and you desire. I assure you I have listened and understand.

What is not written in your letter is the following:  

1) Who is going to pay for the 7 acres? The seller wants to sell now. He doesn't want to wait for a referendum  

to sell.

2) Is this a proposal encouraging the city of Temple to pay for the land, pay for the park, pay for upgrades and

improvements and maintenance in addition to the hike and bike trail that is a desire by the city but not even 

planned

or budgeted?  

I have seen this hundreds of times where residents want to dictate what happens with development, but the 

reality  

is - the seller has the right to sell and the developer has a right to develop. We have bent over backwards to do  

everything possible for the residents.

I would offer up one thing on behalf to the residents and the HOA. If your group wanted to reimburse my 

developer

for all of his expenses and then close on the land, we could consider walking away and looking for another site. 

Then

the HOA could donate the 7 acres to the city and that might encourage them to build the park you want  

Beyond this, I will attend the meeting on Monday evening and will continue to move our agenda forward.  

Feel free to call me if you would like to chat.  

Regards,

Donald Jones 

Cell - 817-456-4658 

www.DonaldJonesConsulting.com

Applicant’s Repsone to Property Owner Comments Outside the 
200’ Buffer Area



Outward-Facing Building Facades Graphic related to Condition # 6 which states, “All exterior 
Outward-facing building facades (as shown in attachment: Outward-Facing Building Facades 
Graphic) related to the mini-storage buildings shall have exteriors containing a combination of 
Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), split-faced concrete masonry units (CMUs), brick and 
accent metal panels as shown in the Elevations submittal;”

The yellow highlighted facades are “outward-facing building facades.”



EXCERPTS FROM THE 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2017 

ACTION ITEMS 

Item 2: Z-FY-17-03 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a rezoning from 

Neighborhood Services (NS) to Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR) and site/development 

plan on 7.35 +/- acres, 1-lot, 1-block non-residential subdivision, proposed for a mini-storage facility, 

located at 5785 South 31st Street, Temple, Texas. 

Ms. Dessie Redmond, Planner, showed the location of the subject property and indicated this item is scheduled to 

go forward to City Council for first reading on March 2, 2017 and second reading on March 16, 2017. 

The applicant and property owner is Mr. Wes Jackson, RVOS Farm Mutual Insurance, and Mr. Trey Pike. The 

subject property is currently vacant and undeveloped and located in the RVOS Subdivision. There are existing 

drainage easements and the property abuts the Georgetown Railroad. The applicant is requesting a rezoning from 

Neighborhood Services (NS) to Planned Development General Retail (PD-GR); however, Staff is recommending 

NS to PD-NS. 

At the December 6, 2016 P&Z Commission meeting several topics were covered, including but not limited to: 

Site characteristics, existing easements, constraints to property 

Tree preservation 

Lighting (condition 15 added) 

Several property owners spoke in opposition to the proposal 

P&Z Commission made a motion to continue to February 6, 2017 and directed Staff to facilitate a 

meeting with the property owners 

At the January 18, 2017 Public Meeting held in City Council Chambers at City Hall: 

Staff hosted and facilitated a meeting between applicant and property owners 

12 people signed attendance sheet 

Applicant presented revised plans and provided a preliminary drainage study 

On February 2, 2017 based on comments received at the public meeting: 

Applicant submitted additional revised documents 

Submitted a Rendering 

Revised drawings, site plan, elevations (mainly building height), and landscaping plans are shown and compared 

with December 6, 2016 renderings. The applicant is proposing approximately 39 percent of landscaping for the 

entire site which exceeds the City’s required five percent. 

The request is in compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map, the Thoroughfare Plan, Temple 

Trails Master Plan and Sidewalk Ordinance, Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 3.4.5 - Planned 

Development Criteria, and is consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service capacities. 

DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt



Multiple permitted uses in the NS zoning district are cited. 

Twenty-five notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with two notices returned in 

agreement and 17 notices returned in disagreement.  

With the amount of responses in disagreement, UDC Section 3.3.4 – Protest, indicates: 

Twenty percent of the area within the buffer accounts for property owners in disagreement of the rezoning 

request:

Requires a three-fourths vote by City Council in order to be approved  

Total area: 665,472 square feet 

Opposition area: 319,000 square feet 

With this request there is a 47.9 percent opposition which triggers a protest 

Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from NS to PD-NS with the allowed use of a mini-storage warehouse 

including the following conditions: 

1. Substantial compliance with the Development/Site Plan; 

2. Substantial compliance with the Landscape Plans and Elevations; 

3. That the remaining 2.16 +/- acres will require a separate Development/Site Plan review by the Planning 

& Zoning Commission with approval by City Council prior to any future development; 

4. Each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 

5. A six-foot wide sidewalk is required to be built along South 31st Street prior to the opening of business; 

6. Outward-facing building façades (as shown in the Outward-Facing Building Façades Graphic) related to 

the mini-storage buildings shall have exteriors containing a combination of Exterior Insulation Finish 

Systems (EIFS), split-faced concrete masonry units (CMUs), brick and accent metal panels as shown in 

the Elevations submittal; 

7. Preservation of most trees within the subject property (perimeter and interior), based on variety and 

maturity, must be considered; 

8. A continuous 10- to 15-foot wide landscape buffer is required between residential and nonresidential 

uses. The buffer must be installed prior to any nonresidential development and maintained per UDC, 

Section 7.4.8. Maintenance and Irrigation; 

9. A continuous 20-foot wide landscape buffer is required along the Georgetown Railroad (combination of 

new and existing trees). This buffer must be installed prior to the completion of Phase II and maintained 

per UDC, Section 7.4.8. - Maintenance and Irrigation; 

10. All landscaping required by the UDC shall meet or exceed UDC, Section 7.4 -Landscaping; 

11. Any fencing along South 31st Street shall be decorative metal; 

12. This PD runs with the land and is not affected by the transfer of property owners; 

13. The maximum building wall height allowed is 21-feet (top of wall and per submittal elevations);  

14. The applicant shall comply with all Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) requirements; and 

15. All lighting associated with the proposal shall be shielded to prevent light trespass.  

Commissioner Crisp asked about drainage. Mr. Richard Wilson, Deputy City Engineer, responded one of the 

issues addressed in the submitted report was pre- and post-discharge rates by having detention. What was not 

addressed is conveyance off-site and increased volumes of water that will be conveyed off-site. Mr. Wilson will 

DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt



be looking to the applicant to address this issue. Currently, the water builds up because the railroad is a dam, 

along with an access road that is built and the water spills over into the back yards. Mr. Wilson added that this 

will still be the case--the water will still discharge over the railroad track faster than they can get it out of the 

backyards. 

An alternate conveyance methodology will be required. Mr. Wilson has not seen anything to date.  

Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing and asked the applicant to come up first. 

Mr. Donald Jones, 4216 Little Bend Court, Keller, Texas, stated development takes a long time and his company 

is not anywhere close to being finished. Additionally, due to the December 6, 2016 P&Z meeting and the public 

meeting held with property owners on January 15, 2017, Mr. Jones feels he has addressed all comments made 

regarding this project. 

Mr. Jones stated they cannot fix everything being asked for but can certainly make efforts, which he believes has 

been done. 

Mr. Jones went into some history of the subject property which has been for sale for many years, which consists 

of a triangular-shaped 7.3 +/- acres making it very difficult to develop. The developer is willing to purchase the 

entire acreage and utilize and design the property in the best manner available, which he believes this proposed 

project would do. 

Mr. Jones stated on March 2, 2011, the Georgetown Railroad sold the spur easement, a 100-foot wide strip, to the 

City for $10.00 (Ten Dollars). This railroad easement lies between the houses located there and the subject 

property (50-feet on the residential side and 50-feet on the subject property side). 

When Mr. Jones physically walked this strip of land, he stated there were 30-foot tall trees and so much 

vegetation on both sides he could not see through it on either side. Photos shown of the strip of land. One of the 

concerns expressed by residents was that everyone would be able to see the proposed project. Mr. Jones 

disagreed due to the existing vegetation. 

Mr. Jones explained there were 11 homes that abut the railroad track and would be affected; however, he added 

these 11 homes would not be able to see the proposed project due to the existing greenery and growth. The buffer 

would be equivalent to 50-feet, plus the railroad track, plus an additional 50-feet. Mr. Jones has no control over 

this vegetation since it is not part of the proposed project. 

The back portion of the proposed project which abuts the railroad was initially going to be landscaped by the 

developer. However, due to the existing vegetation, there is no reason to spend money cleaning it up and planting 

additional trees and shrubs no one will ever see. Mr. Jones made a new proposal that they would cut what they 

needed to cut in order to comply and build the required buildings. The balance of the remaining vegetation would 

be left as is. 

Mr. Jones assured that the drainage issue on the subject property would be monitored and maintained. In order to 

do this, the buildings in Phase I were adjusted and also some removed in order to allow more land/space for 

drainage.

Additional architectural features (parapets, wall, façade, etc.) have also been added that were not in the original 

plans.

Mr. Jones explained in asking for this proposed PD, the applicant/developer will be held to and accountable for 

the submitted plans. 

The signage will be a monument sign in the front. 

DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt



On Phase I there were 3 or 4 smaller buildings that have now been redesigned as one building in order to effect 

better lighting and the quantity of caps needed.  

Site plans shown for comparison. 

Mr. Jones discussed drainage and mentioned the water damming up in a certain location. Apparently there is a 

0.1 +/- acre tract of land belonging to Mr. C.E. Dever (phonetic spelling) on the east side of the railroad track, 

not located on the subject property, where water is damming up.  

Mr. Jones explained they would take the water to the northeast corner and triple feed it back to the same point 

and also clear out some of the vegetation to help facilitate the water come out. 

Mr. Jones suggested since there was a big concern about the drainage, perhaps the HOA should pay for a study 

on the back side and mirror what the developer will be doing. Mr. Jones has instructed his engineer to over-

engineer the drainage to make sure it works. 

Mr. Jones offered to take the money that would have gone for landscaping on the back side of the railroad, and if 

and when the City comes in and builds a park or walking trail in the area, they can escrow at the front or escrow 

at the back $10,000 for landscaping of that project or whatever project the City would rather put the funds 

toward.

In regards to the bluebonnets, Mr. Jones offered to have their fire lane marked with allocated parallel parking on 

the north side so people can get stay off the street and park in the appropriate areas. Since the developer is 

required to build a six-foot sidewalk along the entire length of the project, that amenity would be available for 

everyone to use and photograph/enjoy the bluebonnets.  

Mr. Jones also offered to make sure the entire two acres would be barricaded and blocked off to make sure no 

contractor touches that portion of the property during the entire construction period. This would be made part of 

the proposed plan in order to protect that section for the time being. Mr. Jones reminded everyone that; however, 

at some point in the future, someone will come along and develop that property. 

Mr. Jones added that a lot of growth for single family residential is occurring in this area and storage space will 

be needed. NS best describes this service and project and there is no storage in new residential homes.  

Chair Rhoads thanked the applicant and stated his appreciation for the follow-through, effort, and transparency 

on his part.  

Chair Rhoads repeated the super majority rule for when this item goes forward to City Council whether the 

request is approved or not. 

Ms. Rebecca Burrow, 9914 South Whitehall Road, Temple, Texas, stated this project would be more 

economically infeasible than believed.  

Ms. Burrow stated Temple is the wildflower city of Texas and if this project goes forward there will be no green 

space in the area. Ms. Burrow stated the less green space per family household, the more depressive that area is. 

Because of this reason Ms. Burrow believes medically, this is not a good idea. 

Ms. Burrow, as an Ecologist, commented three-quarters of the native land would be cut off. The tree coverage is 

soaking up most of the water and currently, without that, there is still a huge drainage problem. Adding 50 

percent impervious cover will not help no matter how deep or what is done. There are already problems and it 

will be exacerbated after this with 50 percent impervious cover. 

DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt



Ms. Burrow proposed leaving the property as is, do some small modifications to add in native plantings that will 

fix the drainage problems, or develop a low maintenance park with native plants. She would rather the 7 +/- acres 

be used as an enhanced service to the citizens that have nothing else in the area. 

Ms. Burrow wants to encourage the City, as the wildflower city of Texas, to do something to earn that 

designation. 

Mr. Tex Burrows, 6205 Turtle Creek, Temple, Texas, stated NS zoning specifically prohibits storage facilities.  

Mr. Burrows stated a petition drive is being conducted in Deerfield Estates to prevent this project was proceeding 

and approximately 75 percent of the residents are against this proposal. 

Mr. Burrows requested that the NS zoning stay as is. 

In regards to drainage, Mr. Burrows commented that the applicant/developer would do the right thing on the 

property to the best that they can within the laws and regulations required, but that is not enough. Once the water 

leaves the property, it becomes the City’s problem. Mr. Burrows recommended before development begins, the 

City have a plan in place to deal with the runoff water because it will go into the back yards, down Turtle Creek 

and become worse. 

Mr. Burrows felt that accent metal panels do not fit with the décor of the neighborhood and even with the 

updated plans, Mr. Burrows does not feel this is an appropriate fit for the area. 

Mr. John Schuchmann, 2028 Deerfield Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he was a retired physical medicine and 

rehabilitation physician from Scott and White and health is his main issue on this matter.  

Mr. Schuchmann felt this property should be used to enhance the health and well-being of the citizens of Temple. 

There have been discussions for a number of years of putting a hike and bike trail along the Georgetown Railroad 

which goes from 31st Street to 5th Street. It would be an ideal outdoor space/trail/hike/bike area for the existing 

and future residents due to the growth of the area. Obtaining regular exercise is a tremendous benefit for 

maintaining and improving health. 

Mr. Schuchmann stated there were a number of nice parks in Temple and Belton but those are not close enough 

to this area. His proposal was to develop this area into a Rail Trail with parking and amenities for the community 

and turn down the proposed project and rezoning request. 

Mr. Brian Chandler, Director of Planning, stated he sits on the Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Committee for the 

Killeen Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO). The Committee is continuing to look at this 

potential trail but it is not as simple as it may seem in terms of ownership and whether the railroad easement 

legally allows for a potential trail.  

Mr. Chandler reassured the P&Z Commission and citizens that the Committee is looking at it and has submitted a 

future grant application through KTMPO to eventually have a trail that extends from South Temple Park, Lions 

Junction, and hopefully down to the Leon River.    

Mr. David Nix, 2526 Blue Meadow Drive, Temple, Texas, stated there are six very nice office buildings in the 

complex and they are proud of what has been done. Mr. Nix requested that the property be left zoned as is since 

it better serves the community and long term purpose.  

Mr. Larry Allis, 5912 Fawn Meadow Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he agreed it was not the right location for this 

project. The biggest concern is the drainage issue and agrees with Ms. Burrow’s comments. In addition to the 

previously mentioned drainage issues, he feels it will also create a mosquito breeding ground which endangers 

the communities and will attract wildlife as a water source. Mr. Alice would like to know where the water will go 

after it leaves the property since the drainage is located right behind the houses. 

DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt



Mr. Allis agrees this is not the right area for this project. 

Ms. Pam Matthews, 1920 Deerfield Drive, Temple, Texas, echoed she was concerned about the drainage 

problems. Ms. Matthews does not currently experience drainage problems but she lives on the creek and stated a 

100 year flood plain goes past the area. Ms. Matthews feels this project would contribute to future problems.  

Ms. Matthews also agrees with Ms. Burrow’s comments and would rather keep this as a green space. 

Mr. Tim Pastor, 5904 Fawn Meadow Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he has witnessed drainage running down 

Fawn Meadow and Turtle Creek several times. Mr. Pastor discussed this issue with a City engineer and stated he 

was told there was another detention pond further up along the Georgetown Railroad that was not working 

correctly which compounds the problem.  

Mr. Pastor purchased his property knowing the problems already existed; however, he does not feel this is a good 

development for the neighborhood and will be an eyesore. 

Chair Rhoads clarified that the buildings for the proposed project were pushed further back than typical storage 

facilities. 

Dr. Meera Beharry, 2313 Windsong Lane, Temple, Texas, stated she agreed the property should be kept as NS. 

Dr. Beharry’s major concerns are the issues already discussed and safety issues for people who choose to use it, 

especially if a hike and bike trail were to eventually come to the area. 

Dr. Beharry would not want to live in a neighborhood that seems more industrial and commercial which is why 

she chose this area. 

Mr. Josh Valenta, Civil Engineer, 211 Woodland Blvd., Woodland, Texas, wanted to reiterate some of the points 

Mr. Jones touched on previously. The City has an extensive ordinance on drainage and a lot of time, effort and 

thought have been put into this project to protect the area. Mr. Jones instructed Mr. Valenta to go above and 

beyond what was required. 

Mr. Valenta stated detention is based on rate, not volume, and the detention ponds take the large flow of water 

and make it lower—trickle channel effect. The proposed detention ponds will fill up and drain within 35 minutes 

to an hour. If the detention ponds are designed and built correctly, which his company does, there will be no 

mosquito or wildlife problems. 

Mr. Valenta commented that the appearance of this storage facility is unlike any other; it is much nicer. With the 

current zoning in place the area would get much less since it is allowed.  

Mr. Donald Jones returned and stated the area they want to develop is higher than the railroad track and the 

homes are lower.  Brief discussion about where the water flows.  

Chair Rhoads closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Jones thanked the audience for coming to the meeting tonight and explained that no matter what 

the vote is, this matter will continue on to City Council.  

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 2, Z-FY-17-03, per Staff recommendation as PD-NS, and 

Commissioner Langley made a second. 

Motion failed:  (2:6)
Commissioners Crisp and Langley voted Aye; Commissioners Alaniz, Armstrong, Jones, Marshall, Vice-Chair 

Fettig, and Chair Rhoads voted Nay; Commissioner Ward absent 

DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4833 

(Z-FY-17-03) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES 
ZONING DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-NEIGHBORHOOD 
SERVICES ZONING DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 7.35 ACRES, 1 LOT, 1 
BLOCK NON-RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION, PROPOSED FOR A MINI-
STORAGE FACILITY, SITUATED IN THE REDDING ROBERTS SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 692, BELL COUNTY, TEMPLE, TEXAS, AND LOCATED AT 
5785 SOUTH 31ST STREET; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Neighborhood Services zoning 

district to Planned Development-Neighborhood Services zoning district on an 
approximately 7.35 acres, 1 Lot, 1 Block non-residential subdivision, proposed for a mini-
storage facility, situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692, Bell County, 
City of Temple, Texas, located at 5785 South 31st Street, as outlined in the map attached 
hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Neighborhood Services 

zoning district to Planned Development-Neighborhood Services zoning district with the 
following conditions: 

 
1. Substantial compliance with the Development/Site Plan, attached hereto as 

Exhibit B;  
2. Substantial compliance with the Landscape Plans and Elevations as depicted 

in Exhibit C; 
3. That the remaining 2.16 +/- acres will require a separate public development 

plan review by the Planning & Zoning Commission with approval by City 
Council prior to any future development;   

4. Each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 
5. A six foot wide sidewalk is required to be built along S. 31st Street prior to 

the opening of the business; 
6. Outward-facing building facades (as shown in Exhibit C: Outward-Facing 

Building Facades Graphic) related to the mini-storage buildings shall have 
exteriors containing a combination of Exterior Insulation Finish Systems 
(EIFS), split-faced concrete masonry units (CMUs), brick and accent metal 
panels as shown in the Elevations submittal; 

7. Preservation of most trees within the subject property (perimeter and 
interior), based on variety and maturity, must be considered; 



2 
 

 
 
8. A continuous 10-15 foot wide landscape buffer is required between 

residential and nonresidential uses. The buffer must be installed prior to any 
nonresidential development and maintained per UDC, Section 7.4.8. 
Maintenance and Irrigation; 

9. A continuous 20 foot wide landscape buffer is required along the 
Georgetown Railroad. This buffer must be installed prior to the completion 
of Phase II and maintained per UDC, Section 7.4.8. Maintenance and 
Irrigation; 

10.  All landscaping required by the UDC shall meet or exceed UDC, Section 
7.4 Landscaping; 

11.  Any fencing along S. 31st Street shall be decorative metal; 
12.  This PD runs with the land and is not affected by the transfer of property 

owners; 
13.  The maximum building wall height is 21 feet (top of wall and per submitted 

elevations); and 
14.  The applicant shall comply with all Texas Department of Transportation 

(TxDOT) requirements. 
15. All lighting associated with the proposal shall be shielded to prevent light 

trespass.  
 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 

March, 2017. 



3 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of March, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
  
Lynn Barrett, Assistant Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-12: Consider adopting an 
ordinance amending the existing Planned Development district (Ordinance 2008-4263), decreasing the 
Planned Development-General Retail portion from 12.2 +/- acres to 5.48 +/- acres and increasing the 
Planned Development Single Family Two portion from 38.5 +/- acres to 45.20 +/- acres for a total 50.7± 
acres located at 276 West FM 93, the northeast corner of FM 93 and South 5th Street, out of the 
Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract No. 14. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their February 6, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously eight to zero to recommend amendment of the 
proposed rezoning from Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) district to Planned Development 
General Retail (PD-GR) district as recommended by Planning staff, and Commissioner Armstrong 
added the motion was also contingent upon TXDOT review of entrances and exits and water run-off of 
neighboring properties. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the following, staff recommends approval with conditions for 
amending the current PD for the following reasons: 
1. That the amendment merely changes the proportions of the two uses on the property and 
 continues to demonstrate compliance with the provisions of the Planned Development Criteria 
 as required by UDC Section 3.4.5; 
2. The PD-GR and PD-SF-2 zoning is compatible with the Future Land Use; 
3. The PD-GR and PD-SF-2 zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning, existing and 
 anticipated uses; 
4. The zoning complies with the Thoroughfare Plan;  
5. Public and on-site facilities are available to serve the subject property;  
6. FM 93 access and drainage concerns will be addressed at the subdivision plat stage, and  
7. The proposed development will be an extension of Alta Vista, an existing single family 
 subdivision. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

03/02/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 
CONDITIONS: 
 

A. The following uses (previously codified in the existing PD with tree nursery removed) require a 
conditional use permit within the PD-GR  District: 

1. Restaurant or eating place (drive-in service) 
2. Health and reducing or similar service studio 
3. Veterinarian hospital (inside pens) 
4. Tool rental (outside equipment storage) 

 
B. The following uses are prohibited within the PD-GR District (previously codified as the existing 

PD on this property): 
1. Single family detached residential 
2. Single family attached dwelling 
3. Townhouse 
4. Two family dwelling (duplex) 
5. Industrialized housing 
6. Single family dwelling attached 3 
7. Family home/Group home 
8. Accessory dwelling 
9. Accessory building (residential) 
10. Backyard compost operation 
11. Home occupation  
12. Hotel or motel 
13. Stable (private) 
14. Electrical substation (high voltage bulk power) 
15. Electrical transmission line (high voltage) 
16. Gasoline and regulation station (wholesale) 
17. Cleaning Plant (Commercial) 
18. Household appliance service or repair 
19. Pawn Shop 
20. Radio or television tower 
21. Radio, television transmitting station 
22. Telephone Exchange Switch-relay or transmitting equipment 
23. Public building shop yard of local, state or federal  government 
24. Water Treatment Plant 
25. Playfield or stadium (public) 
26. Roller or ice rink 
27. Child Care:  small home facility 
28. Fraternity or sorority 
29. Helistop 
30. Railroad track or right-of-way 
31. Veterinarian Hospital (outside pens only) 
32. Farm,  ranch orchard or garden 
33. Flea market (indoors) 
34. Plumbing shop 
35. Warehouse office 



 

03/02/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

C. The following buffering standards shall apply to the PD-GR  District: 
1. Landscape and wall buffers shall be installed along the north and east boundaries of the 

PD-GR District, excluding the curb cut for street access and the intersection visibility 
triangles. 

a. The landscape buffers must be 10 feet wide and consist of hardwood trees on 25 
foot centers, with a minimum two inch diameter at breast height size, with five 
gallon shrubs placed five feet on center between trees located outside of the 
buffering wall. 

b. Buffer fence shall consist of six foot residential privacy fences constructed as 
residential lots are developed.  

2. Landscaping along 5th and Hwy 93, excluding the curb cut for street access and the 
intersection visibility triangles. 

  A landscape buffer must be installed along the south and west sides of the PD-GR  
  District (adjoining FM 93 and South Fifth Street), consisting of hardwood trees on 25  
  foot centers, with a minimum two inch diameter at breast height, and five gallon shrubs  
  placed five feet on center between the hardwood trees. 

3. Total landscaped area. The total area of landscaping on private property within the PD-
GR District must equal or exceed five percent of the aggregate lot area. 

4. Time of installation. Buffering fences will be installed on adjacent residential lots as each 
lot is developed. Landscaping must be installed prior to issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy. 

 
D. The following standards shall apply to the PD-SF2 District: 

1. Privacy fences will be installed along the backs of the lots bordering South 5th Street as 
the residential lots are developed. A landscape strip with two additional trees on each lot 
outside the privacy fences will also be required on the two lots bordering Highway 93 
when each residential lot is developed. 

2. Residential Landscaping standards: 
a. Front yard shall be sodded 
b. One tree required in the front yard to be a minimum of five foot planted height and 

15 gallon 
c. Shrubs: minimum of 3-5 gallon shrubs and 5-1 gallon shrubs placed in the front 

yard 
3. Residential Architectural standards: 

a. Front façade must have at least two architectural features, items may include but 
not limited to: roof breaks, columns, gables, varied roof pitch, etc.  

b. Facade of homes is required to be at least 80% brick, rock, stucco, hardie or other 
cementitious products.  

4. Residential sidewalks shall be installed as shown on attached Development Plan. 
Residential sidewalks shall be constructed as each lot is developed.  Perimeter sidewalk 
along 5th Street and West FM 93 shall be installed as required by City of Temple 
Ordinance.  

5. Development or redevelopment of the property shall be in accordance with the approved 
attached Development Plan. 
 

E. FM 93 access and drainage approval by TXDOT are required to be addressed at the subdivision 
plat stage. 



 

03/02/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
These conditions shall be expressed conditions of any building permit issued for construction on the 
property which may be enforced by the City of Temple by an action either at law or in equity, including 
the right to specifically enforce the requirements of the ordinance, and these requirements shall run 
with the land. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
A previous zoning case in 2008 established a Planned Development PD-GR and PD-SF-2 zoning for 
the property specifying more than 12 acres of General Retail use on the 50.7 acre tract at the corner of 
Fifth Street and FM 93. Subsequent owners now seek to increase the proportion of SF-2 on the property 
and decrease the PD-GR apportionment to 5.48 acres. They also seek a change in the landscaping 
provisions along the Fifth Street frontage of the subdivision while offering to construct internal sidewalks 
and asking to add residential architectural standards. 
 
Surrounding Property and Uses 
The following table shows the existing zoning and current land uses abutting the subject property: 
 

Direction Zoning Current Land Use 
North AG 

SF-2 
Church 
Existing Alta Vista Subdivision 

East ETJ-MKT Railroad Vacant 
South AG Rural Residential 
West AG Rural Residential 

 
Future Land Use Plan & Future Trends 
The Future Land Use Plan shows the area as a combination of Suburban Commercial on the corners 
which would support the PD-GR zoning on the corner portion, and Suburban Residential, which allows 
for the PD-SF-2, for the single family residential subdivision.  Both requests conform to the Future Land 
Use Plan. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan 
Both FM 93 and South 5th Street are shown as Major Arterials, which will provide access to the general 
retail and residential subdivision development.  The request conforms to the Thoroughfare Plan.  
Access from SH 93 will require approval of a TXDOT permit. 
 
Adequacy of Public Facilities 
Adequate water and sewer are available to serve the subject tract. 
 
Planned Development Single Family 2 (PD-SF-2) The SF-2 district allows single family-residential 
development only, with a maximum building height of 2 ½ stories.  The SF-2 dwelling district is designed 
to accommodate single family detached homes.  The minimum lot area for SF-2 is 5,000 square foot 
with setbacks for 25 feet in the front yard, 5 feet in the side yard and 10 feet in the rear yard.   
 
 
 
 

 



 

03/02/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 
Planned Development General Retail (PD-GR) The General Retail District is the standard retail district 
and allows most retail sales, restaurants, grocery store, department store, or offices and most 
residential uses except apartments, with a maximum building height of three stories. There is no 
minimum lot area, width or depth. The building setback for the front yard is 30’ from the street centerline, 
and 10’ adjacent to a residential distinct with a screening fence to separate the commercial from the 
residential use. 
 The use of a Planned Development provides flexibility for development standards because of 
proximity of other development, topography, road access and the environment. Here the planned GR 
is at the intersection of two Major Arterial Streets.  Staff recommends a PD approach for land uses, the 
required screening and buffering and landscaping to prohibit some incompatible uses when located 
next to single family residential, ensures separation from loading and service areas from the retail to 
the residential area and to ensure the recommended landscape standards. 
 
Public Notice 
A total of 36 notices were sent out to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property January 
26, 2017.  As of February 17th at 5 PM, six notices were received in agreement, one in disagreement, 
one undecided and one was undeliverable. The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on 
January 26, 2017 in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site Plan 
Site Photos 
Maps 
Previous PD Ordinance 
Responses 
Ordinance 
  





Site photos 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

View looking 

North from W 

FM 93 toward 

subject property; 

Memorial 

Baptist Church is 

visible in the 

background 

View of 

proposed 

Stonehaven 

Drive connection 

with existing Alta 

Vista Subdivision 



 

View of Existing 

Alta Vista 

Subdivision to 

the north 

 

Sidewalk 

construction by 

developer in  

existing Alta Vista 

Subdivision along 

Stonehaven Drive 

 



U
n
io

n
 P

a
c
if

ic
 R

R

U
n
io

n
 P

a
c
if

ic
 R

R

CROSSDR

CROCKER DR

A
M
B
R
O
SE

 C
IR

FA
IR
 H

IL
L 
D
R

ST
O
N
EH

A
V
EN

 D
RWYNDCREST DR

A
LE

X
A
N
D
R
IA
 D
R

W
O
R
TH

IN
G
 D

R

ST
A
N
FO

R
D
 D
R

H
U
N
TI
N
G
TO

N
 D
R

H
O
P
K
IN

S 
D
R

BRUNSWICKST

GRANT DR

BANBURY DR

E FM 93

93 SPUR

S 
5T

H
 S
T

WFM93

S 
5T

H
 S
T

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-12

AMEND PD-GR
and PD-SF-2

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 1/21/2017

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea

276 W FM 93



U
n
io

n
 P

a
c
if

ic
 R

R

U
n
io

n
 P

a
c
if

ic
 R

R

CROSSDR

CROCKER DR

A
M
B
R
O
SE

 C
IR

FA
IR
 H

IL
L 
D
R

ST
O
N
EH

A
V
EN

 D
RWYNDCREST DR

A
LE

X
A
N
D
R
IA
 D
R

W
O
R
TH

IN
G
 D

R

ST
A
N
FO

R
D
 D
R

H
U
N
TI
N
G
TO

N
 D
R

H
O
P
K
IN

S 
D
R

BRUNSWICKST

GRANT DR

BANBURY DR

E FM 93

93 SPUR

S 
5T

H
 S
T

WFM93

S 
5T

H
 S
T

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-12

AMEND PD-GR
and PD-SF-2

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 1/21/2017

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea

276 W FM 93



Date: 1/21/2017

E FM 93

E FM 93

93 SPUR

W FM 93

S 
5T

H
 S
T

CROCKER DR

H
U
N
TI
N
G
TO

N
D
RW

O
R
TH

IN
G
 D

R

A
LE

X
A
N
D
R
IA
 D

R

WYNDCRESTDR

B

RUNSWICKST

ST
A
N
FO

R
D
 D

R

FA
IR
 H

IL
L 
D
R

A
M
B
R
O
SE

 C
IR

ST
O
N
EH

A
V
EN

 D
R

U
n
io

n
P
a
c
if

ic
R
R

U
n
io

n
P
a
c
if

ic
R
R

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-12
Address :

276 W FM 93

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 1/21/2017
 lrbarrett

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 1/21/2017

E FM 93

E FM 93

93 SPUR

W FM 93

S 
5T

H
 S
T

CROCKER DR H
U
N
TI
N
G
TO

N
D
R

W
O
R
TH

IN
G
 D

R

A
LE

X
A
N
D
R
IA
 D

R

WYNDCRESTDR

B

RUNSWICKST

ST
A
N
FO

R
D
 D

R

FA
IR
 H

IL
L 
D
R

A
M
B
R
O
SE

 C
IR

ST
O
N
EH

A
V
EN

 D
R

U
n
io

n
P
a
c
if

ic
R
R

U
n
io

n
P
a
c
if

ic
R
R

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-12
Address :

276 W FM 93

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 1/21/2017
 lrbarrett

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GFGF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

24
8

6

1
2

2

1.5

8

6

6

1.5

6

6

6

8 8

8

6

8

6

6

U
n
io

n
 P

a
c
if

ic
 R

R

U
n
io

n
 P

a
c
if

ic
 R

R

WYNDHAMHILLPKWY

CROSSDR

A
M
B
R
O
SE

 C
IR

CROCKER DR

FA
IR
 H

IL
L 
D
R ST
O
N
EH

A
V
EN

 D
R

A
LE

X
A
N
D
R
IA
 D
R

WYNDCREST DR

AMES DR

W
O
R
TH

IN
G
 D

R

H
O
P
K
IN

S 
D
R

ST
A
N
FO

R
D
 D
R

H
U
N
TI
N
G
TO

N
 D
R

SHERMANDR

BRUNSWICKST

E FM 93

93 SPUR

S 
5T

H
 S
T

WFM93

S 
5T

H
 S
T

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-12

AMEND PD-GR
 and PD-SF-2

Address :
276 W FM 93

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 1/21/2017

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea



401
PropID:
148499

700
PropID:
46452

361
PropID:
148495

218
PropID:
19097

275
PropID:
148492 225

PropID:
148491

341
PropID:
96249

391
PropID:
148496 311

PropID:
148493

225
PropID:
148489

225
PropID:
148490

276
PropID:
400677

317
PropID:
443234

311
PropID:
443233

305
PropID:
443232

335
PropID:
443237

341
PropID:
443238

6138
PropID:
443260

6127
PropID:
443229

6133
PropID:
443258

6128
PropID:
443262

6115
PropID:
443227

6115
PropID:
443255

6103
PropID:
443225

6104
PropID:
443266

406
PropID:
443280

6103
PropID:
443253

6029
PropID:
443223

6024
PropID:
443269

6018
PropID:
443270

6011
PropID:
443220

6005
PropID:
443219

6005
PropID:
443247

5935
PropID:
443218

405
PropID:
443279

360
PropID:
97315

11
PropID:
446438

19
PropID:
446436

25
PropID:
446434

109
PropID:
446432

119
PropID:
446430

129
PropID:
446428

5924
PropID:
446397

203
PropID:
446427

5925
PropID:
446376

5924
PropID:
446375

5916
PropID:
446395

5925
PropID:
446327

5917
PropID:
446328

5911
PropID:
446379

5906
PropID:
446393

6161
PropID:
350827

347
PropID:
443239

6138
PropID:
443240

6128
PropID:
443242

5929
PropID:
443217

5922
PropID:
446424

5925
PropID:
446288

6135
PropID:
457758

6123
PropID:
457755

6139
PropID:
457759

6123
PropID:
457732

6107
PropID:
457751

6202
PropID:
457912

6122
PropID:
457721

6026
PropID:
457899

6211
PropID:
457762

6103
PropID:
457750

6105
PropID:
457735

6110
PropID:
457723

6219
PropID:
457764

6214
PropID:
457909

6023
PropID:
457748

6014
PropID:
457902

6042
PropID:
457725

6227
PropID:
457766

6015
PropID:
457746

6222
PropID:
457907

6023
PropID:
457739

6030
PropID:
457727

6303
PropID:
457768

6002
PropID:
457905

6003
PropID:
457743

6302
PropID:
457948

6311
PropID:
457770

6005
PropID:
457742

5926
PropID:
457913

6006
PropID:
457731

5939
PropID:
457863

5914
PropID:
457916

5919
PropID:
457896

6327
PropID:
457774

5927
PropID:
457865

5906
PropID:
457918

5911
PropID:
457894

6326
PropID:
457942

6407
PropID:
457777

6402
PropID:
457940

5905
PropID:
457869

5826
PropID:
457921

5831
PropID:
457891

6415
PropID:
457779

6161
PropID:
169398

276
PropID:
97381

3
PropID:
446440

5601
PropID:
446441

6161
PropID:
448601

6319
PropID:
457772

5938
PropID:
457830

5926
PropID:
457832

5914
PropID:
457834

410
PropID:
402879

5881
PropID:
26102

5927
PropID:
457898

6318
PropID:
457944

413
PropID:
442141

421
PropID:
442141

607
PropID:
442141

515
PropID:
442141

503
PropID:
442141511

PropID:
442141

414
PropID:
442141

422
PropID:
442141

604
PropID:
442141

504
PropID:
442141

512
PropID:
442141

6066-A

6088-A

6075-A

6070-C

6070-A

6071-B

6080-A

6076-A

6069-A

6077-A

6072-A

6074-A

6063-E

6063-F

6063A-C

6063A-D

6071-A

E FM 93
93SPUR

EFM93

W FM 93

S 
5T

H
 S
T

CROCKER DR

A
LE

X
A
N
D
R
IA
 D

R

WYNDCRESTDR

B

RUNSWICKST

H
U
N
TI
N
G
TO

N
 D

R

FA
IR
 H

IL
L 
D
R

AMBROSECIR

ST
O
N
EH

A
V
EN

 D
R

U
n
io

n
P
a
c
if

ic
R
R

U
n
io

n
P
a
c
if

ic
R
R

Ü

Date: 1/21/2017
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-12

AMEND PD_GR
AND PD-SF-2

Address :
6276 W FM 93

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CaseArea

Buffer



































1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4834 

(Z-FY-17-12) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING AN EXISTING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
BY DECREASING THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-GENERAL RETAIL 
PORTION FROM APPROXIMATELY 12.2 ACRES TO 5.48 ACRES AND 
INCREASING THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT SINGLE-FAMILY TWO 
PORTION FROM APPROXIMATELY 38.5 ACRES TO 45.20 ACRES FOR A 
TOTAL APPROXIMATELY 50.7 ACRES, LOCATED AT 276 WEST FM 93, 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF FM 93 AND SOUTH 5TH STREET, OUT OF 
THE MAXIMO MORENO SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 14; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council amends the existing Planned Development district 

(Ordinance No. 2008-4263), decreasing the Planned Development-General Retail 
portion from approximately 12.2 acres to approximately 5.48 acres and increasing the 
Planned Development Single Family Two portion from approximately 38.5 acres to 
approximately 45.20 acres for a total approximately 50.7 acres, located at 276 West FM 
93, the northeast corner of FM 93 and South 5th Street, out of the Maximo Moreno 
Survey, Abstract No. 14, as outlined in the attached site plan notes attached hereto as 
Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: Staff recommends amending the existing Planned Development 

(Ordinance No. 2008-4263) with the following conditions: 
 

A. The following uses (previously codified in the existing PD with tree nursery 
removed) require a conditional use permit within the PD-GR  District: 

1. Restaurant or eating place (drive-in service) 
2. Health and reducing or similar service studio 
3. Veterinarian hospital (inside pens) 
4. Tool rental (outside equipment storage) 

 
B. The following uses are prohibited within the PD-GR District (previously 

codified in the existing PD on this property): 
1. Single family detached residential 
2. Single family attached dwelling 
3. Townhouse 
4. Two family dwelling (duplex) 
5. Industrialized housing 
6. Single family dwelling attached 3 
7. Family home/Group home 
8. Accessory dwelling 
9. Accessory building (residential) 



2 
 

 
 
 

10. Backyard compost operation 
11. Home occupation  
12. Hotel or motel 
13. Stable (private) 
14. Electrical substation (high voltage bulk power) 
15. Electrical transmission line (high voltage) 
16. Gasoline and regulation station (wholesale) 
17. Cleaning Plant (Commercial) 
18. Household appliance service or repair 
19. Pawn Shop 
20. Radio or television tower 
21. Radio, television transmitting station 
22. Telephone Exchange Switch-relay or transmitting equipment 
23. Public building shop yard of local, state or federal  government 
24. Water Treatment Plant 
25. Playfield or stadium (public) 
26. Roller or ice rink 
27. Child Care:  small home facility 
28. Fraternity or sorority 
29. Helistop 
30. Railroad track or right-of-way 
31. Veterinarian Hospital (outside pens only) 
32. Farm,  ranch orchard or garden 
33. Flea market (indoors) 
34. Plumbing shop 
35. Warehouse office 

 
C. The following buffering standards shall apply to the PD-GR District: 

 
1. Landscape and wall buffers shall be installed along the north and east 

boundaries of the PD-GR District, excluding the curb cut for street access 
and the intersection visibility triangles. 

a. The landscape buffers must be 10 feet wide and consist of 
hardwood trees on 25 foot centers, with a minimum 2 inch diameter 
at breast height size, with 5 gallon shrubs placed 5 feet on center 
between trees located outside of the buffering wall. 
b. Buffer fence shall consist of 6 foot residential privacy fences 
constructed as residential lots are developed.  

2. Landscaping along South 5th Street and Hwy 93, excluding the curb cut for 
street access and the intersection visibility triangles. A landscape buffer 
must be installed along the south and west sides of the PD-GR District 
(adjoining FM 93 and South 5th Street), consisting of hardwood trees on 25 
foot centers, with a minimum 2 inch diameter at breast height, and 5 gallon 
shrubs placed 5 feet on center between the hardwood trees. 

3. Total landscaped area. The total area of landscaping on private property 
within the PD-GR District must equal or exceed 5 percent of the aggregate 
lot area. 

 



3 
 

 
 

4. Time of installation. Buffering fences will be installed on adjacent residential 
lots as each lot is developed. Landscaping must be installed prior to 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

 
D. The following standards shall apply to the PD-SF2 District: 

 
1. Privacy fences will be installed along the backs of the lots bordering South 

5th Street as the residential lots are developed. A landscape strip with two 
additional trees on each lot outside the privacy fences will also be required 
on the two lots bordering Highway 93 when each residential lot is 
developed. 

2. Residential Landscaping standards: 
a. Front yard shall be sodded 
b. One tree required in the front yard to be a minimum of 5 foot planted 

height and 15 gallon 
c. Shrubs: minimum of 3-5 gallon shrubs and 5-1 gallon shrubs placed in 

the front yard. 
3. Residential Architectural standards: 

a. Front façade must have at least two architectural features, items may 
include, but not limited to: roof breaks, columns, gables, varied roof pitch, 
etc.  

b. Facade of homes is required to be at least 80% brick, rock, stucco, hardie or 
other cementitious products.  

4. Residential sidewalks shall be installed as shown on Development Plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein for all purposes. 
Residential sidewalks shall be constructed as each lot is developed.  
Perimeter sidewalk along South 5th Street and West FM 93 shall be 
installed as required by City of Temple Ordinance.  

5. Development or redevelopment of the property shall be in accordance with 
the approved Development Plan. 

 
E.  FM 93 access and drainage approval by TXDOT are required to be addressed 

at the subdivision plat stage. 
 
Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, 
if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 



4 
 

 
 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day 

of March, 2017. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of March, 
2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
   
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-14: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Office-One zoning district to General Retail zoning district on a 
2.770 +/- acres and Office-One to Planned Development-General Retail on a 2.142 +/- acres, portion 
of a 4.912 +/- tract of land, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, 
located at 6490 West Adams Avenue. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning of the subject property as 
shown by the boundary map, described by surveyor sketch and field notes attached as Exhibit A, from 
Office-One (O-1) district to General Retail (GR) district for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed rezoning is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map’s Suburban 
Commercial District; 

2. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning and anticipated retail and 
service uses along this section of West Adams Avenue;  

3. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan;   
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property and, 
 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning for the eastern 180-feet of the subject property, as  shown 
by the boundary map, described by surveyor sketch and field notes, attached as Exhibit A, from Office-
One (O-1) district to Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR) district, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Site plan approval is required by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council; 
and, 

2. Site plan approval will include notification of property owners within 200-feet of the 
boundaries of the PD-GR-zoned area. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their February 21, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted five to two to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning 
from Office-One (O-1) to General Retail (GR) and Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR), per 
staff’s recommendation.  
 
 
 



 

03/02/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
After considerable discussion from neighbors regarding the potential of fast-food and other restaurant 
uses being developed along the eastern boundary of the project site, the Planning & Zoning 
Commission voted unanimously to table this rezoning request during their February 6, 2017 meeting.  
 
Tabling to the February 21, 2017 meeting allowed the applicant time to prepare a surveyor sketch and 
field notes to identify and isolate the eastern 180-feet of the property as Planned Development-General 
Retail (PD-GR).    
 
Since neighborhood concerns relate primarily to the eastern portion of the property, closest to the 
existing neighborhood, public site plan approval required with a Planned Development District would 
address the location of drive-through or other facilities, enhanced buffering and screening relative to 
the existing neighborhood. Therefore, a condition for public site plan approval is proposed to 
accommodate this need.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  DB Commercial, on behalf of property owner, Mary McDonald, requests rezoning 
of a 4.823 +/- acre tract of land, (Exhibit A) from Office-One (O-1) zoning district to General Retail (GR) 
zoning district. The property is currently undeveloped. Per Ordinance 2007-4158, the O-1 district was 
created from Multi-Family-One (MF-1) to Office (O-1).  
 
Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a subdivision plat is required. The subdivision plat has been 
submitted and was reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) on February 23, 2017. At 
such time that the plat has been deemed administratively complete, it will be scheduled for the next 
available Planning & Zoning Commission meeting. The Planning & Zoning Commission review is 
required, since extension of the sewer line is necessary as further identified in the Public Facilities 
section of this report. 
 
As a result of recent staff discussions with the developer, initial development of the site, proposes a 
minor vehicle servicing use, specifically a quick oil change facility. The facility will be limited to oil 
changes as well as minor vehicle inspections. Additional development can be anticipated. 
 
Noteworthy is that a 4.889 +/- acre parcel, per Ordinance 2016-4786, was rezoned on Hilliard Road 
from the Agricultural (AG) district to the General Retail (GR) district. This property has frontage along 
Hilliard Road and is west of Holy Trinity Catholic High School but is part of the overall expansion of 
non-residential development of the area. 
 
While the proposed property is currently undeveloped and anticipated to be developed with non-
residential uses, there are a number of residential and other non-residential uses that are permitted by 
right in the GR zoning district. The uses allowed, but not limited to, in the GR district are provided in 
the attached table. 
 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, most 
commercial uses and industrial uses. 
 
 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan.  Maps compliance is 
discussed below and summarized in the attached compliance table. 



 

03/02/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is entirely within the Suburban Commercial land use district. The Suburban 
Commercial district is intended for office and retail service-related zoning districts, of which the 
requested GR-zoning is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map.  
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from West Adams Avenue (FM 2305), a major arterial. As a major 
arterial, a 6-foot sidewalk is required, which would be addressed during the platting stage. No 
Transportation Capital Improvement Program (TCIP) improvements, scheduled through fiscal year 
2024, have been identified for this section of West Adams Avenue. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 18-inch sewer line on the south side of 
West Adams Avenue as well as an 8-inch sewer line at the intersection of Brooks Drive to the east of 
the subject property. Sewer will need to be extended in order to service the property. Water is available 
through existing 14-inch and 4-inch waterlines in West Adams Avenue. As identified earlier, sewer line 
extension is required and will be addressed through the subdivision plat process.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan identifies an existing City-Wide spine trail in West Adams Avenue. Sidewalk 
improvements are currently in place on the project’s side of West Adams Avenue. Any sidewalk 
deficiencies or trail improvements will be addressed during the future platting process. Per City Policy, 
the existing 10-foot asphalt sidewalk / trail will be required to be upgraded to a concrete sidewalk / trail. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Non-residential setbacks in the Office One (O-1) and General 
Retail (GR) districts are provided in the attached table.  Standards for buffering and screening are as 
follows: 
   
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or use - UDC Section 

4.4.4.F3) and, 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to residential uses are 

found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but not limited to: 
* Landscaping or solid fencing from six to eight feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Ten notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent 
notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Thursday February 
23, 2017 at 12:00 PM, Two notices have been received in disagreement and one notice received is 
agreement. Additionally, staff has received several phone calls from surrounding neighbors with 
property that are next to the subject property along Brooks Drive. Concerns regarding future uses and 
drainage were discussed during these phone calls. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on January 26, 2017, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

 



 

03/02/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Boundary Map / Surveyor Sketch & Field notes (Exhibit A) 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Photos 
Maps 
Tables 
Returned Property Notices 
P&Z Excerpts (Feb 6, 2017 only) 
Ordinance 
  



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

mbaker
Polygonal Line



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

mbaker
Typewritten Text
GR

mbaker
Typewritten Text
PD-GR



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site: Undeveloped  
(O-1) 

 

 
 

North: Holy Trinity Catholic High School  
(SF-1) 



 
 

East:  Single Family Residential Uses (Note Arrow - Fencing in Place) 
(AG) 

 

 
 

East: Existing (Unsubdivided) Single Family Residential Uses – Brooks Drive 
(AG)   

 



 
 

West: Holy Trinity Catholic High School entry (not in photo),  
Existing Service and Retail Uses  

(GR) 
 

 
 

South: Existing Service & Retail Uses 
(GR) 



 
 

South: Existing Service & Retail Uses 
(GR) 



Maps 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 
 

 
 

Location Map 

mbaker
Polygonal Line

mbaker
Callout
Ord. 2016-4786     AG to GR



 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Future Land Use Map 



 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 

 
 

Utility Map 
 



 
 

Notification Map 
 
 
 



Tables 
 

Permitted & Conditional Uses Table (Comparison between O-1 & GR) 
 

Use Type Office-One (O-1) General Retail (GR) 

Agricultural Uses * Farm, Ranch or Orchard * Same as O-1                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Residential Uses 

* Single Family Residence 
(Detached & Attached)                                                                                                                                                    
*  Townhouse  / Duplex                                                                         
*  Industrialized Housing                                                      
* Family or Group Home 
(CUP)                                                                                            

* Same as O-1                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Retail & Service Uses 

* Bank or Savings & Loan                                                          
* Artist or Photographic 
Studio 

* All Retail & Service Uses                                               
* Alcoholic Beverage 
Sales, off-premise 
consumption, Package 
Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 
*  None                                                                                                         *  Plumbing Shop                                                                               

*  Upholstery Shop                                                                                                     
*  Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 

* Temporary Asphalt & 
Concrete Batching Plat 
(CUP)                                                                                     
*  Laboratory, medical, 
dental, scientific or 
research   (CUP)                                                                

* Temporary Asphalt & 
Concrete Batching Plat 
(CUP)                                                                                     
*  Laboratory, medical, 
dental, scientific or 
research                                                                       

Recreational Uses 

* Park or Playground                                                              * Beer & Wine (On Premise 
Consumption) < 75%                      
*  All Alcohol (On-Premise) 
> 75% (CUP) 

Vehicle Service Uses 

* None                                                                                                                                                                           *  Auto Sales - New & Used                                      
* Car Wash                                                                                                                                          
* Vehicle Servicing  (Minor)           
* Fuel Sales 

Restaurant Uses * None * With & Without Drive-In 
Overnight 

Accommodations * None * Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses 
* Helistop (CUP)                                              * Commercial Parking Lot                                              

* Helistop  



 
 
 
 

Surrounding Property Uses 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Suburban Commercial O-1 Vacant 
North Public Institutional SF-1 Holy Trinity Catholic High 

School 
South Suburban Commercial & Auto-

Urban Residential 
GR &  
SF-2 

Retail / Service Uses & SF 
Residential Uses 

East Suburban Residential AG, NS & 
SF-1 

SF Residential Uses & 
Retail / Service Uses 

West Public Institutional & Suburban 
Commercial 

SF-1 & 
GR 

Retail Uses & Holy Trinity 
Catholic High School 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map YES 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 



 
Development Standards 

 

 

Current  (O-1)  
Non-Res 

Proposed (GR) 
Non-Res 

Minimum Lot Size N/A N/A 
Minimum Lot Width N/A N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth N/A N/A 

Front Setback 25 Feet 15 Feet  

Side Setback 5 Feet 10 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet 10 Feet 
Max Building Height 3 Stories 3 Stories 

 
 
 
 
 

 











EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2017 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 4: Z-FY-17-14 -  Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a rezoning 
from Office-One (O-1) zoning district to General Retail (GR) zoning district on 4.820 
+/- acres, being a non-residential subdivision, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, 
Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located at 6490 West Adams Avenue, Temple, 
Texas. 

Vice-Chair Fettig stated he would need to abstain from Item 4, left the Council Chambers and 
did not participate in discussions or voting. 

Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, indicated this item is scheduled to go forward to City Council 
for first reading on March 16, 2017 and second reading on April 6, 2017. 

This request is proposed for retail and service uses and the initial development is for a minor 
vehicle servicing use within the proposed GR zoning. Minor vehicle servicing would be limited 
to oil change and vehicle inspections. Additional development is to be expected. 

Mr. Baker cited a few projects located in the same area which is developing with GR zoning. 

The subdivision plat is not part of this rezoning request; however, the plat has been submitted 
to Staff and is scheduled for review later this month.  

Zoning Map shown and described. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designates the subject property as Suburban 
Commercial, intended for areas of office and retail service uses, supports GR zoning, and 
allows for minor automotive service-related uses. The request is in compliance with the Future 
Land Use and Character Map. 

Public facilities are available to serve the property with a 14-inch and four-inch water line 
located in West Adams and an eight-inch sewer located at the intersection of Brooks Drive 
and West Adams, along with an 18-inch sewer line on the south side of West Adams. The 
extension of the sewer line will be necessary and is what is triggering the final plat to come 
before P&Z some point in the future. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates West Adams Avenue as a Major Arterial and no 
Transportation Capital Improvement Projects (TCIP) are scheduled through 2024. 

There is an existing City-wide spine trail along West Adams Avenue with an existing 10-foot 
wide asphalt sidewalk which will be required to be upgraded to concrete at the Construction 
Plan stage. 

Site photos are shown. 



Surrounding properties include Holy Trinity Catholic High School, zoned SF-1, located to the 
north, West Adams Avenue and existing retail and service uses, zoned GR, located to the 
south, existing retail and service uses, zoned GR, located to the west, and existing single 
family residential uses, zoned AG, located to the east. 

The existing fencing which appears to be located on individually owned private property may 
meet screening and buffering requirements, but all buffering and screening that is triggered is 
the responsibility of the non-residential development. In other words, if the private property 
owners removed any type of compliant fencing or screening, it would still be the obligation of 
the non-residential development to provide that screening and buffering in the future.  

Comparison between several allowed and prohibited uses for O-1 and GR are shown. 

Current and proposed Development Standards are given. 

Due to the acreage of the subject property, not all of the uses could be accommodated so the 
property itself is self-restricting to the uses available for development. 

In terms of Buffering and Screening: UDC Section 7.7.4 – Buffering: 

• May consist of evergreen hedges composed of five-gallon plants or larger, with a 
planted height of six-feet on 36-inch centers 

• May consist of a six-foot to eight-foot high fence or wall, constructed by any 
number of allowed materials per UDC Section 7.7.5, such as: 

Wood, 
Masonry, 
Stone or pre-cast concrete 

• Compliance to the buffering and screening requirements is the responsibility of 
the non-residential development. 

Ten notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with zero notices 
returned in agreement and two notices returned in disagreement. (One notice was 
undeliverable). 
This request is in compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map, the Thoroughfare 
Plan, public facilities are available to serve the property, and is compatible with the 
surrounding uses and zoning. 

Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from O-1 to GR. 

Mr. Baker explained about the phone calls he received on this project.  

Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 

Mr. Mike Beevers, DB Commercial Real Estate, Managing Partner, 5101 FM 439, Belton, 
Texas, stated their company tries to look at what the property ‘could become’ when working 
with developments, City Staff, and consultants. 



Mr. Beevers stated they try to avoid PDs whenever possible since they can be difficult to 
manage. The applicant is requesting a straight GR rezoning consistent with the land use plan 
and the Suburban Commercial designation.  

DB Commercial has a firm currently interested in this lot for a fast minor automotive repair for 
a national chain. The other portions of the tract have no potential users to date but DB would 
like to have the zoning in place for potential interested parties. 

Mr. Beevers stated he has reached out to the community and residents in the area to discuss 
this proposal, met with TxDOT regarding their requirements, and met with City Staff to cover 
many pre-planning issues. 

Three houses abut the subject property. 

Ms. Gabrielle Parkey, 106 Brooks Drive, Temple, Texas, stated she was a member of the 
Temple Chamber of Commerce Red Carpet Ambassador and supports growth and 
development; however, her neighborhood is concerned about requesting a GR zoning. GR 
could allow businesses such as a fast food restaurant, convenience store, or hotel on the 
corner which abuts the homes located there.  

Ms. Parkey would like the zoning to remain as Office since it would be the minimum amount of 
impact to the area. Ms. Parkey is not in favor of a 24/7 type of business which could be 
intrusive on the neighbors and possibly affect property values. 

Mr. Doug Easley, 110 Brooks Drive, Temple Texas, stated he agreed with Ms. Parkey on 
keeping the Office zoning in place and not having a 24 hour restaurant there since it would be 
difficult to entire their homes.  

Mr. Easley stated there is a flooding issue in the area and, if developed, he would prefer a 
drainage ditch be installed to keep his property from flooding.  

Mr. Easley commented that the restaurants across the way are not a problem since the 
neighbors do not normally smell them.  

Mr. Easley would rather have a tire shop with the air hammers, dumpsters, and cars honking 
than a real estate neighborhood. Bringing in a business, without food retail, is agreeable to the 
residents, and include a buffer and irrigation. 

Mr. Mike Beevers returned and clarified he did not know what the market would bring to them 
which is why they met with Staff to discuss GR zoning. 

Mr. Beevers stated he would be willing to work with alternate ideas; however, he would not 
recommend the Commission make decisions on an ad-hoc fashion tonight. How do you zone 
against a smell? Mr. Beevers suggesting tabling the item, coming back with a PD zoning with 
a PD retail, and then tailor the uses available.  

The current zoning of Office would allow for a building up to three stories tall. 

Mr. Chandler commented that if the Commission wanted to add any conditions that are 
enforceable then it has to be done through a PD, which is not what Mr. Beevers was wanting. 



The Future Land Use and Character Map did not necessarily take into consideration the direct 
impact on those neighbors when it was developed. 

The P&Z could table the item, and, with some direction, come back the next time to perhaps 
discuss prohibiting a use or uses, additional buffering and screening since it abuts a 
neighborhood, and any other additional conditions. 

Mr. Chandler confirmed that GR allows for a drive-through restaurant with no site plan 
attached. 

Chair Rhoads suggested a future workshop be held for the Commissioners to discuss these 
type of issues since West Adams is growing so rapidly. 

Mr. Beevers suggested the Commission rezone the property as PD-GR and site plan approval 
would be done when it comes back to P&Z for screening and buffering, etc.  

Mr. Chandler confirmed the legal notice covers the change because P&Z can recommend 
something more restrictive which is what a PD is. Mr. Chandler recommended if it is a 
question of having the opportunity to look at how a building will be sited, or it has a drive-
through, or is buffering and screening required, then P&Z can make that recommendation to 
add the site plan that would have to come back when it is ready, rather than tabling the item. 

If P&Z is open to discussions prohibiting certain uses (‘carving out’) then the item should be 
tabled since a site plan does not address this. 

Chair Rhoads stated the PD-GR makes more sense. 

Mr. Beevers added that the site plan would come back whenever there is a specific project; 
not a week or two. 

Chair Rhoads clarified that the possible recommendation is to change the request to a PD-GR 
for any motion. 

Commissioner Jones asked if the residents felt it was reasonable and a good idea to have a 
PD attached. Chair Rhoads explained to Ms. Parkey that this meant GR leaves it wide open 
and a PD requires a site plan in place to come back to P&Z and the applicant explains exactly 
what the plan is. 

Commissioner Jones added that advanced notice would go back out and residents would 
have an opportunity to come back and it would not be decided tonight. 

Ms. Gabrielle Parkey stated that was reasonable. 

Mr. Dennis Williamson, 203 Brooks Drive, Temple, Texas, stated what would be best is 
develop a committee from Brooks Drive to work hand-in-hand with the developer allowing the 
residents to have veto power.  

Chair Rhoads stated they cannot do that. 



Mr. Williamson stated the neighborhood has been in the area for 50 years and would not like 
to have a restaurant next door. Mr. Williamson suggested having a buffer around the 
neighborhoods that have been existing for 20, 50 years.  

Office zoning makes it a prime development area. 

Chair Rhoads explained when the area was originally zoned years ago, Adams Avenue went 
a different direction than what it was zoned. 

Mr. Phillip Howe, 111 Brooks Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he bought his home in 1991 and it 
was a unique area.  

Mr. Howe stated water sits in the corner and believed the property would never be developed 
due to the water issue. 

Mr. Mike Beevers returned and explained they would change to PD-GR. He felt the main 
concern was the land that backed up to the houses and the project that is ‘priming the pump’ 
is located on the western half. 

Mr. Beevers suggested the PD overlay be done only on the eastern half (all the land that 
abuts the existing houses) and the western half frontage (400 feet wide) would be divided into 
two lots—200 foot wide lots with a typical GR zoning. 

The folks that are moving forward with the quick oil change would put their project behind 
schedule in order to come back and get a site plan approved for that southwest corner. If it is 
amenable to the P&Z and residents, it would allow that project to move forward and stick with 
the GR zoning.  

Mr. Beevers explained there would be a center drive off of West Adams in the middle and 
would be a single joint point of access for the entire tract, with a turnaround at the rear, per 
TxDOT requirement. 

Mr. Baker stated half of the tract would need to be done through field notes to have some type 
of description to go into the Ordinance. 

Commissioner Jones questioned if this would be able to be done tonight. 

Mr. Chandler answered it would probably be better to table this item so Staff could work with 
the applicant in terms of the description. It could move forward tonight if the entire tract were 
PD-GR, but to take half of it without a description and require a site plan is a challenge.   

Mr. Beevers stated he could come back in two weeks with the field notes if the neighborhood 
supported it. Bringing a site plan back before City Council is a larger delay than two weeks. 
That would be compromise on the applicant’s part. 

The next P&Z meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, February 21, 2017. 

Ms. Gabrielle Parkey returned and asked if the Quik Lube could go up next to the houses 
since it was only an eight to five situation; not 24 hour. It might be better than the alternative. 



Mr. Beevers stated it was a great idea but they have a contract on the western portion and 
cannot just change it. Mr. Beevers asked the Commission to table the item and be able to 
come back with a site plan and field notes in two weeks and be prepared with documentation 
to move forward to City Council. 

Chair Rhoads closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to table Item 4, Z-FY-17-14, until the next scheduled P&Z 
meeting on February 21, 2017, and Commissioner Alaniz made a second. 

Motion passed:  (7:0) 
Vice-Chair Fettig abstained; Commissioner Ward absent 
 
 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4835 

(Z-FY-17-14) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM OFFICE ONE ZONING 
DISTRICT TO GENERAL RETAIL ZONING DISTRICT ON 
APPROXIMATELY 2.770 ACRES, AND FROM OFFICE ONE TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT-GENERAL RETAIL ZONING DISTRICT ON 
APPROXIMATELY 2.142 ACRES, A PORTION OF AN APPROXIMATELY 
4.912 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, SITUATED IN THE NANCY CHANCE 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 5, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND LOCATED AT 
6490 WEST ADAMS AVENUE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Office One zoning district to 

General Retail zoning district on approximately 2.770 acres and from Office One to Planned 
Development-General Retail on approximately 2.142 acres, a portion of an approximately 
4.912 acre tract of land, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, 
Texas, located at 6490 West Adams Avenue, as outlined in the map attached hereto as 
Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2:  Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from Office One zoning district 

to General Retail zoning district on approximately 2.770 acres as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 
Part 3: Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from Office One to Planned 

Development-General Retail on approximately 2.142 acres as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ and 
subject to the following conditions:  

 
 1. Site plan approval is required by the Planning & Zoning Commission and the 

City Council; and 
 2. Site plan approval will include notification of property owners within 200-

feet of the boundaries of the PD-GR zoned area. 
 

Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 

 



2 
 

 
 

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 

March, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of March, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/02/17 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1  

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution approving a request from Central Texas Christian 
School for a 1,000 foot spacing requirement between the school and a place of business which sells 
alcoholic beverages, pursuant to Code of Ordinances, Chapter 4, Section 4-2.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On February 16, 2017, the City Council adopted amendments to Chapter 4 of the 
Code of Ordinances. Section 4-2 now allows for a private school to request that the City Council apply 
a 1,000 foot spacing requirement between the school property and a place of business which sells 
alcoholic beverages, instead of the 300 foot spacing requirement which normally applies. Section 4-2 
tracts the language of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code Section 109.33.  
 
A private school is defined in Chapter 4 and in State law as a private school that “(1) offers a course of 
instruction for students in one or more grades from kindergarten through grade 12; and (2) has more 
than 100 students enrolled and attending courses at a single location.” Central Texas Christian School 
meets this definition.  
 
In September, 2016, Central Texas Christian School formally requested the 1000 foot spacing 
requirement, however in conversations with a member of the Board of Trustees, it was explained that 
amendments to Chapter 4 would first have to be considered by the Council. Since those amendments 
were approved at the last Council meeting, Central Texas Christian School has confirmed its desire to 
request the 1000 foot spacing requirement. A copy of the request is attached to this memorandum. 
 
The distance between a school and an establishment which sells alcoholic beverages is measured in 
a direct line from the property line of the school to the property line of the place of business. The school 
is located on the property platted as Lot 1, Block 1, Central Texas Christian School Addition. Therefore, 
measurements will be made from the property lines established by the plat.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Letter from Central Texas Christian School 
Resolution 





1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8564-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A REQUEST FROM CENTRAL TEXAS CHRISTIAN 
SCHOOL FOR A 1,000 FOOT SPACING REQUIREMENT BETWEEN A 
SCHOOL AND A PLACE OF BUSINESS WHICH SELLS ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES, PURSUANT TO CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 4, 
SECTION 4-2; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on February 16, 2017, Council adopted amendments to Chapter 4 of the Code 
of Ordinances; 
 

Whereas, Section 4-2 now allows for a private school to request that Council apply a 
1,000 foot spacing requirement between a school property and a place of business which sells 
alcoholic beverages, instead of the 300 foot spacing requirement which normally applies - 
Section 4-2 tracts the language of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code Section 109.33;  
 

Whereas, a private school is defined in Chapter 4 and in State law as a private school that 
“(1) offers a course of instruction for students in one or more grades from kindergarten through 
grade 12; and (2) has more than 100 students enrolled and attending courses at a single location” 
- Central Texas Christian School meets this definition;  
 

Whereas, in September, 2016, Central Texas Christian School formally requested the 
1000 foot spacing requirement, however in conversations with a member of the Board of 
Trustees, it was explained that amendments to Chapter 4 would first have to be considered by the 
Council – Council approved those amendments on February 16, 2017 and Central Texas 
Christian School has again confirmed its desire to request the 1000 foot spacing requirement; 

 
Whereas, the distance between a school and an establishment which sells alcoholic 

beverages is measured in a direct line from the property line of the school to the property line of 
the place of business – Central Texas Christian School is located on property platted as Lot 1, 
Block 1, Central Texas Christian School Addition and therefore, measurements will be made 
from the property lines established by the plat; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council approves the request from Central Texas Christian School for a 
1,000 foot spacing requirement between the school and a place of business which sells alcoholic 
beverages, pursuant to Code of Ordinances, Chapter 4, Section 4-2. 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 

 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
03/02/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 
2206.053 finding that one property situated in the M.A. Young Survey, Abstract #937, J.B. Daniel 
Survey, Abstract #259, and the Henry Millard Survey, Abstract #552, Bell County, Texas, is necessary 
for the proposed expansion of Old Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as 
well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35 and authorizing the use of 
eminent domain to condemn the property.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Old Howard 
Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road 
from Old Howard Road to IH-35, including a realigned intersection at Pegasus Drive. The design 
requires the acquisition of right-of-way from 21 different property owners, under Chapter 251, Local 
Government Code § 251.001. The City has acquired six rights of way and has reached an agreement 
with six property owners.  Staff is actively negotiating with each of the remaining property owners and 
hopes to reach agreements with each of them this fiscal year. However, despite negotiations, the City 
and one property owner have not reached an agreement, nor is an agreement anticipated. This property 
is situated in the M.A. Young Survey, Abstract #937, J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract #259, and the Henry 
Millard Survey, Abstract #552, Bell County, Texas. The legal description of the real property needed is 
included with the Resolution attached to this memorandum. The property needed is as follows:  

• Being 15.858 acres of land, more or less, out of the M.A. Young Survey, Abstract #937; J.B. 
Daniel Survey, Abstract #259; and the Henry Millard Survey, Abstract #552, Bell County, Texas, 
located at the southwest corner of Moores Mill Road and Wendland Road, Temple, Texas (Bell 
CAD ID #15887). 
 

o An appraisal was performed on the property and the City made an offer to purchase, 
based on the appraisal, to the owner of record on January 6, 2017, via Lone Star Right-
of-Way Services (Lone Star). 
 

o The property owner submitted a counteroffer to the City via Lone Star on January 16, 
2017.  This counteroffer was substantially higher than the City is willing pay to acquire the 
property and was refused.   



 

03/02/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
o A final offer for the appraised amount plus closing costs was sent in February, and if 

rejected after 14 days, Staff is asking Council to authorize the use of the power of eminent 
domain to acquire the property. 

 
Staff is asking pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053, for the City Council to 
authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the property described above, if the parties 
are ultimately unable to reach agreements. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of this property necessary for the expansion of Old Howard 
Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road 
from Old Howard Road to IH-35, is appropriated in account 795-9800-531-6864, project #101001. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
 

 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8565-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, FINDING THAT A PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE M.A. YOUNG 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT 937, J.B. DANIEL SURVEY, ABSTRACT 259, AND 
THE HENRY MILLARD SURVEY, ABSTRACT 552, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, IS NECESSARY FOR THE PROPOSED EXPANSION OF OLD 
HOWARD ROAD FROM CENTRAL POINTE PARKWAY TO MOORES 
MILL ROAD, AS WELL AS AN EXPANSION OF MOORES MILL ROAD 
FROM OLD HOWARD ROAD TO IH-35; AUTHORIZING THE USE OF 
EMINENT DOMAIN TO CONDEMN THE PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Old 
Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of 
Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35, including a realigned intersection at 
Pegasus Drive; 
 
 Whereas, the design requires the acquisition of right-of-way from 21 different property 
owners, under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 251.001 – and the City has acquired six 
rights of way and has reached agreements with six property owners; 
 
 Whereas, Staff is actively negotiating with each of the remaining property owners and 
hopes to reach agreements with each of them this fiscal year, however, despite negotiations, the 
City and one property owner have not reached an agreement, nor is an agreement anticipated; 
 
 Whereas, the property is situated in the M.A. Young Survey, Abstract 937, J.B. Daniel 
Survey, Abstract 259, and the Henry Millard Survey, Abstract 552, Bell County, Texas; 
 
 Whereas, the legal description of the real property needed is as follows:  
 

Being 15.858 acres of land, more or less, out of the M.A. Young Survey, Abstract 
#937; J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract #259; and the Henry Millard Survey, Abstract 
#552, Bell County, Texas, located at the southwest corner of Moores Mill Road 
and Wendland Road, Temple, Texas (Bell CAD ID #15887). 

 
 Whereas, an appraisal was were performed on the property and the City made an offer to 
purchase, based on the appraisal, to the owners of record on January 6, 2017, via Lone Star 
Right-of-Way Services (“Lone Star”); 
 
 Whereas, the property owner submitted a counteroffer to the City via Lone Star on 
January 16, 2017 which was substantially higher than the appraised value and therefore the 
counteroffer was refused; 
 
 Whereas, a final offer for the appraised amount plus closing costs was sent in February, 
and if rejected after 14 days, Staff recommends, pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 
2206.053, that Council authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the property 
described above; 

 
 



2 
 

 
 
Whereas, funding for the purchase of this property necessary for the expansion of Old 

Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of 
Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35, is appropriated in Account No. 795-9800-
531-6864, Project No. 101001. 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and 
factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

 
Part 2:  The City Council hereby finds and determines that the necessity exists for 

acquiring, by eminent domain, approximately 15.858 acres of land, more or less, out of the M.A. 
Young Survey, Abstract #937; J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract #259; and the Henry Millard Survey, 
Abstract #552, Bell County, Texas, located at the southwest corner of Moores Mill Road and 
Wendland Road, Temple, Texas (Bell CAD ID #15887). 

 
Part 3:  The City Council hereby finds and determines that the proposed expansion of 

Old Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of 
Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35 is a public use under Chapter 251, Local 
Government Code § 251.001(a)(1). 
 

Part 4:  The City Council authorizes the use of the City’s eminent domain authority 
under Article 3, Section 3.6, of the Charter of the City of Temple and the initiation of 
condemnation proceedings of said property interests. 
 
 Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act and the 
Truth in Condemnation Act, Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase, in...
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds in an amount not to exceed $6,026.
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution declaring the candidates for the May 6, 2017, District 2 and District 3 City Councilmember as unopposed and elected to office; thereby canceling the election as ordered.
	03/02/17
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 1
	ATTACHMENTS:
	UDEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	03/02/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	03/02/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	03/02/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 7
	03/02/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:U The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan. A summary table of the CP compliance is located the attachments: Comprehensive Plan ...
	03/02/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	03/02/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	03/02/17
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 5
	03/02/17
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 5
	03/02/17
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 5
	03/02/17
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 5 of 5
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	UDEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Mark Baker, Senior Planner
	03/02/17
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	03/02/17
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution approving a request from Central Texas Christian School for a 1,000 foot spacing requirement between the school and a place of business which sells alcoholic beverages, pursuant to Code of Ordinances,...
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053 finding that one property situated in the M.A. Young Survey, Abstract #937, J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract #259, and the Henry Millard Survey, Abstra...
	Z-FY-17-12 Attachments.pdf
	Attachments combined for report
	1 Site Plan
	2 Site photos
	3 LocationMap
	4 AerialMap
	5 Future Land Use Map
	6 Thorofare and Trails Map
	7 UtilityMap
	8 Notification Map
	9 Previous 2008 PD Ordinance 4263

	Responses received through Feb 17




